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PART |
Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a specialty finance company. Our businetsspsrchase and service retail automobile corgradginated primarily by franchised
automobile dealers and, to a lesser extent, bytsieldependent dealers in the United States irsdle of new and used automobiles, light
trucks and passenger vans. Through our automatmilgact purchases, we provide indirect financintheoecustomers of dealers who have
limited credit histories, low incomes or past ctguibblems, who we refer to as sub-prime custonWisserve as an alternative source of
financing for dealers, facilitating sales to custvsnwho otherwise might not be able to obtain fairag from traditional sources, such as
commercial banks, credit unions and the captivarioe companies affiliated with major automobile nfaoturers. In addition to purchasing
installment purchase contracts directly from desalese have also (i) acquired installment purchaseracts in four merger and acquisition
transactions, (ii) purchased immaterial amountgetiicle purchase money loans from non-affiliatedikrs, (iii) directly originated an
immaterial amount of vehicle purchase money loaniebding money directly to consumers, and (ivedily originated an immaterial amoi
of loans secured by automobiles owned by consurtretkis report, we refer to all of such contraatsl loans as "automobile contracts."”

We were incorporated and began our operations irctvia991. We consist of Consumer Portfolio Servites and subsidiaries
(collectively, “we,” “us,” “CPS” or “the Company”}¥rom inception through December 31, 2013, we Ipawehased a total of approximately
$10.4 billion of automobile contracts from dealérsaddition, we acquired a total of approximat®822.3 million of automobile contracts in
mergers and acquisitions in 2002, 2003, 2004 amdt necently in September 2011. The September 86duisition consisted of
approximately $217.8 million of automobile contsattiat we purchased from Fireside Bank of Pleasa@alifornia. In 2004 and 2009, we
were appointed as a third-party servicer for carnpairtfolios of automobile contracts originated awhed by non-affiliated entities. From
2008 through 2010, our managed portfolio decreasetl year due to our strategy of limiting contaatchases to conserve our liquidity
during the financial crisis and resulting recessamdiscussed further below. However, since Octdd89, we have gradually increased
contract purchases, which, in turn, has resulteddreases in our managed portfolio. Contract pagsehvolumes and managed portfolio levels
for the five years ended December 31, 2013 are sliothe table below:

Contract Purchases and Outstanding Managed Portfoti

$ in thousand:

Contracts Purchased in Managed Portfolio at Period
Year Period End
2008 $ 296,81" $ 1,664,12;
2009 8,59¢ 1,194,72.
2010 113,02: 756,20:
2011 284,23t 794,64!
2012 551,74. 897,57"
2013 764,08 1,231,42;

We are headquartered in Irvine, California, whepsnoperational and administrative functions argredized. Most credit and
underwriting functions are performed in our Califiar headquarters with some credit functions peréatim our Florida and Nevada offices.
We service our automobile contracts from our Catifa headquarters and from three servicing branch¥gginia, Florida and lllinois.




We direct our marketing efforts primarily to dealerather than to consumers. We establish reldtipasvith dealers through our
employee marketing representatives, who contadpertive dealers to explain our automobile confracthase programs, and thereafter
provide dealer training and support services. Oanketing representatives represent us exclusiiélgy may be located either in our Irvine
headquarters or in the field, in which case theykwimm their homes and support dealers in thetrggephic area. Our marketing
representatives present dealers with a marketiokgggee, which includes our promotional material agring the terms offered by us for the
purchase of automobile contracts, a copy of ourdsted-form dealer agreement, and required docuriientaelating to automobile contracts.
As of December 31, 2013, we had 95 marketing reptatives and we were actively receiving appliceditrom 16,128 dealers in 48 states.
As of December 31, 2013, approximately 66% of ativa dealers were franchised new car dealersst#ibboth new and used vehicles, and
the remainder were independent used car dealersh&gears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, xprately 91% of the automobile
contracts purchased under our programs consistiidasicing for used cars and 9% consisted of fimapnfor new cars.

We purchase automobile contracts with the intendibfinancing them on a long-term basis througtusiéizations. Securitizations are
transactions in which we sell a specified poolaftcacts to a special purpose subsidiary of ouhéclwin turn issues assb&cked securities
fund the purchase of the pool of contracts fromDepending on the structure of the securitizatiba,transaction may be treated for financial
accounting purposes as a sale of the contracts aisacured financing.

We depend upon the availability of short-term warede credit facilities and access to long-termrfaiag through the issuance of asset-
backed securities collateralized by our automatnletracts. Since 1994, we have completed 61 tecorisizations of approximately $8.5
billion in contracts. From July 2003 through A2D08 all of our securitizations were structuredgesured financings. The second of our two
securitization transactions in 2008 (completedeépt&8mber 2008) was in substance a sale of thedetaintracts, and was treated as a sale for
financial accounting purposes. The remaining rexd#as from that September 2008 securitization wegecuritized in September 2010 in a
structure that maintained sale treatment for acwogmpurposes. In 2011, we completed three sezatitins of approximately $335.6 million
in newly originated contracts. During 2012 we coet@dl four securitizations of approximately $603iBiom in contracts, including $58.2
million in contracts that were repurchased from&@6d 2007 securitizations in 2012. In 2013 we deted four securitizations of
approximately $778.0 million in contracts. All ofilol2 securitizations from and after September 2@@ been structured as secured
financings.

From the fourth quarter of 2007 through the ené(Gff9, we observed unprecedented adverse chantfesnmarket for securitized pools
of automobile contracts. These changes includeacestiliquidity, and reduced demand for asset-baskedrities, particularly for securities
carrying a financial guaranty and for securitieskeal by sub-prime automobile receivables. Moreodwering that period many of the firms
that previously provided financial guarantees, Whiere an integral part of our securitizationspsumsled offering such guarantees. The
adverse changes that took place in the market fhenflourth quarter of 2007 through the end of 2683sed us to conserve liquidity by
significantly reducing our purchases of automobdetracts. However, since October 2009 we havélksttad new funding facilities and
gradually increased our contract purchases. Inédamtr 2010 we took advantage of the improvemetiitarmarket for assédtacked securitie
by re-securitizing the remaining underlying receiea from our unrated September 2008 securitizalibe September 2010 transaction was
our first rated term securitization since 1993 tfidtnot utilize a financial guaranty. Similarlypfn that point forward, all of our
securitizations have been structured without fimgrguarantees. Since February 2011, we have niaéutdawo $100 million warehouse cre
facilities with aggregate funding capacity of $2@0lion.

Sub-Prime Auto Finance Industry

Automobile financing is the second largest consufimance market in the United States. The autonedibilance industry can be divided
into two principal segments: a prime credit maied a sub-prime credit market. Traditional autorgofinance companies, such as
commercial banks, savings institutions, credit ngiand captive finance companies of automobile fiaatwrers, generally lend to the most
creditworthy, or so-called prime, borrowers. Thb-prime automobile credit market, in which we operarovides financing to less
creditworthy borrowers, at higher interest rates.

Historically, traditional lenders have not servid sub-prime market or have done so through progithat were not consistently
available. Independent companies specializing m@ime automobile financing and subsidiaries afjda financial services companies
currently compete in this segment of the automdiilence market, which we believe remains highgfnented, with no single company
having a dominant position in the market.




Recent past economic conditions have negativectdtl many aspects of our industry. First, aség@eve, throughout 2008 and 2009
there was reduced demand for asset-backed seswgtieired by consumer finance receivables, induslifo-prime automobile receivables.
Second, lenders who previously provided short-tearehouse financing for sub-prime automobile firmaempanies such as ours were
reluctant to provide such short-term financing tluthe uncertainty regarding the prospects of obtgilong-term financing through the
issuance of asset-backed securities. In additi@amyneapital market participants such as investrhanks, financial guaranty providers and
institutional investors who previously played aeroi the sulprime auto finance industry withdrew from the intlysor in some cases, cea:
to do business. Finally, broad economic weaknegshagh levels of unemployment during 2008, 2009 tiredeafter made many of the
obligors under our receivables less willing or ablgay, resulting in higher delinquencies, chavffs-and losses. Each of these factors has
adversely affected our results of operations. H@akeas stated above, since October 2009, improvisntethe capital markets have allowed
us to obtain new short-term credit facilities, aodegularly access long-term funding as demoresdrby the 12 rated term securitizations we
have completed since September 2010.

Our Operations

Our automobile financing programs are designe@rteessub-prime customers, who generally have lonitedit histories, low incomes
or past credit problems. Because we serve custoniersare unable to meet certain credit standardgneur greater risks, and generally
receive interest rates higher than those chargéteiprime credit market. We also sustain a hidgnaal of credit losses because of the higher
risk customers we serve.

Originations

When a retail automobile buyer elects to obtaiariiting from a dealer, the dealer takes a creditcgtipn to submit to its financing
sources. Typically, a dealer will submit the buy@pplication to more than one financing sourcadarew. We believe the dealer’s decision
to choose a financing source is based primarily(ipihe monthly payment made available to the eléatustomer; (ii) the purchase price
offered to the dealer for the contract; (iii) tiraeliness, consistency and predictability of resmor{iv) funding turnaround time; (v) any
conditions to purchase; and (vi) the financial sitgtof the financing source. Dealers can sendlitrapplications to us by entering the
necessary data on our website or through one @frakthird-party application aggregators. For tearyended December 31, 2013, we
received approximately 78% of all applications thghb DealerTrack (the industry leading dealershipiagtion aggregator), 5% via our
website and 17% via other aggregators. Our autalregiplication decisioning system produced ourahidiecision within minutes on
approximately 99% of those applications.

Upon receipt of information from a dealer, we imnagely order a credit report to document the bsyerdit history. If, upon review by
our proprietary automated decisioning system, aoime cases, one of our credit analysts, we daterthat the automobile contract meets
underwriting criteria, or would meet such criterih modification, we request and review furthefiormation and, ultimately, decide whether
to approve the automobile contract for purchase.

Dealers with which we do business are under n@atitin to submit any automobile contracts to us,ane we obligated to purchase any
automobile contracts from them. During the yearsenDecember 31, 2013, no dealer accounted for thare0.90% of the total number of
automobile contracts we purchased. The followilndetaets forth the geographical sources of themaoibile contracts we purchased (base
the addresses of the customers as stated on @andsgcluring the years ended December 31, 2012@h2.

Contracts Purchased During the Year Endec

December 31, 201. December 31, 201.
Number Percent (1) Number Percent (1)

California 5,17¢ 10.6% 4,86¢ 13.5%
Texas 4,91C 10.0% 3,42¢ 9.5%
Pennsylvani: 2,962 6.0% 3,32¢ 9.2%
lllinois 2,53¢ 5.2% 1,542 4.3%
Georgia 2,50 5.1% 1,791 5.0%
New Jerse 2,47¢ 5.1% 1,46( 4.1%
Other States 28,43( 58.0% 19,62! 54.5%

Total 48,99¢ 100.0% 36,03( 100.0%

(1) Percentages may not total to 100.0% due to rounc




The following table sets forth the geographic canicgions of our outstanding managed portfolio alB@cember 31, 2013 and 2012.

December 31, 201, December 31, 201,
Amount Percent (1) Amount Percent (1)
State based on obligor's residence (% in millions)

California $ 164.2 133%  $ 160.2 17.9%
Texas 123.c 10.0% 82.€ 9.2%
Pennsylvani: 73.2 6.0% 59.t 6.6%
Georgia 65.€ 5.3% 42.7 4.8%
Florida 56.2 4.6% 42.¢ 4.8%
All others 748.t 60.8% 509.¢ 56.8%

Total $ 1,231.¢ 100.0 $ 897.¢ 100.0%

(1) Percentages may not total to 100.0% due to rounc

We purchase automobile contracts from dealerspatea generally computed as the total amount firdnmder the automobile contracts,
adjusted for an acquisition fee, which may eitineréase or decrease the automobile contract pwghnae we pay. The amount of the
acquisition fee, and whether it results in an iaseeor decrease to the automobile contract purghase is based on the perceived credit risk
of and, in some cases, the interest rate on tleeraltile contract. The following table summarizes éiverage net acquisition fees we charged
dealers and the weighted average annual percergtggen our purchased contracts for the perioda/isho

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Average net acquisition fee amot $ 41€ 3 83€ $ 1,158 % 1,38. % 1,50¢
Average net acquisition fee as % of amount
financed 2.7% 5.5% 7.4% 9.2% 11.7%
Weighted average annual percentage interes 20.1% 20.3% 20.1% 20.1% 19.9%

We believe that levels of acquisition fees are mheitged partially by competition in the marketplaedich has increased somewhat since
2009, and also by our pricing strategy. Our prigtrgtegy is driven by our new contract purchaskyéeld objectives.

We offer seven different financing programs to dealership customers, and price each program aogotalthe relative credit risk. Our
programs cover a wide band of the credit spectmidhaae labeled as follows:

First Time Buyer This program accommodates an applicant who hagell significant past credit history, such asevpus auto loan.
Since the applicant has limited credit history, ¢batract interest rate and dealer acquisition feed to be higher, and the loan amount, loan-
to-value ratio, down payment and payment-to-incoatie requirements tend to be more restrictive carag to our other programs.

Mercury / Delta- This program accommodates an applicant who meag had significant past non-performing credit imthg recent
derogatory credit. As a result, the contract irderate and dealer acquisition fees tend to beehjgind the loan amount, loan-to-value ratio,
down payment, and payment-to-income ratio requirégmtend to be more restrictive compared to ouergpihograms.

Standard- This program accommodates an applicant who meg significant past non-performing credit, but wias also exhibited
some performing credit in their history. The contriaterest rate and dealer acquisition fees angpemable to the First Time Buyer and
Mercury/Delta programs, but the loan amount, laawglue ratio and down payment requirements areesdrat less restrictive.




Alpha-— This program accommodates applicants who may hakscharged bankruptcy, but who have also exhilperforming credit. |
addition, the program allows for homeowners who tnaye had other significant non-performing credlithe past. The contract interest rate
and dealer acquisition fees are lower than thedatahprogram, down payment and payment-to-incoti@ mraquirements are somewhat less
restrictive.

Alpha Plus- This program accommodates applicants with pastpasforming credit, but with a stronger historyre€ent performing
credit, including auto or mortgage related creatit] higher incomes than the Alpha program. Contréetest rates and dealer acquisition
are lower than the Alpha program.

Super Alpha- This program accommodates applicants with pastaesforming credit, but with a somewhat strongetdry of recent
performing credit, including auto or mortgage rethtredit, and higher incomes than the Alpha Ptagnam. Contract interest rates and
dealer acquisition fees are lower, and the maxirtaam amount is somewhat higher, than the Alpha plagram.

Preferred This program accommodates applicants with pastpeforming credit, but who demonstrate a somewtranger history of
recent performing credit than the Super Alpha progrContract interest rates and dealer acquidides are lower than the Super Alpha
program.

Our upper credit tier products, which are our Rref Super Alpha, Alpha Plus and Alpha prograrmepanted for approximately 74%
of our new contract originations in 2013, 72% il2@nd 77% in 2011, measured by aggregate amauantded.

The following table identifies the credit prograserted from highest to lowest credit quality, unaéich we purchased automobile
contracts during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Contracts Purchased During the Year Ended (1

December 31, 201, December 31, 201. December 31, 201.
(dollars in thousands)

Amount Amount Amount
Financed Percent (1) Financed Percent (1) Financed Percent (1)
Preferrec $ 25,13t 33% % 19,71 3.6% $ 9,97¢ 3.5%
Super Alphe 116,55: 15.3% 95,30: 17.3% 52,61( 18.5%
Alpha Plus 101,90° 13.3% 71,17: 12.9% 40,94« 14.4%
Alpha 320,55¢ 42.0% 213,37: 38.7% 114,32: 40.2%
Standarc 78,32( 10.3% 62,40¢ 11.3% 34,50¢ 12.1%
Mercury / Delts 66,65¢ 8.7% 52,071 9.4% 15,57¢ 5.5%
First Time Buyer 54,96( 7.2% 37,69¢ 6.8% 16,29t 5.7%
$ 764,08’ 100.0% $ 551,74. 100.0% $ 284,23t 100.0%

(1) Percentages may not total to 100.0% due to rounc

We attempt to control misrepresentation regardigcustomer's credit worthiness by carefully sdregthe automobile contracts we
purchase, by establishing and maintaining professibusiness relationships with dealers, and bludtieg certain representations and
warranties by the dealer in the dealer agreememsuidnt to the dealer agreement, we may requirddater to repurchase any automobile
contract in the event that the dealer breachesi®esentations or warranties. There can be noaws| however, that any dealer will have
willingness or the financial resources to satisfyrepurchase obligations to us.

In addition to our purchases of installment condiom dealers, we purchased from 2006 throug!8 200immaterial number of vehicle
purchase money loans, evidenced by promissory aoigsecurity agreements. A non-affiliated lendagioated all such loans directly to
vehicle purchasers, and sold the loans to us. Wearb&nancing vehicle purchases by lending monesctly to consumers in January 2008,
on terms similar to those that we offered throughlers, though without a down payment requiremedtvéith more restrictive loan-to-value
and credit score requirements. In October 2008uspended purchases of loans from other lenderdiagct lending to consumers. There
be no assurance as to whether or not we will recence these programs, the extent to which we maye magh loans, or as to their future
performance. In 2012, we initiated a program to endikect loans secured by automobiles to consumlessown their vehicles. As of
December 31, 2013 our managed portfolio include8 &fillion of such loans.




Underwriting

To be eligible for purchase, we require that thmruobile contract be originated by a dealer thatdretered into a dealer agreement with
us. The automobile contract must be secured bgtagiiority lien on a new or used automobile, tihick or passenger van and must meet
our underwriting criteria. In addition, each autdi® contract requires the customer to maintainsptal damage insurance covering the
financed vehicle and naming us as a loss payeendye nonetheless, suffer a loss upon theft or ghysiamage of any financed vehicle if
customer fails to maintain insurance as requirethbyautomobile contract and is unable to paydpairs to or replacement of the vehicle.

We believe that our underwriting criteria enablgaisvaluate effectively the creditworthiness df-puime customers and the adequac
the financed vehicle as security for an automodiletract. The underwriting criteria include start$afor price, term, amount of down
payment, installment payment and interest ratesage, age and type of vehicle; principal amounih@fautomobile contract in relation to the
value of the vehicle; customer income level, emplent and residence stability, credit history andtdervice ability, as well as other factc
Specifically, our underwriting guidelines generdiiyit the maximum principal amount of a purchasetiomobile contract to 115% of
wholesale book value in the case of used vehiglés ©15% of the manufacturer's invoice in the aafseew vehicles, plus, in each case, sales
tax, licensing and, when the customer purchasdsadditional items, a service contract or a pol@gupplement the customer’s casualty
policy in the event of a total loss of the relatethicle. We generally do not finance vehicles #iratmore than 11 model years old or have in
excess of 135,000 miles. Under most of our prograinesmaximum term of a purchased contract is 78th® a shorter maximum term may
be applicable based on the program and mileag@andalile contracts with the maximum term of up ton7@nths may be purchased if the
customer is among the more creditworthy of ourgis and the vehicle generally has less than 5010@&. Automobile contract purchase
criteria are subject to change from time to timeiesumstances may warrant. Prior to purchasingiaomobile contract, our underwriters
verify the customer's employment, income, residemsurance coverage, and credit information bytacting various parties noted on the
customer's application, credit information bureand other sources. In addition, we contact eactomes by telephone to confirm that the
customer understands and agrees to the terms oflttted automobile contract. During this " welcooad, " we also ask the customer a se
of open ended questions about his application laaaontract, which may uncover potential misrepregens.

Credit Scoring We use proprietary scoring models to assign aatbmobile contract several "credit scores" atitne the application
received from the dealer and the customer's ciegfditmation is retrieved from the credit reportiagencies. These proprietary scores are use
to help determine whether or not we want to apptbeeapplication and, if so, the program and pgcie will offer to the dealer. The credit
scores are based on a variety of parameters imgubtle customer's credit history, employment as@lemce stability, income, and the
specific dealer. Once a vehicle is selected byctistomer and a proposed deal structure is provwed by the dealer, our scores will then
consider the loan-to-value ratio, payment-to-incaat®, down payment amount, sales price and theernéthe vehicle. We have developed
the credit scores utilizing statistical risk managat techniques and historical performance data fsar managed portfolio. We believe this
improves our allocation of credit evaluation resas; enhances our competitiveness in the marketplad manages the risk inherent in the
sub-prime market.

Characteristics of Contracts.All of the automobile contracts we purchase atly amortizing and provide for level payments otres
term of the automobile contract. All automobile trants may be prepaid at any time without pendlhe average original principal amount
financed under the CPS programs in 2013 was $15y@#5an average original term of 61 months an@werage down payment amount of
12.7%. Based on information contained in custorpetieations for this 12-month period, the retaitghase price of the related automobiles
averaged $15,906 (which excludes tax, licensedadsany additional costs such as a service coptmadtthe average age of the vehicle a
time the automobile contract was purchased wasyfdags. The average age of our customers is appabely 42, with approximately $57,C
in average annual household income and an avefagpe years tenure with his or her current employer

Dealer Compliance The dealer agreement and related assignmerdingspresentations and warranties by the dead¢iathapplicatiol
for state registration of each financed vehiclenimg us as secured party with respect to the vehichs effected by the time of sale of the
related automobile contract to us, and that aleesary steps have been taken to obtain a perféstiepriority security interest in each
financed vehicle in favor of us under the lawshef state in which the financed vehicle is registef® the extent that we do not receive such
state registration within three months of purchggire automobile contract, our dealer complianceigmwvill work with the dealer in an
attempt to rectify the situation. If these effaate unsuccessful, we generally will require thdefea repurchase the automobile contract.




Servicing and Collection

We currently service all automobile contracts tliatown as well as those automobile contracts tieaingluded in portfolios that we
have sold in securitizations or service for thiedtigs. We organize our servicing activities basedhe tasks performed by our personnel.
servicing activities consist of mailing monthlylbib statements; collecting, accounting for andtipgsof all payments received; respondin
customer inquiries; taking all necessary actiom#intain the security interest granted in the foeghvehicle or other collateral; investigating
delinquencies; communicating with the customertttaim timely payments; repossessing and liquidatiegcollateral when necessary;
collecting deficiency balances; and generally naing each automobile contract and the relatechtmthl. We are typically entitled to
receive a base monthly servicing fee equal to 208%@nnum computed as a percentage of the declnitsganding principal balance of the
non-charged-off automobile contracts in the seizattibn pools The servicing fee is included in interest incomethmse securitization
transactions that are treated as financings.

Collection Procedures.We believe that our ability to monitor performarand collect payments owed from sub-prime custsiiser
primarily a function of our collection approach asupport systems. We believe that if payment problare identified early and our
collection staff works closely with customers talegbs these problems, it is possible to correctyrpaoblems before they deteriorate further.
To this end, we utilize pro-active collection prdaees, which include making early and frequent acinivith delinquent customers; educating
customers as to the importance of maintaining gwedit; and employing a consultative and custoreerise approach to assist the customer
in meeting his or her obligations, which includéempting to identify the underlying causes of deliency and cure them whenever poss
In support of our collection activities, we maimta computerized collection system specificallyigiesd to service automobile contracts with
sub-prime customers and similar consumer obligation

We attempt to make telephonic contact with delimjueistomers from one to 15 days after their mgrnpllyment due date, depending
our proprietary behavioral scorecards which astessustomer’s likelihood of payment during eatges of delinquency. Our contact
priorities may be based on the customers' phy&ication, stage of delinquency, size of balancetber parameters. Our collectors inquire of
the customer the reason for the delinquency anchwilgecan expect to receive the payment. The colleatl attempt to get the customer to
make an electronic payment over the phone or aigeofar the payment for a time generally not toeeatone week from the date of the call.
If the customer makes such a promise, the acceuntited to a promise queue and is not contactiidthm outcome of the promise is knov
If the payment is made by the promise date an@d¢keunt is no longer delinquent, the account isegout of the collection system. If the
payment is not made, or if the payment is madeth®iaccount remains delinquent, the accountismed to the queue for subsequent
contacts.

If a customer fails to make or keep promises fgmpents, or if the customer is uncooperative omapits to evade contact or hide the
vehicle, a supervisor will review the collectiortigity relating to the account to determine if rgpession of the vehicle is warranted.
Generally, such a decision will occur between b @nd 90th day past the customer's payment deelil# could occur sooner or later,
depending on the specific circumstances. At the tine vehicle is repossessed we will stop accrmitegest on this automobile contract, and
reclassify the remaining automobile contract bagatacother assets. In addition we will apply a ffeweserve to this automobile contract so
that the net balance represents the estimateddhie less costs to sell.

If we elect to repossess the vehicle, we assigtatfieto an independent local repossession seiSigeh services are licensed and/or
bonded as required by law. When the vehicle isvexl, the repossession service delivers it to@eshle automobile auction, where it is
kept until sold. Financed vehicles that have bepossessed are generally resold through unaftiliat¢omobile auctions, which are attended
principally by car dealers. Net liquidation proceedle applied to the customer's outstanding oldigainder the automobile contract. Such
proceeds usually are insufficient to pay the custtrobligation in full, resulting in a deficiendy. most cases we will continue to contact our
customers to recover all or a portion of this deficy for up to several years after charge-off.

Once an automobile contract becomes greater thaa@ddelinquent, we do not recognize additionarést income until the borrower
makes sufficient payments to be less than 90 delsaqiient. Any payments received by a borrower #inatgreater than 90 days delinquent
are first applied to accrued interest and therritecjpal reduction.

We generally charge off the balance of any contogdhe earlier of the end of the month in whick #utomobile contract becomes five
scheduled installments past due or, in the casepafssessions, the month that we receive the pedemm the liquidation of the financed
vehicle or if the vehicle has been in repossessieantory for more than three months. In the cdsemossession, the amount of the charge-
off is the difference between the outstanding ppaicbalance of the defaulted automobile contradt the net repossession sale proceeds.




Credit Experience

Our financial results are dependent on the perfaoeaf the automobile contracts in which we retairownership interest. Broad
economic factors such as recession and signifat@aniges in unemployment levels influence the cresfiformance of our portfolio, as does
the weighted average age of the receivables agjiey time. Our internal credit performance datasistently show that new receivables
have lower levels of delinquency and losses earthéir lives, with delinquencies increasing thrioogt their lives and losses gradually
increasing to a peak between 36 and 42 months,vaffieh they gradually decrease. The weighted aeeseasoning of our total owned
portfolio excluding contracts acquired from FiresBank (“Fireside Portfolio”), represented in thbles below, was 14 months, 18 months
and 27 months as of December 31, 2013, Decemb@032, and December 31, 2011, respectively. Oungoyy method of monitoring
ongoing credit quality of our portfolio is to cldgeeview monthly delinquency, default and net gjeaoff activity and the related trends. The
tables below document the delinquency, repossessidmet credit loss experience of all such autdi@abntracts that we were servicing as
of the respective dates shown. The tables do wchide the experience of third party servicing pitf.

Delinquency, Repossession and Extension Experience
Delinquency and Extension Experience (1)
Total Owned Portfolio Excluding Fireside Portfolio

December 31, 201. December 31, 201, December 31, 201,
Number of Number of Number of
Contracts Amount Contracts Amount Contracts Amount
Delinquency Experienc (Dollars in thousands)
Gross servicing portfolio (1 94,20¢ $ 1,213,79 74,12¢ $ 825,18t 69,76t $ 588,99:
Period of delinquency (¢
31-60 days 2,652 21,881 2,54¢ 18,03¢ 2,051 10,70¢
61-90 days 2,02¢ 24,91« 1,17¢ 9,36( 1,03¢ 6,57
91+ days 1,162 11,06( 775 5,297 1,601 8,90¢
Total delinquencies (- 5,83¢ 57,86! 4,49 32,69 4,69( 26,19(
Amount in repossession (3) 2,961 25,01( 1,932 12,50¢ 2,21¢ 10,09
Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession (2) 8,79¢ $ 82,87’ 6,42¢ $  4519% 6,906 $ 36,287
Delinquencies as a percentage of gri
servicing portfolio 6.2% 4.8% 6.1% 4.0% 6.7% 4.4%
Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession as a percentage of ¢
servicing portfolio 9.3% 6.8% 8.7% 5.5% 9.9% 6.2%
Extension Experienc
Contracts with one extension, accrui
4) 13,75¢ $ 176,23 9,094 $ 73,63 12,18: $ 75,15
Contracts with two or more extensior
accruing (4). 5,44¢ 43,86¢ 7,79t 37,76: 10,51 67,98:
19,20: 220,10¢ 16,88¢ 111,39 22,69¢ 143,14
Contracts with one extension, non-
accrual (4) 1,03( 9,34¢ 632 4,401 1,211 5,91¢
Contracts with two or more extensior
non-accrual (4) 622 3,267 1,044 4,34¢ 2,05¢ 10,73;
1,652 12,61 1,67¢ 8,74¢ 3,26¢ 16,65¢
Total accounts with extensions 20,858 $ 232,72 18,56 $ 120,13¢ 2596: $ 159,79




Delinquency Experienc

Gross servicing portfolio (1

Period of delinquency (¢

31-60 days

61-90 days

91+ days

Total delinquencies (Z

Amount in repossession (3)

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession (2)

Delinquencies as a percentage of gr
servicing portfolio

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession as a percentage of ¢
servicing portfolio

Extension Experienc

Contracts with one extension, accrui
(4)

Contracts with two or more extensior
accruing (4)

Contracts with one extension, non-
accrual (4)

Contracts with two or more extensior
non-accrual (4)

Total accounts with extensions

Delinquency and Extension Experience (1)
Fireside Portfolio

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Number of Number of Number of
Contracts Amount Contracts Amount Contracts Amount
(Dollars in thousands)
4,89: $ 14,78¢ 15,03¢ $ 60,80« 33,25¢ $ 172,24¢
36¢€ 87¢ 621 2,20¢ 1,08¢ 4,87z
12& 25¢& 204 71C 42C 1,767
10¢€ 234 114 332 261 90¢&
59¢ 1,36¢ 93¢ 3,24¢ 1,76¢ 7,54:
30 12C 17¢E 703 22€ 1,481
62¢ $ 1,48¢ 1,11« $ 3,951 1,99t $ 9,02:
12.2% 9.2% 6.2% 5.3% 5.3% 4.4
12.9% 10.0% 7.4% 6.5% 6.0% 5.2
1,202 $ 3,94¢ 3,117 $ 15,26: 724 $ 4,462
68t 2,92¢ 134 717 2 8
1,88¢ 6,86¢ 3,251 15,97¢ 72€ 4,47(
60 15& 16C 72¢€ 3 25
35 11¢€ 6 20 0 0
95 273 16€ 74¢€ 3 25
1,98: $ 7,14 3,417 $ 16,72°¢ 72¢ $ 4,49¢




Delinquency Experienc

Gross servicing portfolio (1

Period of delinquency (¢

31-60 days

61-90 days

91+ days

Total delinquencies (...

Amount in repossession (3)

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession (2)

Delinquencies as a percentage of gri
servicing portfolio

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession as a percentage of ¢
servicing

Extension Experienc

Contracts with one extension, accrui
(4)

Contracts with two or more extensior
accruing (4)

Contracts with one extension, non-
accrual (4)

Contracts with two or more extensior
non-accrual (4)

Total accounts with extensions

Delinquency and Extension Experience (1)
Total Owned Portfolio

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Number of Number of Number of
Contracts Amount Contracts Amount Contracts Amount
(Dollars in thousands)

99,09¢ $ 1,228,57! 89,16: $ 885,99 103,02: $ 761,24:
3,01¢ 22,76¢ 3,16¢ 20,24( 3,13¢ 15,58:
2,14¢ 25,167 1,38¢ 10,07( 1,45¢ 8,33¢
1,27( 11,29¢ 887 5,62¢ 1,862 9,811
6,437 59,22¢ 5,43¢ 35,93¢ 6,45¢ 33,73:
2,991 23,13( 2,107 13,20¢ 2,44¢ 11,57¢
9,42¢ $ 82,35¢ 7,54: $ 49,147 8,90: $ 45,30¢
6.5% 4.8% 6.1% 4.1% 6.3% 4.4%
9.5% 6.7% 8.5% 5.5% 8.6% 6.0%
14,957 $ 180,18: 12,21 $ 88,89 12,907 $ 79,617
6,13¢ 46,79: 7,92¢ 38,47¢ 10,517 67,99¢
21,09 226,97 20,14( 127,37: 23,42¢ 147,61
1,09( 9,50: 792 5,127 1,21« 5,94:
657 3,38t 1,05( 4,36¢ 2,05¢ 10,737
1,747 12,88¢ 1,842 9,491 3,26¢ 16,68(
22,83¢ $ 239,86 21,98: $ 136,86 26,69: $ 164,29:

(1) All amounts and percentages are based on the amearaining to be repaid on each automobile contramtluding, for pr-computed
automobile contracts, any unearned interest. Thearination in the table represents the gross priatgmount of all automobile
contracts we purchased, including automobile coetsave subsequently sold in securitization trarieastthat we continue to service.
The table does not include certain contracts weetsarviced for third-parties on which we earn seing fees only, and have no credit

risk.

(2) We consider an automobile contract delinquelmémvan obligor fails to make at least 90% of a cactually due payment by the
following due date, which date may have been ertmdthin limits specified in the servicing agreense The period of delinquency
based on the number of days payments are contificpest due. Automobile contracts less than 31sdislinquent are not included. 1
delinquency aging categories shown in the tablfiecethe effect of extensior

(3) Amount in repossession represents the contracinisalan financed vehicles that have been repossessenbt yet liquidatec

(4) Accounts past due more than 90 days are ol-accrual.
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Net Credit Loss Experience (1)
Total Owned Portfolio Excluding Fireside

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Average servicing portfolio outstandil $ 1,044,68 % 699,03( $ 597,54t
Net charg-offs as a percentage of average servicing port{@lc $ 4.7% 3.5% 5.8%
Net Credit Loss Experience (1)
Fireside Portfolio (3)
Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Average servicing portfolio outstandil $ 31,29  $ 103,54¢ $ 191,28¢
Net charg-offs as a percentage of average servicing port{@lic $ 554  $ 45% $ 5.1%
Net Credit Loss Experience (1)
Total Owned Portfolio (3)
Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Average servicing portfolio outstandil $ 1,075,970 $ 802,57¢ $ 788,83!
Net charg-offs as a percentage of average servicing port{@l $ 4.7% 3.6% 4.8%

(1) All amounts and percentages are based on the pé@hemount scheduled to be paid on each automabitéract, net of unearne
income on pre-computed automobile contracts. Tfanmation in the table represents all automobil@tracts we service, excluding

certain contracts we have serviced for tl-parties on which we earn servicing fees only, aadeno credit risk

(2) Net charg-offs include the remaining principal balance, aftee application of the net proceeds from theiliigtion of the vehicle
(excluding accrued and unpaid interest) and amounttected subsequent to the date of chasffeincluding some recoveries which h.

been classified as other income in the accomparfymagcial statement:

(3 Amounts and percentages associated with the FiedBaitfolio reflect only the period after the acsjtion of the portfolio in Septemb

2011.

Extensions

In certain circumstances we will grant obligors -eanenth payment extensions to assist them with teerga@ash flow problems. In
general, an obligor would not be entitled to mdwnttwo such extensions in any 12-month periodrenchore than six over the life of the

contract. The only modification of terms is to adw@ the obligor's next due date by one month anenekthe maturity date of the receivable

by one month. In some cases, a two-month extemsanbe granted. There are no other concessionsasugheduction in interest rate,
forgiveness of principal or of accrued interestcéwlingly, we consider such extensions to be inBaamt delays in payments rather than

troubled debt restructurings.
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The basic question in deciding to grant an extensiavhether or not we will (a) be delaying an iitelvle repossession and liquidation or
(b) risk losing the vehicle as a result of not lgedible to locate the obligor and vehicle. In bdtkhose situations, the loss would likely be
higher than if the vehicle had been repossessdubutithe extension. The benefits of granting aemsibn include minimizing current losses
and delinquencies, minimizing lifetime losses, iggtthe obligor's account current (or close taaitd building goodwill with the obligor so
that he might prioritize us over other creditorsfature payments. Our servicing staff are trairedlentify when a past due obligor is facin
temporary problem that may be resolved with anresita. In most cases, the extension will be graimtednjunction with our receiving a
past due payment (and where allowed by law, a nalinfiée) from the obligor, thereby indicating an itiddal monetary and psychological
commitment to the contract on the obligor's page§ collected in conjunction with an extensioncaeglited to obligors’ outstanding accrued
interest.

The credit assessment for granting an extensiunitiglly made by our collector, who bases the raotendation on the collector’s
discussions with the obligor. In such assessmaéstsdllector will consider, among other things, fillélowing factors: (1) the reason the
obligor has fallen behind in payments; (2) whethvenot the reason for the delinquency is temporang, if it is, have conditions changed s
that the obligor can begin making regular monttdyrpents again after the extension; (3) the obbgma'st payment history, including past
extensions if applicable; and (4) the obligor'sliwngness to communicate and cooperate on resothiaglelinquency. If the collector believes
the obligor is a good candidate for an extensiemmlust obtain approval from his supervisor, wha reiew the same factors stated above
prior to offering the extension to the obligor. éftreceiving an extension, an account remains sutgj@ur normal policies and procedures
interest accrual, reporting delinquency and recggicharge-offs.

We believe that a prudent extension program isiwgral component to mitigating losses in our mdidfof sub-prime automobile
receivables. The table below summarizes the statusf December 31, 2013, for accounts that redesxéensions from 2008 through 2012:

% Charged % Charged
Active or % Active or Charged Of Off > 6 Charged Of Off <6 Avg Months
Paid Offat  Paid Offat > 6 Months Months < 6 Months Months to Charge Of

Period of # Extension  December  December After After After After Post
Extension Granted 31, 201% 31, 201% Extensior Extensior Extensior Extensior Extensior
2008 35,58¢ 11,27¢ 31.7% 19,29: 54.2% 4,81¢ 13.5% 18
2009 32,00¢ 11,13 34.8% 15,31 47.8% 5,78: 18.1% 15
2010 22,59: 13,29¢ 58.9% 10,87( 48.1% 1,99¢ 8.8% 16
2011 17,00: 12,31: 72.4% 5,54: 32.6% 932 5.5% 15
2012 18,78: 14,29( 76.1% 3,69i 19.7% 79€ 4.2% 10

Table excludes extensions on portfolios servicethfcd parties

We view these results as a confirmation of theotiffeness of our extension program. For the accotatieiving extensions in 2008,
2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, 31.7%, 34.8%, 58.994% and 76.1%, respectively, were either paid ihdubkre active and performing at
December 31, 2013. With each of these successtiehsions we received continued payments of intemrestprincipal (including payment in
full in many cases). Without the extension, howewer would have likely incurred a substantial lassl no additional interest revenue.

For extension accounts that ultimately chargedwséf consider accounts that charged off more thamsiths after the extension to be at
least partially successful. For the 2008, 200902@011 and 2012 extensions that charged off, hlaege off was incurred, on average, 18,
16, 15 and 10 months, respectively, after the esxden This indicates that even in the cases ofiimate loss, we received additional
payments of principal and interest that otherwisewould not have received.
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Additional information about our extensions is pd®d in the tables below:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2013 2012 2011
Average number of extensions granted per m 1,95(C 1,56t 1,415
Average number of outstanding accot 93,247 93,02: 86,28:
Average monthly extensions as % of average outstga 2.1% 1.7% 1.6%
Table excludes extensions on portfolios servicethfcd parties
December 31, 201 December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Number of Number of Number of
Contracts Amount Contracts Amount Contracts Amount

(Dollars in thousands

Contracts with one extensit 16,047 $ 189,68 13,000 % 94,02 14,12: % 85,56(
Contracts with two extensiol 4,397 38,49¢ 4,801 23,21 7,72( 48,61¢
Contracts with three extensio 1,48¢ 7,79( 2,822 13,09¢ 3,65¢ 22,718
Contracts with four extensiol 634 2,51¢ 1,13« 5,371 1,082 6,61¢
Contracts with five extensior 224 1,05¢ 19¢ 1,03¢ 101 66=
Contracts with six extensions 50 30¢ 26 124 15 117

2283t $ 239,86( 2198. $ 136,86 26,69 $ 164,29
Gross servicing portfoli 99,09¢ $ 1,228,57 89,16 $ 885,99: 103,02. $ 761,24

Table excludes extensions on portfolios servicethfcd parties
Nor-Accrual Receivables

It is not uncommon for our obligors to fall behimdtheir payments. However, with the diligent effoof our servicing staff and systems
for managing our collection efforts, we regularlgniv with our customers to resolve delinquencies. €aff is trained to employ a counseling
approach to assist our customers with their casi fhanagement skills and help them to prioritizsrthayment obligations in order to avoid
losing their vehicle to repossession. Through ogeeence, we have learned that once a contracinies greater than 90 days past due, it is
more likely than not that the delinquency will h& resolved and will ultimately result in a chanfé-As a result, we do not recognize any
interest income or retain on our balance sheetanyued interest for contracts that are greater 9@adays past due.

If an obligor exceeds the 90 days past due thrdsdtahe end of one period, and then makes thessagepayments such that it becomes
equal to or below 90 days delinquent at the eral safbsequent period, the related contract wouldg&tered to full accrual status for our
financial reporting purposes. At the time a coritiacestored to full accrual in this manner, thes@ be no assurance that full repayment of
interest and principal will ultimately be made. Hoxer, we monitor each obligor’'s payment performaaue are aware of the severity of his
delinquency at any time. The fact that the delimgpyehas been reduced below the 90-day threshalgsitive indicator. Should the contract
again exceed the 90-day delinquency level at thleoéany reporting period, it would again be refgtas a non-accrual account.

Our policy for placing a contract on non-accrualss is independent of our policy to grant an esitam In practice, it would be an

uncommon circumstance where an extension was granig the account remained in a non-accrual stsituse the goal of the extension is to
bring the contract current (or nearly current).

13




Securitization of Automobile Contracts

We purchase automobile contracts with the intentibiinancing them on a long-term basis througtusiizations. All such
securitizations have involved identification of sifie automobile contracts, sale of those auton@bdntracts (and associated rights) to a
special purpose subsidiary, and issuance of assetedd securities to fund the transactions. Upors#oaritization of a portfolio of
automobile contracts, we retain the obligationdrvige the contracts, and receive a monthly feelédng so. We have been a regular issuer of
asset-backed securities since 1994, completingédritizations totaling over $8.5 billion througke@mber 31, 2013. Depending on the
structure of the securitization, the transactioty ima treated for financial accounting purposeseeitis a sale of the automobile contracts or as
a secured financing. From July 2003 through A0, we structured our securitizations as secuneah€ings rather than as sales of
contracts. The second of our two securitizatiomaeted in 2008 (September 2008) was in substasetezof the related contracts, and is
treated as a sale for financial accounting purpdseSeptember 2010 we took advantage of improvéinethe market for asset-backed
securities by re-securitizing the underlying reabies from our unrated September 2008 securitizalibis transaction was our first rated
term securitization since 1993 that did not utigzBnancial guaranty. In 2011, we completed tleeeuritizations of approximately $335.6
million in newly originated contracts. During 202 completed four securitizations of approximat&#p3.5 million in contracts, including
$58.2 million in contracts that were repurchase@dh?2 from securitizations completed in 2006 an@720n 2013 we completed four
securitizations of approximately $778.0 milliondontracts. From 2011 through the present, all ofseguritizations have been structured as
secured financings.

When a securitization is structured to be treated secured financing, the subsidiary is consailand, accordingly, the automobile
contracts and the related securitization trust deptar as assets and liabilities, respectivelypusrconsolidated balance sheet. We then
recognize interest income on the contracts anddstexpense on the securities issued in the sieation and record as expense a provision
for probable incurred credit losses on the corgract

When a securitization is structured to be treated sale, the subsidiary is not consolidated. Adingly, the securitization removes the
sold automobile contracts from our consolidatecbed sheet, the related debt does not appear aelotjand our consolidated balance sheet
shows, as an asset, a retained residual interé&st isold automobile contracts. The residual isterepresents the discounted value of wha
expect will be the excess of future collectiongtosautomobile contracts over principal and intede® on the asset-backed securities. That
residual interest appears on our consolidated balaheet as "residual interest in securitizatioasd' the determination of its value is
dependent on our estimates of the future performaithe sold automobile contracts.

Generally, prior to a securitization transactionfured our automobile contract purchases primarity\wroceeds from warehouse credit
facilities. Since October 2009, we have establistes funding facilities and gradually increased comtract purchases. We increased our
short-term funding capacity by $200 million withetestablishment of a $100 million credit facilityDecember 2010 and an additional $100
million credit facility in February 2011. In May 2@, the revolving period of the February 2011 facéxpired and we entered into a new
$100 million credit facility with a different lendeln March 2013, the December 2010 facility wasaded to extend the revolving period to
March 2015 and to include an amortization periadulgh March 2017 for any receivables pledged tddbdity at the end of the revolving
period. In June 2013, the May 2012 facility was adezl to extend the revolving period to June 20Xbtarinclude an amortization period
through June 2016 for any receivables pledgedadatility at the end of the revolving period. Quirrent maximum revolving warehouse
financing capacity is $200 million.

In a securitization and in our warehouse credilifass, we are required to make certain repregenria and warranties, which are
generally similar to the representations and waieamade by dealers in connection with our pureltdghe automobile contracts. If we
breach any of our representations or warrantiesyilde obligated to repurchase the automobileticat at a price equal to the principal
balance plus accrued and unpaid interest. We neaylib entitled under the terms of our dealer agee¢to require the selling dealer to
repurchase the contract at a price equal to owthaise price, less any principal payments madeéyguktomer. Subject to any recourse
against dealers, we will bear the risk of lossepossession and resale of vehicles under autonmbiteacts that we repurchase.

Whether a securitization is treated as a secuneshding or as a sale for financial accounting psegothe related special purpose
subsidiary may be unable to release excess cashitahe credit performance of the securitizededbile contracts falls short of pre-
determined standards. Such releases representaahportion of the cash that we use to fund querations. An unexpected deterioration in
the performance of securitized automobile contrectsd therefore have a material adverse effediath our liquidity and results of
operations, regardless of whether such automobiléracts are treated as having been sold or aadéeien financed. For estimation of the
magnitude of such risk, it may be appropriate tklto the size of our "managed portfolio," whiclpmesents both financed and sold
automobile contracts as to which such credit stetained. Our managed portfolio as of DecembgeB13 was approximately $1,231.4
million, including $4.9 million of receivables orhich we earn only servicing fees.
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Competition

The automobile financing business is highly contpyeti We compete with a number of national, regi@mal local finance companies
with operations similar to ours. In addition, cortifmes or potential competitors include other typé$inancial services companies, such as
commercial banks, savings and loan associatioasirlg companies, credit unions providing retaihlfiaancing and lease financing for new
and used vehicles, and captive finance companiifiated with major automobile manufacturers. Masfyour competitors and potential
competitors possess substantially greater fingneiatketing, technical, personnel and other ressuiitan we do. Moreover, our future
profitability will be directly related to the avability and cost of our capital in relation to eailability and cost of capital to our competitc
Our competitors and potential competitors inclualeldrger, more established companies that hawesado capital markets for unsecured
commercial paper and investment grade-rated dettiments and to other funding sources that maynbeailable to us. Many of these
companies also have long-standing relationshipls @é@lers and may provide other financing to dealecluding floor plan financing for the
dealers' purchase of automobiles from manufactundreh we do not offer.

We believe that the principal competitive factoifeeting a dealer's decision to offer automobilatcacts for sale to a particular financ
source are the monthly payment amount made avaitatihe dealer’s customer, the purchase priceenffeor the automobile contracts, the
timeliness of the response to the dealer upon sgbom of the initial application, the amount ofuggd documentation, the consistency and
timeliness of purchases and the financial stahilftthe funding source. While we believe that we ohtain from dealers sufficient automol
contracts for purchase at attractive prices by istergtly applying reasonable underwriting criteaied making timely purchases of qualifying
automobile contracts, there can be no assurantevéhaill do so.

Regulation

Several federal and state consumer protection lamsiding the federal Truth-In-Lending Act, thedéral Equal Credit Opportunity Act,
the federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act #melFederal Trade Commission Act, regulate consumaeslit transactions. These laws
mandate certain disclosures with respect to finahegges on automobile contracts and impose cesthar restrictions. In many states, a
license is required to engage in the business mhaising automobile contracts from dealers. Intaatdilaws in a number of states impose
limitations on the amount of finance charges thayime charged by dealers on credit sales. Thellmdaemon Laws enacted by various
states provide certain rights to purchasers wipeet to automobiles that fail to satisfy expreasranties. The application of Lemon Laws or
violation of such other federal and state laws migg rise to a claim or defense of a customer agaealer and its assignees, including us
and those who purchase automobile contracts frormihesdealer agreement contains representatiottsebyealer that, as of the date of
assignment of automobile contracts, no such claindefenses have been asserted or threatenedesjibat to the automobile contracts and
that all requirements of such federal and stats laawe been complied with in all material respeiithough a dealer would be obligated to
repurchase automobile contracts that involve adbreéd such warranty, there can be no assurancéhatealer will have the financial
resources to satisfy its repurchase obligationsta®eof these laws also regulate our servicingvaigs, including our methods of collection.

In July 2010 the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform @whsumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) beealaw. The Dodd-Frank Act
restructured the regulation and supervision offitiencial services industry and created the Consuimancial Protection Bureau (the
“CFPB"). The CFPB has rulemaking and enforcemetta@ity over “non-banks,” including us. Many of theovisions of the Dodérrank Ac
have extended implementation periods and delayfedtefe dates and will require extensive rulemakifig a result, the ultimate effect of the
Dodd-Frank Act on our business cannot be determamdhis time. We believe that we are currentlyniaterial compliance with applicable
statutes and regulations; however, there can lessuarance that we are correct, nor that we widllide to maintain such compliance. The past
or future failure to comply with applicable stati#nd regulations could have a material adversetedh us. Furthermore, the adoption of
additional statutes and regulations, changes iimntieepretation and enforcement of current statatesregulations or the expansion of our
business into jurisdictions that have adopted rstiiegent regulatory requirements than those irctviare currently conduct business could
have a material adverse effect on us. In additiae, to the consumer-oriented nature of our industiy the application of certain laws and
regulations, industry participants are regularlyned as defendants in litigation involving allegéalations of federal and state laws and
regulations and consumer law torts, including fraddny of these actions involve alleged violatiehi€onsumer protection laws. A
significant judgment against us or within the intyén connection with any such litigation couldviesa material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or lidity.
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Employee!

As of December 31, 2013, we had 705 employeesbidakdown of the employees is as follows: 10 werés management personnel;
348 were servicing personnel; 172 were automoloifdract origination personnel; 119 were marketiagspnnel (95 of whom were market
representatives); 22 were operations and systerssmueel; and 34 were administrative personnel. Aliebe that our relations with our
employees are good. We are not a party to anyatisléebargaining agreement.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business, operating results and financial ¢adcould be adversely affected by any of theolwlhg specific risks. The trading price
of our common stock could decline due to any of¢hiesks and other industry risks. This listingisks by its nature cannot be exhaustive,
and the order in which the risks appear is nohidéel as an indication of their relative weightraportance. In addition to the risks described
below, we may encounter risks that we do not ctiyeacognize or that we currently deem immatemdijch may also impair our business
operations and the value of our common stock.

Risks Related to Our Business
We Require a Substantial Amount of Cash to Servic®ur Substantial Debt.

To service our existing substantial indebtednessteguire a significant amount of cash. Our abtlitgenerate cash depends on many
factors, including our successful financial andraiag performance. Our financial and operatioreafgrmance depends upon a number of
factors, many of which are beyond our control. Bhiestors include, without limitation:

« the economic and competitive conditions in the talsaeked securities market;

« the performance of our current and future autoneotiintracts;

« the performance of our residual interests fromsmauritizations and warehouse credit facilities;
« any operating difficulties or pricing pressuresmway experience;

« our ability to obtain credit enhancement for owrséizations;

« our ability to establish and maintain dealer relaships;

« the passage of laws or regulations that affecdusraely;

« our ability to compete with our competitors; and

« our ability to acquire and finance automobile caats.

Depending upon the outcome of one or more of tfeers, we may not be able to generate suffiatash flow from operations or
obtain sufficient funding to satisfy all of our @mtions. Such factors may result in our being Um&i pay our debts timely or as agreed. If
were unable to pay our debts, we would be requoguiirsue one or more alternative strategies, asdelling assets, refinancing or
restructuring our indebtedness or selling additiegaity capital. These alternative strategies migit be feasible at the time, might prove
inadequate, or could require the prior consentoflenders. If executed, these strategies couldoethe earnings available to our
shareholders.

We Need Substantial Liquidity to Operate Our Businss.

We have historically funded our operations printtyptinrough internally generated cash flows, saledebt and equity securities,
including through securitizations and warehouseitfacilities, borrowings under senior securedtdaireements and sales of subordinated
notes. However, we may not be able to obtain gefiifunding for our future operations from suchi®es. During 2008, 2009 and much of
2010, our access to the capital markets was ingbairéh respect to both short-term and long-terndfang. While our access to such funding
has improved since then, our results of operatifimsncial condition and cash flows have been aagl oontinue to be materially and
adversely affected. We require a substantial amofucash liquidity to operate our business. Amotigeothings, we use such cash liquidity
to:

. acquire automobile contracts;

. fund overcollateralization in warehouse credit liies and securitizations;
. pay securitization fees and expenses;

. fund spread accounts in connection with securitnat

. satisfy working capital requirements and pay opegaéxpenses;

. pay taxes; and

. pay interest expense.
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Historically we have matched our liquidity needoto available sources of funding by reducing aquasition of new automobile
contracts, at times to merely nominal levels. Theene be no assurance that we will continue to beessful with that strategy.

Recent History of Significant Losses.

Until the fourth quarter of 2011, we had incurred losses every quarter beginning with the quaneled September 30, 2008. We were
adversely affected by the economic recession dfigthe United States as a whole, until recentlynioyeased financing costs and decreased
availability of capital to fund our purchases ofauobile contracts, and by a decrease in the dvexal of sales of automobiles and light
trucks. We expect to earn quarterly profits du20d.4; however, there can be no assurance as texpattation. Our expectation of
profitability is a forward-looking statement. Wesduss the assumptions underlying that expectatidenthe caption “Forward-Looking
Statements” in this report. We identify importaattors that could cause actual results to diffenegally in the “Risk Factors” section of this
report, and also under the caption “Forward-Lookstgtements.”

For the year ended December 31, 2013, our pretaxia was $37.2 million, compared to pretax inco®a2 million for the year 2012
and a pretax loss of $14.5 million for the year R0Qur net income for 2013 was $21.0 million, or6%0per diluted share, compared to net
income for 2012 of $69.4 million, or $2.72 per t#d share, and a net loss of $14.5 million, or 8@&r diluted share, for 2011. Net income
for 2012 includes an income tax benefit of $60.2iom, or $2.36 per diluted share, related to reaéof a valuation allowance against our
deferred tax asset. Such tax benefit cannot becéegb¢o recur.

Our Results of Operations Will Depend on Our Ability to Secure and Maintain Adequate Credit and Warehase Financing on
Favorable Terms.

Our business strategy requires that warehouset degilities be available in order to purchase #gigant volumes of receivables.

Historically, our primary sources of day-to-dayidity have been our warehouse credit facilitiasyhich we sold and contributed
automobile contracts, as often as twice a weegpézial-purpose subsidiaries, where they were '"hoarged” until they were financed on a
long-term basis through the issuance of asset-banétes. Upon issuance of the notes, funds advamu#er one or more warehouse credit
facilities were repaid from the proceeds. In Decen#010 and February 2011, we entered into sepagagements for two new $100 million
revolving warehouse facilities. In May 2012, theaking period of the February 2011 facility exgrby its terms and we entered into a new
$100 million credit facility with a different lendeln March 2013, we agreed to amendments of theeBber 2010 facility that extended its
availability to March 2015 and in June 2013 we adr®® an amendment of the May 2012 credit fadiligt extends its availability into June
2015. Our current maximum revolving warehouse famag capacity is $200 million. See “Management’sddission and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations -uidify and Capital Resources — Liquidity”.

If we are unable to maintain warehouse financingoreptable terms, we might curtail or cease owhases of new automobile
contracts, which could lead to a material adveffezon our results of operations, financial caiwai and cash flows.

Our Results of Operations Will Depend on Our Ability to Securitize Our Portfolio of Automobile Contrads.

Historically we have depended upon our ability btain permanent financing for pools of automobdatcacts by conducting term
securitization transactions. By "permanent finagtwe mean financing that extends to cover thetérth during which the underlying
automobile contracts are outstanding and requigayment as the underlying automobile contractsegraid or charged off. By contrast, our
warehouse credit facilities permit us to borrowiagithe value of such receivables only for limiptiods of time. Our past practice and
future plan has been and is to repay loans mads tmder our warehouse credit facilities with thecpeds of securitizations. There can be no
assurance that any securitization transactionbgilhvailable on terms acceptable to us, or athé#.timing of any securitization transaction is
affected by a number of factors beyond our con&may, of which could cause substantial delays, gholy, without limitation:

. market conditions;
. the approval by all parties of the terms of theusiéization;
. our ability to acquire a sufficient number of autdsile contracts for securitization.
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As stated elsewhere in this report, during 200820 we observed adverse changes in the markséorritized pools of automobile
contracts, which made permanent financing in thfof securitization transactions difficult to olmt@nd more costly than in prior periods.
These changes included reduced liquidity and retideenand for asset-backed securities, particufarlgecurities carrying a financial
guaranty or for securities backed by sub-prime raotule receivables. Although we have seen improvesia the capital markets from 2010
through 2013, as compared to 2008 and 2009, ifrémel of improvement in the markets for asset-bddezurities should reverse, we could
expect a material adverse effect on our resultpefations.

Our Results of Operations Will Depend on Cash Flowfom Our Residual Interests in Our Securitization Program and Our
Warehouse Credit Facilities.

When we finance our automobile contracts througlusizations and warehouse credit facilities, weaive cash and a residual interest
in the assets financed. Those financed assetsnaredoby the special-purpose subsidiary that is éatrfior the related securitization. This
residual interest represents the right to recéieduture cash flows to be generated by the autdenobntracts in excess of (i) the interest and
principal paid to investors or lenders on the iriddhess issued in connection with the financinythe costs of servicing the automobile
contracts and (iii) certain other costs incurreddnnection with completing and maintaining theusgization or warehouse credit facility. \
sometimes refer to these future cash flows as “xspread cash flows."

Under the financial structures we have used to idabeir securitizations and warehouse credit féedj excess spread cash flows that
would otherwise be paid to the holder of the realidinterest are first used to increase overcoldditeation or are retained in a spread account
within the securitization trusts or the warehouwsality to provide liquidity and credit enhancemémt the related securities.

While the specific terms and mechanics vary amaaagstictions, our securitization and warehousingeagents generally provide that
will receive excess spread cash flows only if theant of overcollateralization and spread accoafrices have reached specified levels
and/or the delinquency, defaults or net lossesa@le the automobile contracts in the automohiigmact pools are below certain
predetermined levels. In the event delinquenciefaudts or net losses on automobile contracts ekttesse levels, the terms of the
securitization or warehouse credit facility:

« may require increased credit enhancement, incluaimgncrease in the amount required to be on depogie spread account to be
accumulated for the particular pool; &

« in certain circumstances, may permit affected part require the transfer of servicing on somallaf the securitized or warehoused
contracts from us to an unaffiliated servic

We typically retain residual interests or use ttentollateral to borrow cash. In any case, theréutxcess spread cash flow received in
respect of the residual interests is integral éofthancing of our operations. The amount of casteived from residual interests depends in
large part on how well our portfolio of securitizadd warehoused automobile contracts performaurlportfolio of securitized and
warehoused automobile contracts has higher delimryuand loss ratios than expected, then the amafunbney realized from our retained
residual interests, or the amount of money we cobtdin from the sale or other financing of ouiideal interests, would be reduced. Such
higher than expected losses occurred in 2008 tir@0d0, which had an adverse effect on our opergtiinancial condition and cash flows.
While losses have improved from the 2008-2010 piesbould losses deteriorate significantly fronrent levels we would expect this to
result in material adverse effects on our futusalts of operations, financial condition and cdsivs.

If We Are Unable to Obtain Credit Enhancement for Qur Securitizations Upon Favorable Terms, Our Resul of Operations Would
Be Impaired.

In our securitizations from 1994 through 2008, witzed credit enhancement in the form of one orenfinancial guaranty insurance
policies issued by financial guaranty insurance ganies. Each of these policies unconditionally iarevocably guarantees timely interest
and ultimate principal payments on the senior elasd the securities issued in those securitizatibhese guarantees enabled these securitie
to achieve the highest credit rating availablesTbrm of credit enhancement reduced the costsio$ecuritizations relative to alternative
forms of credit enhancement available to us atithe. Due to significantly reduced investor demémrdsecurities carrying such a financial
guaranty, this form of credit enhancement may eot@onomic for us in the future. The 12 securiimatransactions we executed from 2010
through 2013 did not utilize financial guarantyurence policies, and none of the securities isguétbse transactions received the highest
possible credit ratings. As we pursue future séizations, we may not be able to obtain:

« credit enhancement in any form on terms acceptalls, or at all; or
« similar highest available credit ratings for seritasses of securities to be issued in future gémations.
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We expect to pay a greater credit spread than we $een in the past between our securitization tielst and risk-free investments. As
of the date of this report, interest rates on fisle-debt are close to historical lows, which haffeet much of the adverse effect on us of
greater credit spreads. When interest rates orfnégkdebt increase, we would expect increasedastexpense, which could adversely affect
our results of operations.

If We Are Unable to Compete Successfully with our @mpetitors, Our Results of Operations May Be Impaied.

The automobile financing business is highly contjueti We compete with a number of national, regi@mal local finance companies. In
addition, competitors or potential competitors irtle other types of financial services companiesh stis commercial banks, savings and loan
associations, leasing companies, credit unionsigirgy retail loan financing and lease financing fiew and used vehicles and captive fine
companies affiliated with major automobile manufiaets, such as Ford Motor Credit Corporation. Mahgur competitors and potential
competitors possess substantially greater finantiatketing, technical, personnel and other ressutitan we do, including greater access to
capital markets for unsecured commercial papelirrestment grade rated debt instruments, and tr dtimding sources which may be
unavailable to us. Moreover, our future profitaiilivill be directly related to the availability amgst of our capital relative to that of our
competitors. Many of these companies also have-$bagding relationships with automobile dealers imwag provide other financing to
dealers, including floor plan financing for the g’ purchases of automobiles from manufactuvengzh we do not offer. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to continue to caenpeaccessfully and, as a result, we may not betaljpurchase automobile contracts from
dealers at a price acceptable to us, which cosldltrén reductions in our revenues or the cashd$lawailable to us.

If Our Dealers Do Not Submit a Sufficient Number ofSuitable Automobile Contracts to Us for PurchaseQur Results of Operations
May Be Impaired.

We are dependent upon establishing and maintamelagionships with a large number of unaffiliatedamobile dealers to supply us w
automobile contracts. During the years ended Deeei®b, 2013 and 2012, no single dealer accounteaidoe than 0.9% or 1.1%,
respectively, of the automobile contracts we pusela The agreements we have with dealers to pwwehasmobile contracts do not require
dealers to submit a minimum number of automobiletiaxts for purchase. The failure of dealers toxstibutomobile contracts that meet our
underwriting criteria could result in reductionsaur revenues or the cash flows available to ud, #nerefore, could have an adverse effect on
our results of operations.

If a Significant Number of Our Automobile Contracts Experience Defaults, Our Results of Operations Mafe Impaired.

We specialize in the purchase and servicing ofraatile contracts to finance automobile purchasesutyyprime customers, those who
have limited credit history, low income, or pastdit problems. Such automobile contracts entaighédr risk of non-performance, higher
delinquencies and higher losses than automobileraxs with more creditworthy customers. While vedidwve that our pricing of the
automobile contracts and the underwriting critana collection methods we employ enable us to ogritr a degree, the higher risks inhel
in automobile contracts with sub-prime customeosassurance can be given that such pricing, aiterd methods will afford adequate
protection against such risks. During the 2008-2041@od we experienced increases in the delinquefand credit losses on, our
automobile contracts.

If automobile contracts that we purchase and hefeteence defaults to a greater extent than we hatieipated, this could materially
and adversely affect our results of operationgraial condition, cash flows and liquidity. Ourukts of operations, financial condition, cash
flows and liquidity, depend, to a material extemnt,the performance of automobile contracts thapurehase, warehouse and securitize. A
portion of the automobile contracts that we acquitbdefault or prepay. In the event of paymentadsdt, the collateral value of the vehicle
securing an automobile contract realized by usrigpassession will generally not cover the outstapgrincipal balance on that automobile
contract and the related costs of recovery. We ta@iran allowance for credit losses on automolblgmacts held on our balance sheet, wi
reflects our estimates of probable credit lossasdhn be reasonably estimated for securitizatioaisare accounted for as financings and
warehoused automobile contracts. If the allowarsdeddequate, then we would recognize the lossesdess of the allowance as an expense
and our results of operations could be adversébcted. In addition, under the terms of our waredgoeredit facilities, we are not able to
borrow against defaulted automobile contractsuidiclg automobile contracts that are, at the timéedéult, funded under our warehouse
credit facilities, which will reduce the overcoliaalization of those warehouse credit facilitied possibly reduce the amount of cash flows
available to us.
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If We Lose Servicing Rights on Our Portfolio of Aubmobile Contracts, Our Results of Operations WouldBe Impaired.

We are entitled to receive servicing fees only ehik act as servicer under the applicable salesamicing agreements governing our
warehouse credit facilities and securitizationsdéhsuch agreements, we may be terminated as eengon the occurrence of certain eve
including:

. our failure generally to observe and perform ogpomsibilities and other covenants;
. certain bankruptcy events; or
. the occurrence of certain events of default unidemdibcuments governing the facilities.

The loss of our servicing rights could materialhdadversely affect our results of operations,rfaial condition and cash flows. Our
results of operations, financial condition and cisiv, would be materially and adversely affectbdé were to be terminated as servicer \
respect to a material portion of our managed pliotfo

If We Lose Key Personnel, Our Results of Operationsay Be Impaired.

Our senior management team averages over 17 yesesvice with us. Charles E. Bradley, Jr., owditent and CEO, has been our
President since our formation in 1991. Our futyserating results depend in significant part upedbntinued service of our key senior
management personnel, none of whom is bound bymogment agreement. Our future operating reslsts @epend in part upon our ability
to attract and retain qualified management, te@insales and support personnel for our operati@aspetition for such personnel is intense.
We cannot assure you that we will be successfattiacting or retaining such personnel. Layoff€siB008 may have reduced employee
loyalty, which may in turn result in decreased emypk performance. Conversely, adverse general edoramnditions may have had a
countervailing effect. The loss of any key emplgytke failure of any key employee to perform in disher current position or our inability to
attract and retain skilled employees, as neededd coaterially and adversely affect our result®pérations, financial condition and cash
flow.

If We Fail to Comply with Regulations, Our Resultsof Operations May Be Impaired.

Failure to materially comply with all laws and rdaions applicable to us could materially and adebr affect our ability to operate our
business. Our business is subject to numerousdiaed state consumer protection laws and regatiwhich, among other things:

. require us to obtain and maintain certain licerssesqualifications;

. limit the interest rates, fees and other chargeaneallowed to charge;

. limit or prescribe certain other terms of our autdnife contracts;

. require specific disclosures to our customers;

. define our rights to repossess and sell collaterad,

. maintain safeguards designed to protect the sgani confidentiality of customer information.

Our industry is also at times investigated by ratnrs and offices of state attorneys general, wbaehd lead to enforcement actions,
fines and penalties, or the assertion of priveagmd and law suits against us. The Federal Traden@ssion (“FTC”) has the authority to
investigate consumer complaints against us, towcinidquiries at its own instance, and to recommamfdrcement actions and seek mone
penalties. The FTC has conducted an inquiry intopoactices, and may seek remedial action agagissee Legal Proceeding&+C Action.

If we fail to comply with applicable laws and regtibns, such failure could result in penaltieggdition losses and expenses, damage to our
reputation, or the suspension or termination oflimenses to conduct business, which would matgréalversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition and stock priceatidition, new federal and state laws or regulatimnchanges in the ways that existing rules
or laws are interpreted or enforced could limit aativities in the future or significantly increathe cost of compliance. Furthermore, judges
or regulatory bodies could interpret current rdetaws differently than the way we do, leadingtich adverse consequences as described
above. The resolution of such matters may requirsiderable time and expense, and if not resolwvedir favor, may result in fines or
damages, and possibly an adverse effect on ourdialacondition.
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We believe that we are in compliance in all mategapects with all such laws and regulations, thiatl such laws and regulations have
had no material adverse effect on our ability terape our business. However, we may be materiatiyaaversely affected if we fail to
comply with:

. applicable laws and regulations;

. changes in existing laws or regulations;

. changes in the interpretation of existing lawsegulations; or

. any additional laws or regulations that may be tthin the future.

Recent Legislation and Proposed Regulations May Havan Adverse Effect on Our Business.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerdetimn Act ("Dodd-Frank”) mandates the most widegiag overhaul of financial
industry regulation in decades. Dodd-Frank wasesignto law on July 21, 2010, and is now in thelanpentation stage. The law provides a
regulatory framework and requires that regulatsospe of which are new regulatory bodies createBdyd-Frank, draft, review and approve
more than 200 implementing regulations and condunterous studies that are likely to lead to stdrenregulations. In addition, the
Commission is considering amendments to regulafiostsadopted in 2005 known as Regulation AB. @hgendments to Regulation AB
have yet to be adopted and are expected to bdisagrtly modified from the form initially proposetipwever, the final form of the
amendments to Regulation AB when adopted are exgédotaffect adversely our ability to complete s#@i@ation transactions without
increased expense.

Compliance with these new laws and regulations beagr likely will be costly and can affect operagtiresults. Compliance requires
forms, processes, procedures, controls and thasinfrcture to support these requirements. Compiamay create operational constraints and
place limits on pricing. Laws in the financial sees industry are designed primarily for the pratatof consumers. The failure to comply
could result in significant statutory civil andminal penalties, monetary damages, attorneys’dedscosts, possible revocation of licenses
and damage to reputation, brand and valued custatagionships.

At this time, it is difficult to predict the extetd which the Dodd-Frank Act or the resulting regigns or the Regulation AB amendments
will affect our business. However, compliance witiese new laws and regulations may result in amwditicost and expenses, which may
adversely affect our results of operations, finahcondition or liquidity.

If We Experience Unfavorable Litigation Results, Ou Results of Operations May Be Impaired.

We operate in a litigious society and currently, ared may in the future be, named as defendatitigiation, including individual and
class action lawsuits under consumer credit, coesymmotection, theft, privacy, data security, auated dialing equipment, debt collections
and other laws. Many of these cases present nes@d$ on which there is no clear legal preceddrichvincreases the difficulty in predicting
both the potential outcomes and costs of defenifliege cases. We are subject to regulatory examinsatinvestigations, inquiries, litigation,
and other actions by licensing authorities, sttm@eys general, the Federal Trade CommissionCtresumer Financial Protection Bureau
and other governmental bodies relating to our @idss The litigation and regulatory actions to atiwe are or may become subject involve
or may involve potential compensatory or punitieendge claims, fines, sanctions or injunctive rehet, if granted, could require us to pay
damages or make other expenditures in amountsadldd have a material adverse effect on our firemmsition and our results of
operations. We have recorded loss contingenciesriffinancial statements only for matters on whadses are probable and can be
reasonably estimated. Our assessments of thesersiattolve significant judgments, and may chamgenftime to time. Actual losses
incurred by us in connection with judgments orlsatents of these matters may be more than ouriassdceserves. Furthermore, defending
lawsuits and responding to governmental inquirieimeestigations, regardless of their merit, copddcostly and divert management’s
attention from the operation of our business. Uafalile outcomes in any such current or future @diceys could materially and adversely
affect our results of operations, financial corais and cash flow. As a consumer finance compaegre subject to various consumer cla
and litigation seeking damages and statutory piesaiased upon, among other things, disclosureimacies and wrongful repossession,
which could take the form of a plaintiff's classiae complaint. We, as the assignee of financereoig originated by dealers, may also be
named as a co-defendant in lawsuits filed by comssmrincipally against dealers. We are also stlbjesther litigation common to the
automobile industry and to businesses in geneta.damages and penalties claimed by consumerstlaeic an these types of matters can be
substantial. The relief requested by the plaintiises but includes requests for compensatoriytsty and punitive damages.

While we intend to vigorously defend ourselves agasuch proceedings, there is a chance that sultsef operations, financial
condition and cash flows could be materially andeasely affected by unfavorable outcomes.
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Negative publicity associated with litigation, govexmental investigations, regulatory actions, and dier public statements could
damage our reputation.

From time to time there are negative news stotiesiathe “sub-prime” credit industry. Such stonmesay follow the announcements of
litigation or regulatory actions involving us ohets in our industry. Negative publicity about aileged or actual practices or about our
industry generally could adversely affect our stpdke and our ability to retain and attract empley.

If We Experience Problems with Our Originations, Acounting or Collection Systems, Our Results of Opations May Be Impaired.

We are dependent on our receivables originatiaatmumting and collection systems to service outfpliw of automobile contracts. Su
systems are vulnerable to damage or interruptiom fnatural disasters, power loss, telecommunicdsibures, terrorist attacks, computer
viruses and other events. A significant numberwfsystems are not redundant, and our disasteveecplanning is not sufficient for every
eventuality. Our systems are also subject to bilegksabotage and intentional acts of vandalisrimtgynal employees and contractors as well
as third parties. Despite any precautions we migy, tsuch problems could result in interruptionsim services, which could harm our
reputation and financial condition. We do not caiginess interruption insurance sufficient to cengate us for losses that may result from
interruptions in our service as a result of systaitares. Such systems problems could materialty aawversely affect our results of operati
financial conditions and cash flows.

We Have Substantial Indebtedness.

We have and will continue to have a substantialarmof indebtedness. At December 31, 2013, we padbaimately $1,276.9 million
of debt outstanding. Such debt consisted primafil$1,177.6 million of securitization trust debtdaalso included $13.1 million of debt used
for the acquisition of the Fireside portfolio, $9lion of warehouse lines of credit, $19.1 miliiof residual interest financing, $38.6 million
of senior secured related party debt and $19.1amilh subordinated renewable notes. We are alsermtly offering the subordinated
renewable notes to the public on a continuous past such notes have maturities that range froeetinonths to 10 years.

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affiecfinancial condition by, among other things:

- increasing our vulnerability to general adversenecoic and industry conditions;

« requiring us to dedicate a substantial portionwfaash flow from operations to payments on oueinddness, thereby reducing amounts
available for working capital, capital expendituegsl other general corporate purpo:

« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the industmhioh we operate;

« placing us at a competitive disadvantage comparedit competitors that have less debt; and

« limiting our ability to borrow additional funds.

Although we believe we are able to service andyepah debt, there is no assurance that we wildbe to do so. If we do not generate
sufficient operating profits, our ability to makequired payments on our debt would be impairedufeato pay our indebtedness when due
would give rise to various remedies in favor of ampaid creditors, and creditors’ exercise of sierhedies could have a material adverse
effect on our earnings.

Because We Are Subject to Many Restrictions in OuExisting Credit Facilities and Securitization Transactions, Our Ability to Pay
Dividends or Engage in Specified Transactions May &Impaired.

The terms of our existing credit facilities, tergcaritizations and our other outstanding debt inepmignificant operating and financial
restrictions on us and our subsidiaries and requsr® meet certain financial tests. These regtristmay have an adverse effect on our
business activities, results of operations andhfire condition. These restrictions may also sigaifitly limit or prohibit us from engaging in
certain transactions, including the following:

- incurring or guaranteeing additional indebtedness;

« making capital expenditures in excess of agreeah @paounts;

« paying dividends or other distributions to our gfeniders or redeeming, repurchasing or retiringoaypital stock or subordinated
obligations;

« making investments;

« creating or permitting liens on our assets or $sets of our subsidiaries;
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« issuing or selling capital stock of our subsidigrie

« transferring or selling our assets;

« engaging in mergers or consolidations;

« permitting a change of control of our company;

« liquidating, winding up or dissolving our company;

« changing our name or the nature of our busineshieonames or nature of the business of our swrsdi and
« engaging in transactions with our affiliates outsile normal course of business.

These restrictions may limit our ability to obtadditional sources of capital, which may limit @lnility to generate earnings. In additi
the failure to comply with any of the covenantné or more of our debt agreements could causéaltander other debt agreements that
may be outstanding from time to time. A defaultyét waived, could result in acceleration of thiated indebtedness, in which case such
would become immediately due and payable. A coitgndefault or acceleration of one or more of awdd facilities or any other debt
agreement, would likely cause a default under atlebt agreements that otherwise would not be iaudgfin which case all such related
indebtedness could be accelerated. If this ocewgsnay not be able to repay our debt or borrowigefit funds to refinance our indebtedn
Even if any new financing is available, it may beton terms that are acceptable to us or it map@asufficient to refinance all of our
indebtedness as it becomes due.

In addition, the transaction documents for our séezations restrict our securitization subsidiarfeom declaring or making payment to
us of (i) any dividend or other distribution oninrespect of any shares of their capital stocKjipany payment on account of the purchase,
redemption, retirement or acquisition of any optiaarrant or other right to acquire shares of thapital stock unless (in each case) at the
time of such declaration or payment (and afterrgj\effect thereto) no amount payable under any#etion document with respect to the
related securitization is then due and owing, lytaid. These restrictions may limit our abilityreeive distributions in respect of the
residual interests from our securitization fa@kti which may limit our ability to generate earrsing

Risks Related to General Factors
If The Economy of All or Certain Regions of the Unied States Falls into Recession, Our Results of Og¢ions May Be Impaired.

Our business is directly related to sales of netvuaged automobiles, which are sensitive to employmages, prevailing interest rates i
other domestic economic conditions. Delinquenciggpssessions and losses generally increase drgamgpmic slowdowns or recessions.
Because of our focus on sub-prime customers, thmk@tes of delinquencies, repossessions anddass our automobile contracts could be
higher under adverse economic conditions than terperienced in the automobile finance industrgeneral, particularly in the states of
California, Texas, Pennsylvania and lllinois, statewhich our automobile contracts are geograpiijicancentrated. Any sustained period of
economic slowdown or recession could adverselycafiar ability to acquire suitable automobile cawts, or to securitize pools of such
automobile contracts. The timing of any economianges is uncertain, and weakness in the econonigt haue an adverse effect on our
business and that of the dealers from which wel@ase automobile contracts and result in reduciionsir revenues or the cash flows
available to us.

Our Results of Operations May Be Impaired as a Reduof Natural Disasters.

Our automobile contracts are geographically comaéed in the states of California and Texas. States may be particularly suscepti
to natural disasters: earthquake in the case dfo@ah, and hurricanes and flooding in Texas. Maltdisasters, in those states or others, ¢
cause a material number of our vehicle purchasdrst their jobs, or could damage or destroy \Vekithat secure our automobile contracts.
In either case, such events could result in owivaty reduced collections on our automobile carttaand could thus result in reductions in
our revenues or the cash flows available to us.
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If an Increase in Interest Rates Results in a Decase in Our Cash Flow from Excess Spread, Our Resslof Operations May Be
Impaired.

Our profitability is largely determined by the difence, or "spread,” between the effective intaestwe receive on the automobile
contracts that we acquire and the interest ratgahpa under warehouse credit facilities and oreeet-backed securities issued in our
securitizations. In the past, disruptions in theketfor asset-backed securities resulted in arease in the interest rates we paid on asset-
backed securities. Should similar disruptions talleee in the future, we may pay higher interestgain asset-backed securities issued in the
future. Although we have the ability to partiallffset increases in our cost of funds by increas#sg we charge to dealers when purchasing
automobile contracts, or by demanding higher isterates on automobile contracts we purchase, them@ assurance that such actions will
materially offset increases in interest we payirtarice our managed portfolio. As a result, an iaseen prevailing interest rates could cause
us to receive less excess spread cash flows omabtle contracts, and thus could adversely affectearnings and cash flows. See
“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MetrRisk - Interest Rate Risk.”

Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Our Common Stock Is Thinly-Traded.

Our stock is thinly-traded, which means investoils vave limited opportunities to sell their shamfscommon stock in the open market.
Limited trading of our common stock also contritsute more volatile price fluctuations. Becausedhsastorically has been low trading
volume in our common stock, there can be no assardrat our stock price will not decline as additibshares are sold in the public market.
As of December 31, 2013, our directors and exeeuifficers collectively owned 3,687,372 shareswfammon stock, or approximately
15%.

We Do Not Intend to Pay Dividends on Our Common Sik.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock. We currently intend to retaig future earnings and do not
expect to pay any dividends in the foreseeabladutsee " Dividend Policy ".

Forward-Looking Statements

Discussions of certain matters contained in thi@remay constitute forwarlboking statements within the meaning of SectioA &7 the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the " Secariet " ) and Section 21E of the Exchange Act, asduch, may involve risks and
uncertainties. These forward-looking statementstegio, among other things, expectations of thenbas environment in which we operate,
projections of future performance, perceived oppaties in the market and statements regardingrassion and vision. You can generally
identify forward-looking statements as statementgaining the words " will, " " would, " " believ&," may, " " could, " " expect, " "
anticipate, " " intend, " " estimate, " " assumer 'other similar expressions. Our actual resuktsfgpmance and achievements may differ
materially from the results, performance and adcmesnts expressed or implied in such forward-lookitagements. The discussion under "
Risk Factors " identifies some of the factors thaght cause such a difference, including the foltayy

« changes in general economic conditions;

« changes in performance of our automobile contracts;

« increases in interest rates;

« our ability to generate sufficient operating anthficing cash flows;
e competition;

« level of losses incurred on contracts in our madagetfolio; and

« adverse decisions by courts or regulators

Forward-looking statements are not guaranteesrédqpeance. They involve risks, uncertainties argliagptions. Actual results may
differ from expectations due to many factors beyoundability to control or predict, including thodescribed herein, and in documents
incorporated by reference in this report. For thetatements, we claim the protection of the safbdrdor forward-looking statements
contained in the Private Securities Litigation RefdAct of 1995.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update amyvird-looking information. You are advised to agdihany additional disclosure we
make in our periodic reports filed with the SECe S&Vhere You Can Find More Information " and " Downts Incorporated by Referente.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters are located in Irvine, Californiagre we lease approximately 60,000 square feg¢méral office space from an
unaffiliated lessor. The annual base rent is agprately $1.77 million, increasing to approximat&t.80 million through 2016.

In March 1997, we established a branch collectamilify in Chesapeake, Virginia. We lease approxatyal6,500 square feet of general
office space in Chesapeake, Virginia, at a baskethanis approximately $280,000 per year, incregsd approximately $325,000 through
2018.

The remaining two regional servicing centers occaipgtal of approximately 41,000 square feet afdebspace in Maitland, Florida; and
Westchester, lllinois. The termination dates ofsléases range from 2014 to 2018.

In November 2013 we executed leases for approxlyna®000 square feet of general office space imagas, Nevada. We anticipate
that this location will include originations andngeing activities and certain senior managemensqeanel. The term of the lease does not
formally commence until we take possession of tleenises, which we anticipate to be during the séaprarter of 2014, and has a maturity
in the fourth quarter of 2019. The annual base igapproximately $850,000, increasing to approxalya$950,000 through 2019.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Stanwich LitigationWe were for some time a defendant in a class atien“Stanwich Case”) brought in the Californigp8tior Court,
Los Angeles County. The original plaintiffs in thatse were persons entitled to receive regular pagsr(the “Settlement Payments”)
pursuant to earlier settlements of claims, genepdrsonal injury claims, against unrelated defetgléStanwich Financial Services Corp.
(“Stanwich™), an affiliate of the former chairmahaur board of directors, is the entity that wasigdied to pay the Settlement Payments.
Stanwich defaulted on its payment obligations phaintiffs and in June 2001 filed for reorganiaatunder the Bankruptcy Code, in the
federal bankruptcy court in Connecticut. By Febyu2005, we had settled all claims brought agaisshihe Stanwich Case.

In November 2001, one of the defendants in thevdtimCase, Jonathan Pardee, asserted claims feminity against us in a separate
action, which is now pending in federal districudoin Rhode Island. We have filed counterclaimghi@ Rhode Island federal court against
Mr. Pardee, and have filed a separate action agéingardee's Rhode Island attorneys, in the ssoud. The litigation between Mr. Pardee
and us was stayed for several years through Septe2®i 1, awaiting resolution of an adversary adbmught against Mr. Pardee in the
bankruptcy court, which is hearing the bankrupttg@nwich.

Pursuant to an agreement with the representatieeeditors in the Stanwich bankruptcy, that aduwgraation has been dismissed. Under
that agreement, we paid the bankruptcy estate 880@&nd abandoned our claims against the estatle, thh estate has abandoned its
adversary action against Mr. Pardee. With the disatiof the adversary action, all known claims sdeagainst Mr. Pardee have been
resolved without his incurring any liability. Acatingly, we believe that this resolution of the acbagy action will result in limitation of our
exposure to Mr. Pardee to no more than some poofitis attorneys fees incurred. The stay in thma@gainst us in Rhode Island has been
lifted, and both we and Mr. Pardee filed motionsdommary judgment. The court ruled on those metiarFebruary 2013, denying our
motion, and granting Mr. Pardeanotion as to liability. The issues remainingtftal are the extent of our obligation to indemniifly. Pardee
There is no trial date set, but our expectatiahas the court may, not earlier than May 2014 tlsetmatter for trial in the latter half of 2014.
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Consumer LitigationWe are routinely involved in various legal proceegi resulting from our consumer finance activiied practices,
both continuing and discontinued. Consumers cardanditiate lawsuits against us alleging violasasf law applicable to collection of
receivables, and such lawsuits sometimes allegadbalution as a class action is appropriate. YWéecarrently defending two such purported
class actions, one of which has been settled eagent with the plaintiffs (such settlement remainisject to approval by the court). For the
most part, we have legal and factual defensesdio slaims, which we routinely contest or settle (fomaterial amounts) depending on the
particular circumstances of each case. We havededa liability as of December 31, 2013 with retpge such matters, in the aggregate.

FTC Action. On July 17, 2013, the staff of the Federal Tr@denmission (“FTC”) advised us that they are prepaoerecommend that
the FTC initiate a lawsuit against us relating ltegeedly unfair trade practices, and simultaneoaslyised that settlement of such issues by
consent decree may be possible. Based on our r@fidve FTCS allegations, of past practices of the FTC, ofregords of our collection a
servicing activities, and of other companies’ settbnts with the FTC, we expect that we will reasthsa settlement, and that such a
settlement will require that we make restitutionpayments and that we implement procedural chamgesr a consent decree. There can be
no assurance, however, that we will reach agreemgarding any such settlement, and we may chaosertest the allegations of the FTC.
Whether we reach such an agreement or not, theaastof contesting or settling the matter mayrtagerial. We have recorded a liability as
of December 31, 2013 with respect to this matter.

In General. There can be no assurance as to the outcomey of ¢he matters referenced above. We have redadebility as of
December 31, 2013, which represents our best dstiofigrobable incurred losses for legal contingegdncluding all of the matters
described or referenced above. The amount of Idhs¢snay ultimately be incurred cannot be estichatih certainty. However, based on
such information as is available to us, we beligad the range of reasonably possible losses lethal proceedings and contingencies
described or referenced above, as of December03B, 2nd in excess of the liability we have recdrde from $0 to $1.6 million.

Accordingly, we believe that the ultimate resolataf such legal proceedings and contingencies;, t&fkéing into account our current
litigation reserves, should not have a materiakast effect on our consolidated financial conditMe note, however, that in light of the
uncertainties inherent in contested proceedingsetban be no assurance that the ultimate resolatithese matters will not significantly
exceed the reserves we have accrued; as a résuttutcome of a particular matter may be matesialr operating results for a particular
period, depending on, among other factors, thedfitiee loss or liability imposed and the leveloofr income for that period.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Charles E. Bradley, Jr, 54, has been our President and a director simcéormation in March 1991, and was elected Chairrof the
Board of Directors in July 2001. In January 1992, Bradley was appointed Chief Executive Officaioi April 1989 to November 1990, he
served as Chief Operating Officer of Barnard anch@any, a private investment firm. From Septemb&71® March 1989, Mr. Bradley, Jr.
was an associate of The Harding Group, a privatestment banking firm. Mr. Bradley does not cureserve on the board of directors of
any other publicly-traded companies.

Mark A. Creaturap4, has been Senior Vice President — General Cbsimee October 1996. From October 1993 througloket 1996,
he was Vice President and General Counsel at Urethiachnologies, Inc., a polyurethane chemicalatdator. Mr. Creatura was previously
engaged in the private practice of law with the Bogeles law firm of Troy & Gould Professional Corption, from October 1985 through
October 1993.

Jeffrey P. Fritz54 , has been Senior Vice President - Chief Financifit@fsince April 2006. He was Senior Vice Preside
Accounting from August 2004 through March 2006.g9deved as a consultant to us from May 2004 to ALR084. Previously, he was the
Chief Financial Officer of SeaWest Financial Cdrpm February 2003 to May 2004, and the Chief FarOfficer of AFCO Auto Finance
from April 2002 to February 2003. He practiced publccounting with Glenn M. Gelman & Associatesirarch 2001 to April 2002 and
was Chief Financial Officer of Credit Services Guoinc. from May 1999 to November 2000. He previggerved as our Chief Financial
Officer from our inception through May 1999.
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Robert E. Riedl50, has been Senior Vice President - Chief Investi@éficer since April 2006. Mr. Riedl was Senioic¥ President -
Chief Financial Officer from August 2003 until assing his current position. Mr. Riedl joined the Quamy as Senior Vice President - Risk
Management in January 2003. Previously, Mr. Riealt & Principal at Northwest Capital Appreciatiod@A"), a middle market private
equity firm, from 2000 to 2002. For a year priofjaming Northwest Capital, Mr. Riedl served as BeWVice President for one of NCA's
portfolio companies, SLP Capital. Mr. Riedl wasiavestment banker for ContiFinancial Services,ehds & Company and PaineWebber
from 1986 to 1999.

Christopher Terry46, has been Senior Vice President — Asset Receuerg August 2013. Prior to that was our Seni@e\Rresident of
Servicing since May 2005, and prior to that wasi@eviice President - Asset Recovery since Janu@fB82He joined us in January 1995 as a
loan officer, held a series of successively mospoasible positions, and was promoted to Vice Besdi- Asset Recovery in June 1999.

Mr. Terry was previously a branch manager with NestwFinancial from 1990 to October 1994.

Teri L. Robinson51, has been Senior Vice President of Originationsesifyoril 2007. Prior to that, she held the positafrvice Presider
of Originations since August 1998. She joined tleen@any in June 1991 as an Operations Specialidthald a series of successively more
responsible positions. Previously, Ms. Robinsoml lael administrative position at Greco & Associates.

Michael L. Lavin41, has been Senior Vice President — General Cbsimee February 2013. From May 2009 to Februa}32@e was
Senior Vice President — Legal and prior to thatmas our Vice President — Legal since joining tleenpany in November 2001. Mr. Lavin
was previously engaged as a law clerk and an agsaowith the San Diego law firm (now defunct) ofvzdds, Sooy & Byron from 1996
through 2000 and then as an associate with theg@r@ounty firm of Trachtman & Trachtman from 20@éough 2001. Mr. Lavin also
clerked for the San Diego District Attorney’s offiand Orange County Public Defender’s office.

Curtis K. Powell 56, has been Senior Vice Presideifireject Development since May 2010. Previously ke wur Senior Vice Preside
— Marketing from March 2007 to May 2010. Prior tathhe was our Senior Vice President of Originaifsom June 2001 to March 2007.
Prior to that, he was our Senior Vice Presidentarkdting, from April 1995 to June 2001. He joinedimi January 1993 as an independent
marketing representative until being appointed Begli Vice President of Marketing for Southern Galiia in November 1994. From June
1985 through January 1993, Mr. Powell was in thailrautomobile sales and leasing business.

Laurie A. Straten45, has been Senior Vice President of Servicing sineguat 2013. Prior to that, she was our Senior Piasident of
Asset Recovery since April 2013, and before thatts#id the position of Vice President of Asset Recyp starting in April 2005. She started
with the Company in March 1996 as a bankruptcy igfistand took on more responsibility within As§gcovery over time. Prior to joining
CPS she worked for the FDIC and served in the driftiates Marine Corps.

Richard B. Haskell47, has been Senior Vice President of Systems andNRaslagement since April 2013. Prior to that, he &l
positions of Vice President of Systems and Risk &gment since January 2007, and Vice Presidens&f\anagement since January 2(
He joined the Company in March 1994 as a data etérk in the Originations Department and held rdeseof successively more responsible
positions. Previously, Mr. Haskell held a positamloan officer at Trust One Mortgage.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases ofdrity Securities

The Company’s Common Stock is traded on the Na&lalgal Market, under the symbol " CPSS. " The foilg table sets forth the
high and low sale prices as reported by NasdagdioCommon Stock for the periods shown.

High Low
January - March 31, 201. $ 16 $ 0.9¢
April 1 - June 30, 201 2.2t 1.17
July 1- September 30, 201 3.3¢€ 1.8¢
October 1- December 31, 201 6.1¢ 2.92
January - March 31, 201! 11.9¢ 5.37
April 1 - June 30, 201 12.7¢ 6.82
July 1- September 30, 201 7.62 5.61
October 1- December 31, 201 9.4t 5.8¢

As of January 1, 2014, there were 49 holders afrceof the Company’s Common Stock. To date, we mtedeclared or paid any
dividends on our Common Stock. The payment of &itlividends, if any, on our Common Stock is wittkia discretion of the Board of
Directors and will depend upon our income, capiguirements and financial condition, and othezvaht factors. The instruments goverr
our outstanding debt place certain restrictionshenpayment of dividends. We do not intend to deciy dividends on our Common Stock
in the foreseeable future, but instead intend taimeany cash flow for use in our operations.

The table below presents information regardingtantding options to purchase our Common Stock &ecember 31, 2013:

Number of securities Number of
to be issued upon Weighted average securities remaining
exercise of exercise price of available for future
outstanding outstanding issuance under
options, warrants options, warrants equity
Plan category and rights and rights compensation plans

Equity compensation plat

approved by security holde 12,536,83 $ 2.7z 4,035,58:
Equity compensation plans r

approved by security holders - - -

Total 12,536,83  $ 2.7z 4,035,58

28




Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities in the FourtiQuarter

Approximate

Total Number of Dollar Value of
Shares Purchase( Shares that May
Total Number of Average Price as Part of Publicly Yet be Purchased
Shares Paid Announced Plans Under the Plans

Period(1) Purchased per Share or Programs(2) or Programs

October 201! - $ - - $ 986,19:
November 201. - - - 986,19:
December 2013 — — - 986,19:

Total - % — —

(1) Each monthly period is the calendar mor

(2) Through December 31, 2013, our board of directad huthorized the purchase of up to $34.5 millibour outstanding securities, whi
program was first announced in our annual reporttfte year 2002, filed on March 26, 2003. All puaisks described in the table abs
were under the plan announced in March 2003, whi$ no fixed expiration date. As of December 3132@e have purchased $5.0
million in principal amount of debt securities a®#8.4 million of our common stock representing 9,820 shares

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our selected constdidifinancial data and operating data as of anthiodates indicated. The data under
the captions " Statement of Operations Data " aBdlance Sheet Data " have been derived from aditexliand unaudited consolidated
financial statements. The remainder is derived father records of ours. You should read the saelemb@solidated financial data together
with " Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Ritial Condition and Results of Operations " andaudited and unaudited financial
statements and notes thereto that are includddsmeport, and in our quarterly and periodic fjn
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As of and
For the Year Ended December 31
(in thousands, except per shar

data) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Statement of Operations Date
Revenues

Interest incom $ 231,33 $ 175,31:  $ 127,85t % 137,09 % 208,19t

Servicing fee 3,09z 2,30¢ 4,34¢ 7,651 4,64(

Other incom 10,40t 9,58¢ 10,927 10,43¢ 11,05¢

Gain on cancellation of debt 10,947 — — — —

Total revenues 255,77! 187,20¢ 143,13; 155,18! 223,89!

Expenses

Employee cosi 42,96( 35,57 32,27( 33,81« 37,30¢

General and administrati 32,75: 29,53 26,75¢ 26,06¢ 32,22(

Interest expens 58,17¢ 79,42 83,05¢ 81,57 112,63¢

Provision for credit loss¢ 76,86¢ 33,49t 15,50¢ 29,92: 92,01

Provision for contingent
liabilities 7,841 - - - _

Total expenses 218,60: 178,02: 157,59: 171,38( 274,17t

Income (loss) before income tax
expense (benefi 37,17: 9,18 (14,460) (16,195 (50,287
Income tax expense (benefit) 16,16¢ (60,227 — 16,98: 7,80(
Net income (loss $ 21,000 $ 69,40 $ (14,460 $ (33,17) $ (58,08.)
Earnings (loss) per shi-basic $ 0.9¢ $ 356 $ (0.7¢) $ (190 $ (3.12)
Earnings (loss) per shediluted $ 067 $ 272 $ (0.7¢) $ (190 $ (3.12)
Pre-tax income (loss) per share-

basic (1) $ 172 8 047 $ (0.7¢) $ (099 % (2.70)
Pre-tax income (loss) per share-

diluted (2) $ 118 $ 03 $ (0.7¢) $ (099 % (2.70)
Weighted average shares

outstandin-basic 21,53¢ 19,47 19,01 17,477 18,64
Weighted average shares

outstandin-diluted 31,57« 25,47¢ 19,01 17,477 18,64
Balance Sheet Dat:
Total asset $ 1,396,360 % 1,037,620 % 890,05( $ 742,39C  $ 1,068,26.
Cash and cash equivalel 22,112 12,96¢ 10,09« 16,25: 12,43
Restricted cash and equivale 132,28 104,44! 159,22¢ 123,95¢ 128,51:
Finance receivables, n 1,115,43 744,74¢ 506,27¢ 552,45; 840,09:
Finance receivables measured a

fair value 14,47¢ 59,66¢ 160,25: - -
Residual interest in securitizatio 854 4,82¢ 4,414 3,841 4,31¢
Warehouse lines of crec 9,45 21,73 25,39! 45,56¢ 4,93:
Residual interest financir 19,09¢ 13,77 21,88 39,44( 56,93(
Debt secured by receivables

measured at fair valt 13,117 57,10% 166,82¢ - -
Securitization trust del 1,177,55! 792,49° 583,06! 567,72: 904,83:
Long-term debi 57,70 73,41¢ 79,09: 65,21( 48,08
Shareholders' equit 94,60: 61,31: (14,207 2,421 35,577

(1) Income (loss) before income tax benefit dividedbighted average shares outstanc«-basic. Included for illustrative purposes because
some of the periods presented include significaeine tax benefits while other periods have neitmyme tax benefit nor expen

(2) Income (loss) before income tax benefit dividedbighted average shares outstancdiluted. Included for illustrative purposes bece
some of the periods presented include significaciine tax benefits while other periods have neitimyme tax benefit nor expen
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As of and
For the Year Ended December 31
(dollars in thousands, except pe
share data) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Contract
Purchases/Securitizations
Automobile contract purchas $ 764,080 $ 551,74. $ 284,23t $ 113,020  $ 8,59¢
Automobile contracts securitized

structured as salt - - - 103,77: -
Automobile contracts securitized

structured as secured financir 778,00( 554,10: 335,59¢ - -

Managed Portfolio Data
Contracts held by consolidated

subsidiaries $ 1,207,69. $ 807,88t $ 546,01t $ 597,14. $ 922,68
Fireside portfolic 14,78¢ 60,80« 172,16° - -
Contracts held by nooensolidater

subsidiaries 4,074 17,29¢ 42,97 83,96¢ 134,89:
Third party portfolios (1 4,86¢ 11,58¢ 33,49¢ 75,097 137,14¢
Total managed portfoli $ 1,231,42. $ 897,570 $ 794,64¢ % 756,200 % 1,194,72:
Average managed portfol 1,064,49: 822,57 711,72¢ 928,97" 1,342,411

Weighted average fixed effective
interest rate (total managed

portfolio) (2) 20.0% 19.6% 18.5% 16.2% 15.8%
Core operating expense (% of

average managed portfolio) ( 7.1% 7.9% 8.3% 6.4% 5.2%
Allowance for finance credit loss:  $ 39,62t $ 1959« % 10,35 % 13,16¢ % 38,27

Allowance for finance credit lossi
(% of total contracts held by

consolidated subsidiarie 3.3% 2.4% 1.9% 2.2% 4.1%
Aggregate allowance for finance

credit losses an $ 39,62¢ $ 19,59 3 10,35 % 13,16¢ 3 38,27

repossessions in inventc $ 54,408 $ 25,97¢ % 15,11¢  $ 29,44¢ % 66,35¢

Aggregate allowance for finance
credit losses (% of total

repossessions in inventory a 4.6% 3.4% 2.9% 5.0% 7.2%
contracts held by consolidated
subsidiaries) 814.0% 2.4% 30.9% 17.5% 27.9%
Total delinquencies (2) (¢ 4.8% 4.0% 4.4% 5.7% 4.9%
Total delinquencies and
repossessions (2) ( 6.8% 5.5% 6.2% 9.2% 8.8%
Net charg-offs (2) (5) 4.7% 3.6% 4.8% 9.0% 11.0%

(1) Receivables related to the third party portfolios,which we earn only a servicing fi

(2) Excludes receivables related to the third partytfmios.

(3) Total expenses excluding provision for credisies, provision for contingent liabilities, intsr&xpense, loss on sale of receivables and
impairment loss on residual asse

(4) For further information regarding delinquencies atiet managed portfolio, see the table captic" Delinquency Experiencé,in ltem 1
Part | of this report and the notes to that tat

(5) Net charg-offs include the remaining principal balance, aftee application of the net proceeds from theiligtion of the vehicle
(excluding accrued and unpaid interest) and amouotected subsequent to the date of the chargenatfiding some recoveries which
have been classified as other income in the accagipg financial statements. For further informatigarding charge-offs, see the
table captione¢* Net Charg-Off Experience" in Item |, Part | of this report and the notes hat table.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion And Analysis Of Rancial Condition And Results Of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with our consolidated financiatstments and notes thereto and o
information included or incorporated by refereneedin.

Overview

We are a specialty finance company. Our businetsspsrchase and service retail automobile corgradginated primarily by franchised
automobile dealers and, to a lesser extent, bytsiel@ependent dealers in the United States irsdle of new and used automobiles, light
trucks and passenger vans. Through our automatmilgact purchases, we provide indirect financintheocustomers of dealers who have
limited credit histories, low incomes or past ctgubblems, who we refer to as sub-prime custonWisserve as an alternative source of
financing for dealers, facilitating sales to custvsnwho otherwise might not be able to obtain fairag from traditional sources, such as
commercial banks, credit unions and the captiverfoe companies affiliated with major automobile afaoturers. In addition to purchasing
installment purchase contracts directly from desalese have also (i) acquired installment purchaseracts in four merger and acquisition
transactions, (ii) purchased immaterial amountgetiicle purchase money loans from non-affiliatedlkrs, and (iii) directly originated an
immaterial amount of vehicle purchase money loaniebding money directly to consumers. In this mpoe refer to all of such contracts
and loans as "automobile contracts."”

We were incorporated and began our operations irciMa991. From inception through December 31, 20&2have purchased a total of
approximately $10.4 billion of automobile contrafttsm dealers. In addition, we acquired a totaypproximately $822.3 million of
automobile contracts in mergers and acquisitiorZ0d2, 2003, 2004 and, most recently in Septembgt.2The September 2011 acquisition
consisted of approximately $217.8 million of autdrte contracts that we purchased from Fireside Ba#rRleasanton, California. In 2004
and 2009, we were appointed as a third-party serdar certain portfolios of automobile contractgymated and owned by non-affiliated
entities. From 2008 through 2010, our managed @latflecreased each year due to our strategy dfrigncontract purchases to conserve
liquidity during the financial crisis and resultingcession, as discussed further below. HoweuwsredDctober 2009, we have gradually
increased contract purchase which, in turn, hadtezbin recent increases in our managed portf®acent contract purchase volumes and
managed portfolio levels are shown in the tablewel

Contract Purchases and Outstanding Managed Portfodi
$ in thousand:

Contracts

Purchased in Managed Portfolio
Year Period at Period End
2008 $ 296,817 % 1,664,12;
2009 8,59¢ 1,194,72;
2010 113,02¢ 756,20
2011 284,23t 794,64¢
2012 551,74 897,57"
2013 764,08 1,231,42

We are headquartered in Irvine, California, whemsnoperational and administrative functions argre¢ized. Most credit and
underwriting functions are performed in our Califiar headquarters with some credit functions peréatim our Florida and Nevada offices.
We service our automobile contracts from our Catifa headquarters and from three servicing branch¥gginia, Florida and lllinois.

We purchase contracts in our own name (“CPS”) antl July 2008, also in the name of our wholly-esnsubsidiary, TFC. Programs
marketed under the CPS name are intended to sevideaange of sub-prime customers, primarily tlgtodranchised new car dealers. Our
TFC program served vehicle purchasers enlistedantS. Armed Forces, primarily through independesetd car dealers. In July 2008, we
ended our TFC program.

We purchase automobile contracts with the intendibfinancing them on a long-term basis througtuséizations. Securitizations are
transactions in which we sell a specified poolaiftcacts to one of our special purpose subsidianbih in turn issues asset-backed
securities to fund its purchase of the pool of cacts. Depending on the structure of the secutitizathe transaction may be treated, for
financial accounting purposes, as a sale of th&r&cits or as a secured financing.
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Securitization and Warehouse Credit Facilities

Throughout the periods for which information isg@eted in this report, we have purchased automobil&racts with the intention of
financing them on a long-term basis through seieatibns, and on an interim basis through wareheousdit facilities. All such financings
have involved identification of specific automobdentracts, sale of those automobile contracts éssdciated rights) to one of our special-
purpose subsidiaries, and issuance of asset-baekedities to fund the transactions. Dependingherstructure, these transactions may be
accounted for under generally accepted accountingiples as sales of the automobile contractsaegured financings.

When structured to be treated as a secured fingfciraccounting purposes, the subsidiary is cotated with us. Accordingly, the sold
automobile contracts and the related debt appeassets and liabilities, respectively, on our ctidated balance sheet. We then periodically:
(i) recognize interest and fee income on the cotgrdii) recognize interest expense on the saearigsued in the transaction, and (iii) record
as expense a provision for credit losses on thacts. From July 2003 through April 2008, all ofr @ecuritizations were structured in this
manner. In September 2008, we securitized automabihtracts in a transaction that was in substarszde, that was treated as a sale for
accounting purposes, and in which we retainediduakinterest in the automobile contracts. Theawiing receivables from the September
2008 securitization were re-securitized in Septar@B&0 in a structure that maintained sale treatrfteraccounting purposes. In 2011, we
completed three securitizations of approximatel338 million in newly originated contracts. Durigg12 we completed four securitizations
of approximately $603.5 million in contracts, inding $58.2 million in contracts that were repur@hffom 2006 and 2007 securitizations in
2012. In 2013 we completed four securitizationamfroximately $778.0 million in contracts. Sincel20all of our securitizations have been
structured as secured financings.

When structured to be treated as a sale for acicmuptirposes, the assets and liabilities of theigppurpose subsidiary are not
consolidated with us. Accordingly, the transactiemoves the sold automobile contracts from our alichsted balance sheet, the related debt
does not appear as our debt, and our consolidaladde sheet shows, as an asset, a retained fdsiguest in the sold automobile contracts.
The residual interest represents the discountacevafl what we expect will be the excess of futwiections on the automobile contracts ¢
principal and interest due on the asset-backeditiesu That residual interest appears on our dafeted balance sheet as " residual interest
in securitizations, " and the determination ofviddue is dependent on our estimates of the futartopnance of the sold automobile contracts.
Of our managed portfolio outstanding at Decembe2813, only our September 2010 securitization stasctured to be treated as a sale for
accounting purposes.

Credit Risk Retained

Whether a sale of automobile contracts in conneatiith a securitization or warehouse credit fagilet treated as a secured financing or
as a sale for financial accounting purposes, tlade@ special-purpose subsidiary may be unablelémse excess cash to us if the credit
performance of the related automobile contracts &lort of pre-determined standards. Such releapessent a material portion of the cash
that we use to fund our operations. An unexpecetdribration in the performance of such automotmletracts could therefore have a
material adverse effect on both our liquidity amnl gesults of operations, regardless of whetheh sutomobile contracts are treated for
financial accounting purposes as having been sodd dlaving been financed. For estimation of thgnitade of such risk, it may be
appropriate to look to the size of our " managedfplio, " which represents both financed and smilomobile contracts as to which such
credit risk is retained. Our managed portfolio BBecember 31, 2013 was approximately $1,231.4onillwhich includes a third party
servicing portfolio of $4.9 million on which we e@eonly servicing fees and have no credit risk.

Critical Accounting Policies
We believe that our accounting policies relateth)oAllowance for Finance Credit Losses, (b) Angation of Deferred Originations
Costs and Acquisition Fees, (c) Term Securitizatigd) Finance Receivables and Related Debt Medsur€air Value (e) Accrual for

Contingent Liabilities and (f) Income Taxes are thest critical to understanding and evaluatingreported financial results. Such policies
are described below.
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Allowance for Finance Credit Loss

In order to estimate an appropriate allowancedssés incurred on finance receivables, we usesallisvance methodology commonly
referred to as " static pooling, " which stratifaas finance receivable portfolio into separatelgritified pools based on the period of
origination. Using analytical and formula driverchaiques, we estimate an allowance for financeicleskes, which we believe is adequate
for probable incurred credit losses that can bearably estimated in our portfolio of automobiletacts. For each monthly pool of contre
that we purchase, we begin establishing the alloeamthe month of acquisition and increase it diiersubsequent 11 months, through a
provision for credit losses charged to our consiéd statement of operations. Net losses incumdihance receivables are charged to the
allowance. We evaluate the adequacy of the alloezéyaexamining current delinquencies, the charesties of the portfolio, prospective
liquidation values of the underlying collateral aggheral economic and market conditions. As cir¢antes change, our level of provision
and/or allowance may change as well.

Broad economic factors such as recession and gignifchanges in unemployment levels influencectiedit performance of our
portfolio, as does the weighted average age ofdbeivables at any given time. Our internal crpdiformance data consistently show that
new receivables have lower levels of delinquenaylasses early in their lives, with delinquenciesréasing throughout their lives and losses
gradually increasing to a peak between 36 and 4&moafter which they gradually decrease. Theticstl weighted average seasoning of
our total owned portfolio excluding Fireside, isysuarized in the table below:

Weighted Average Age
in Months of Owned
December 31, Portfoio
2009 33
2010 37
2011 27
2012 18
2013 14

The credit performance of our portfolio is alsonsfigantly influenced by our underwriting guidelmand credit criteria we use when
evaluating contracts for purchase from dealersr&gelarly evaluate our portfolio credit performameel modify our purchase criteria to
maximize the credit performance of our portfolidile maintaining competitive programs and levels@ivice for our dealers.

Amortization of Deferred Originations Costs and Aisition Fees

Upon purchase of a contract from a dealer, we gdlgagither charge or advance the dealer an adauidee. In addition, we incur
certain direct costs associated with originatiohsus contracts. All such acquisition fees and dcligosts are applied to the carrying value of
finance receivables and are accreted into eariags adjustment to the yield over the estimafedfithe contract using the interest method.

Term Securitizations
Our term securitization structure has generallynteefollows:

We sell automobile contracts we acquire to a whoWyned special purpose subsidiary, which has bstblkshed for the limited purpose
of buying and reselling our automobile contractse Epeciapurpose subsidiary then transfers the same autdenodoitracts to another enti
typically a statutory trust. The trust issues iagtthearing asset-backed securities, in a prineipalunt equal to or less than the aggregate
principal balance of the automobile contracts. Wecally sell these automobile contracts to thettai face value and without recourse,
except that representations and warranties sinailirose provided by the dealer to us are provigeds to the trust. One or more investors
purchase the asset-backed securities issued liguiiethe proceeds from the sale of the assetdahs&curities are then used to purchase the
automobile contracts from us. We may retain orsablordinated asset-backed securities issued hyusteor by a related entity. Through
2008, we generally purchased external credit erdrarat for most of our term securitizations in thenf of a financial guaranty insurance
policy, guaranteeing timely payment of interest atitnate payment of principal on the senior assatked securities, from an insurance
company. However, in our 12 most recent securitimatsince 2010, we have not purchased financialaguy insurance policies and do not
expect to do so in the near future.
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We structure our securitizations to include intéaradit enhancement for the benefit the invesfiris the form of an initial cash deposit
to an account (" spread account ") held by tasti(ii) in the form of overcollateralization dfe senior asset-backed securities, where the
principal balance of the senior asset-backed seesiissued is less than the principal balance@fiutomobile contracts, (iii) in the form of
subordinated asset-backed securities, or (iv) smomination of such internal credit enhancemertige. dgreements governing the
securitization transactions require that the ihigael of internal credit enhancement be supplaectby a portion of collections from the
automobile contracts until the level of internadit enhancement reaches specified levels, whiglth&n maintained. The specified levels are
generally computed as a percentage of the prinaip@unt remaining unpaid under the related automabintracts. The specified levels at
which the internal credit enhancement is to be taaied will vary depending on the performance efportfolios of automobile contracts
held by the trusts and on other conditions, and aisy be varied by agreement among us, our sgaaipbse subsidiary, the insurance
company, if any, and the trustee. Such levels hareased and decreased from time to time bas@eéidormance of the various portfolios,
and have also varied from one transaction to anoftee agreements governing the securitizationgi@gdly grant us the option to repurchase
the sold automobile contracts from the trust whenaggregate outstanding balance of the automedmiiracts has amortized to a specified
percentage of the initial aggregate balance.

Our September 2008 securitization and the subségeacuritization of the remaining receivablesrfrsuch transaction in September
2010 were each in substance sales of the undenlgo®ejvables, and have been treated as sales&rcial accounting purposes. They differ
from those treated as secured financings in theatrtist to which our special-purpose subsidiandd the automobile contracts met the
definition of a "qualified special-purpose entityfider Statement of Financial Accounting StandardsI¥0 (ASC 860 10 65-2). As a result,
assets and liabilities of those trusts are notalateted into our consolidated balance sheet.

Historically, our warehouse credit facility strusts were similar to the above, except that (i)special-purpose subsidiaries that
purchased the automobile contracts pledged theranltibe contracts to secure promissory notes thet issued, (ii) no increase in the
required amount of internal credit enhancementeoasemplated, and (jii) we did not purchase finahguaranty insurance. Since October
2009, we have established new funding facilitied gradually increased our contract purchases. Marently, we increased our short-term
contract financing resources by $200 million byeeimg into agreements for a $100 million creditilifgcin December 2010 and for another
$100 million credit facility in February 2011. Indyt 2012, the revolving period of the February 2fxdlity expired and we entered into a
new $100 million credit facility with a differenéhder. In March 2013, the December 2012 facilitg waended to extend the revolving
period to March 2015 and also to include an amatitin period through March 2017 for any receivalplesiged to the facility at the end of
the revolving period. In June 2013, the May 201dlity was amended to extend the revolving perimdune 2015 and also to include an
amortization period through June 2016 for any naatdies pledged to the facility at the end of theoheing period. Our current maximum
revolving warehouse financing capacity is $200 ioill

Upon each transfer of automobile contracts in astation structured as a secured financing fonfiie accounting purposes, whether a
term securitization or a warehouse financing, waineon our consolidated balance sheet the rekatéaimobile contracts as assets and record
the asset-backed notes or loans issued in theattos as indebtedness.

Under the September 2008 and September 2010 seatioits, and other term securitizations complgtear to July 2003 that were
structured as sales for financial accounting puepps/e removed from our consolidated balance sheetutomobile contracts sold and added
to our consolidated balance sheet (i) the cashvwedeif any, and (ii) the estimated fair valuetioé ownership interest that we retained in the
automobile contracts sold in the transaction. Té&tined or residual interest consisted of (a)cdsh held in the spread account, if any, (b)
overcollateralization, if any, (c) asset-backedusigies retained, if any, and (d) receivables fritna trust, which include the net interest
receivables. Net interest receivables represerggtimated discounted cash flows to be received fte trust in the future, net of principal
and interest payable with respect to the assetduboktes, the premium paid to the insurance compiagy, and certain other expenses. The
excess of the cash received and the assets weagt@aver the carrying value of the automobile awtt sold, less transaction costs, equaled
the net gain on sale of automobile contracts werdkd.

We receive periodic base servicing fees for theicieig and collection of the automobile contra¢iader our securitization structures
treated as secured financings for financial acdogrurposes, such servicing fees are includedtarest income from the automobile
contracts. In addition, we are entitled to the démlus from the trusts that represent collectionghee automobile contracts in excess of the
amounts required to pay principal and interesthenasset-backed securities, base servicing fe@geatain other fees and expenses (such as
trustee and custodial fees). Required principahpgayts on the asset-backed notes are generallyededmthe payments sufficient to keep the
principal balance of such notes equal to the aggeggrincipal balance of the related automobilereats (excluding those automobile
contracts that have been charged off), or a prerohéed percentage of such balance. Where tha¢ip@ge is less than 100%, the related
securitization agreements require accelerated patyaigorincipal until the principal balance of thsset-backed securities is reduced to the
specified percentage. Such accelerated principahpat is said to create overcollateralization ef &isset-backed notes.
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If the amount of cash required for payment of feapenses, interest and principal on the seni@tdmcked notes exceeds the amount
collected during the collection period, the shdrifawithdrawn from the spread account, if anytHé cash collected during the period exct
the amount necessary for the above allocationsrphpgired principal payments on the subordinatedtasacked notes, and there is no
shortfall in the related spread account or the iregwvercollateralization level, the excess igaskd to us. If the spread account and
overcollateralization is not at the required lewleén the excess cash collected is retained itraiseuntil the specified level is achieved.
Although spread account balances are held by tiséston behalf of our special-purpose subsidiasethe owner of the residual interests (in
the case of securitization transactions structasesales for financial accounting purposes) otrtiss (in the case of securitization
transactions structured as secured financingdrfan€ial accounting purposes), we are restrictagsaof the cash in the spread accounts.
Cash held in the various spread accounts is ingdésthigh quality, liquid investment securities,specified in the securitization agreements.
The interest rate payable on the automobile cotstiacsignificantly greater than the interest @mtethe asset-backed notes. As a result, the
residual interests described above historicallyeHasen a significant asset of ours.

In all of our term securitizations and warehousslitrfacilities, whether treated as secured finageior as sales, we have sold the
automobile contracts (through a subsidiary) tosteeuritization entity. The difference between thie structures is that in securitizations that
are treated as secured financings we report tietsagsd liabilities of the securitization trustaur consolidated balance sheet. Under both
structures, recourse to us by holders of the dsseked securities and by the trust, for failuréhef automobile contract obligors to make
payments on a timely basis, is limited to the autbite contracts included in the securitizationsvarehouse credit facilities, the spread
accounts and our retained interests in the resfgettists.

Since the third quarter of 2003, we have conduBteterm securitizations. Of these 36, 30 were p@ifgenerally quarterly)
securitizations of automobile contracts that wechased from automobile dealers under our regutagrams. In addition, in March 2004 and
November 2005, we completed securitizations ofretained interests in other securitizations thatwe our affiliates previously sponsor:

The debt from the March 2004 transaction was rejpafligust 2005, and the debt from the Novembei528&nsaction was repaid in May
2007. Also, in June 2004, we completed a secutitizaf automobile contracts purchased under ol pFogram and acquired in a bulk
purchase. Further, in December 2005 and May 200@on®leted securitizations that included automotiletracts purchased under the TFC
programs, automobile contracts purchased undeCEtR programs and automobile contracts we repurdhgsan termination of prior
securitizations. Since July 2003 all such secutitins have been structured as secured finanamgspt our September 2008 and September
2010 securitizations that were in substance sdil#f®eainderlying receivables, and were treatedcabesdor financial accounting purposes.

Our December 2013 securitization included a prelifug feature in which a portion of the receivalitebe pledged to the securitization
trust were not scheduled to be delivered to th& wratil after the initial closing. As a result,raestricted cash balance at December 31, 2013
included $63.4 million from the proceeds of theesafl the securitization notes that were held bytthstee pending delivery of the remaining
receivables. In January 2014, the requisite adtiticeceivables were delivered to the trust andemeived the related restricted cash, a
significant portion of which was used to repay amswwed under our warehouse credit facilities.

Finance Receivables and Related Debt Measured iatviadue

In September 2011 we purchased finance receivéttolesFireside Bank. These receivables are pledgemblateral for debt that was
structured specifically for the acquisition of tipisrtfolio. Since the Fireside receivables wergiodted by another entity with its own
underwriting guidelines and procedures, we haveteteto account for the Fireside receivables andehlated debt secured by those
receivables at their estimated fair values so¢hanges in fair value will be reflected in our lesof operations as they occur. There are
limited observable inputs available to us for measent of such receivables, or for the related.d#et use our own assumptions about the
factors that we believe market participants woudd in pricing similar receivables and debt, andoased on the best information available in
the circumstances. The valuation method used imats fair value may produce a fair value measurgrtat may not be indicative of
ultimate realizable value. Furthermore, while wédwe our valuation methods are appropriate andistent with those used by other market
participants, the use of different methods or aggtions to estimate the fair value of certain finahmstruments could result in different
estimates of fair value. Those estimated values aifésr significantly from the values that woulduebeen used had a readily available
market for such receivables or debt existed, ordumth receivables or debt been liquidated, ancetdiferences could be material to the
financial statements.
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Accrual for Contingent Liabilitie

We are routinely involved in various legal proceegdi resulting from our consumer finance activiiad practices, both continuing and
discontinued. Our legal counsel has advised usioh satters where, based on information availabikeeatime of this report, there is an
indication that it is both probable that a lialyilitas been incurred and the amount of the losdearasonably determined.

We have recorded a liability as of December 31 328hich represents our best estimate of probalsieried losses for legal
contingencies. The amount of losses that may uléiiymde incurred cannot be estimated with certaiHgywever, based on such information
as is available to us, we believe that the rangeasonably possible losses for the legal procegsdind contingencies described or referencec
above, as of December 31, 2013, and in exces®diathility we have recorded, is from $0 to $1.6liwom.

Accordingly, we believe that the ultimate resoluataf such legal proceedings and contingencies:, t&fking into account our current
litigation reserves, should not have a materiakast effect on our consolidated financial conditMfe note, however, that in light of the
uncertainties inherent in contested proceedingsetban be no assurance that the ultimate resolatithese matters will not significantly
exceed the reserves we have accrued; as a résuttutcome of a particular matter may be matesialr operating results for a particular
period, depending on, among other factors, thedfitiee loss or liability imposed and the leveloofr income for that period.

Income Taxe

We account for income taxes under the asset abititifamethod, which requires the recognition ofeteed tax assets and liabilities for
the expected future tax consequences of eventsdivatbeen included in the financial statementslddithis method, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on the differerimsveen the financial statements and tax basaiss¥ts and liabilities using enacted tax rates
in effect for the year in which the differences axpected to reverse. The effect of a change inafs on deferred tax assets and liabilities is
recognized in income in the period that includesdhactment date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to neamagt’s judgment that realization is more likelgrimot. A valuation allowance is
recognized for a deferred tax asset if, based enviight of the available evidence, it is morelijikban not that some portion of the deferred
tax asset will not be realized. In making such grdgnts, significant weight is given to evidencd tza be objectively verified. As a result of
the unprecedented adverse changes in the markstdaritizations, the recession and the resultigh kevels of unemployment that occurred
in 2008 and 2009, we incurred substantial operdtisges from 2009 through 2011 which led us tobdistaa valuation allowance against a
substantial portion of our deferred tax assets. él@w, since the fourth quarter of 2011, we haventep nine consecutive quarters of
increasing profitability. Furthermore, we have destoated an ability to increase our volumes of i@tpurchases, grow our managed
portfolio and obtain cost effective short- and lgegm financing for our finance receivables.

As a result of these and other factors, we detexchat December 31, 2012 that, based on the weidghe@vailable objective evidence, it
was more likely than not that we would generatéi@eht future taxable income to utilize our nefateed tax assets. Accordingly, we
reversed the related valuation allowance of $6218omin the fourth quarter of 2012.

Our net deferred tax asset of $59.2 million, aBefember 31, 2013, consists of approximately $filiBon of net U.S. federal deferred
tax assets and $11.4 million of net state defalag@ssets. The major components of the deferredsset are $36.9 million in net operating
loss carryforwards and built in losses and $22I8aniin net deductions which have not yet beereta&n a tax return.

As of December 31, 2013, we had net operatingdaayforwards for federal and state income tax psies of $48.4 million and $129.8
million, respectively. The federal net operatingdes begin to expire in 2022. The state net opegriisses begin to expire in 2014.
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In determining the possible future realization efatred tax assets, we have considered future lakatome from the following sources:
(a) reversal of taxable temporary differences; @mdorecasted future net earnings from operatiBased upon those considerations, we have
concluded that it is more likely than not that th&. and state net operating loss carryforwarcbperprovide enough time to utilize the
deferred tax assets pertaining to the existingopetating loss carryforwards and any net operdtisg that would be created by the revers
the future net deductions which have not yet bakart on a tax return. Our estimates of taxablenmecare forward-looking statements, and
there can be no assurance that our estimates loftaxable income will be correct. Factors discussader "Risk Factors," and in particular
under the subheading "Risk Factors -- Forward-LoglStatements" may affect whether such projectiooge to be correct.

We recognize interest and penalties related toaogrézed tax benefits within the income tax expdimgein the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. Accrueddsteand penalties are included within the reléadiability line in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Uncertainty of Capital Markets and General EconomicConditions

We depend upon the availability of warehouse crfaditities and access to long-term financing tlylethe issuance of asset-backed
securities collateralized by our automobile cortgaSince 1994, we have completed 61term secuidizmof approximately $8.5 billion in
contracts. From the fourth quarter of 2007 throtighend of 2009, we observed unprecedented adekeasges in the market for securitized
pools of automobile contracts. These changes iedudduced liquidity, and reduced demand for asaeked securities, particularly for
securities carrying a financial guaranty and fausiies backed by sub-prime automobile receivalesreover, during that period many of
the firms that previously provided financial guaess, which were an integral part of our secutitizes, suspended offering such guarantees.
These adverse changes caused us to conservetlduydsignificantly reducing our purchases of aubdiite contracts. However, since
September 2009 we have established new fundinlifiisiand gradually increased our contract purebasd the frequency and amount of
our term securitizations. Our recent history ofrtesecuritizations is summarized in the table below:

Recent Asset-Backed Term Securitizations

$ in thousand:

Receivables
Number of Term Pledged in Term
Period Securitizations Securitizations
2006 4 $ 957,68:
2007 3 1,118,09
2008 2 509,02:
2009 0 -
2010 1 103,77:
2011 3 335,59:
2012 4 603,50(
2013 4 778,00(

Our 2012 securitizations included $58.2 milliorcomtracts that were repurchased in 2012 from siations closed in 2006 and 2007.
Our 2013 securitizations included $7.4 million ontracts that were repurchased from a securitizafiosed in 2008. Since 2011 all of our
securitizations have been structured as securaddings and none have utilized financial guarantees

Our current short-term funding capacity is $200ionl, consisting of two credit facilities. The fir8100 million credit facility was
established in December 2010. This facility wasevesed in March 2013, extending the revolving petm&larch 2015, and adding an
amortization period through March 2017. Our sec®h@0 million credit facility was established in M2912. This facility was renewed in
June 2013, extending the revolving period to JWtb2and adding an amortization period through AQie.
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Financial Covenants

Certain of our securitization transactions andwarehouse credit facilities contain various finahciovenants requiring certain minimi
financial ratios and results. Such covenants irelméintaining minimum levels of liquidity and nebsth and not exceeding maximum
leverage levels. In addition, certain securitiza@md non-securitization related debt contain edefault provisions that would allow certain
creditors to declare a default if a default occdimaeder a different facility. As of December 3112@ve were in compliance with all such
financial covenants.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Operating Results for the year erldedember 31, 2013 with the year ended Decembez(@L,

Revenues In April 2013, we repurchased the outstandings€ID notes from our first 2008 securitizationdarash payment and a new
note. We subsequently exercised our “clean-up cgiion and repurchased the remaining collatecahfthe related securitization trust. The
aggregate value of our consideration for the Classtes was $10.9 million less than our carryiniyeaf the Class D notes at the time of the
repurchase. As a result of the repurchase of thesdD notes and the termination of the securitratiust, we realized a gain of $10.9 milli
or 4.3% of our total revenues of $255.8 million year ended December 31, 2013.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, exclutiegjain on cancellation of debt of $10.9 milliony revenues were $244.8 million,
an increase of $57.6 million, or 30.8%, from thepyear revenue of $187.2 million. The primarysea for the increase in revenues is an
increase in interest income. Interest income fenythar ended December 31, 2013 increased $56i0midir 32.0%, to $231.3 million from
$175.3 million in the prior year. The primary reagor the increase in interest income is the ingeda finance receivables held by
consolidated subsidiaries, which increased fron8$Bnillion at December 31, 2012 to $1,222.5 millat December 31, 2013. The table
below shows the average balances of our portf@ld hy consolidated subsidiaries for the year eridlecember 31, 2013 and 2012:

Average Balances for the Year Ende

December 31, 201. December 31, 201.
Amount Amount
Finance Receivables Owned by (% in millions)
Consolidated Subsidiaries
CPS Originated Receivabl $ 1,044, $ 699.(
Fireside 31.2 103.t
Total $ 1,076.( $ 802.5

Servicing fees totaling $3.1 in the year ended besmr 31, 2013 increased $788,000, or 34.2%, fro/® §@lion in the prior year. We
earn base servicing fees on three portfolios treatlacreasing in size as we receive customer pagraed, consequently, base servicing fees
are decreasing also. On one of those portfolioweler, we recently began earning an incentive seyifee. Such incentive servicing fee
was $1.6 million for the year ended December 31328hd more than offset the decrease of $600,008da servicing fees. We did not earn
any incentive servicing fee in the prior year. Abecember 31, 2013 and 2012, our managed portfelioed by consolidated vs. non-
consolidated subsidiaries and other third partias as follows:

December 31, 201, December 31, 201,
Amount (1) % (2) Amount (1) % (2)
Total Managed Portfolio (% in millions)

Owned by Consolidated Subsidiar

CPS Originated Receivabl $ 1,207." 98.1% $ 807.¢ 90.0%

Fireside 14.¢ 1.2% 60.¢ 6.8%
Owned by No-Consolidated Subsidiari 4.C 0.3% 17.2 1.9%
Third-Party Servicing Portfolios 4.9 0.4% 11.€ 1.3%
Total $ 1,231.¢ 100.0% $ 897.¢ 100.0%

(1) Contractual balances.
(2) Percentages may not add up to 100% due to riognd
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At December 31, 2013, we were generating incomefe@slon a managed portfolio with an outstandirgcgral balance of $1,231.4
million (this amount includes $4.0 million of autobiile contracts on which we earn servicing fees@md a residual interest and also
includes another $4.9 million of automobile contsaan which we earn base and incentive servicieg)fecompared to a managed portfolio
with an outstanding principal balance of $897.diorlas of December 31, 2012. At December 31, 20482012, the managed portfolio
composition was as follows:

December 31, 201. December 31, 201.
Amount (1) % (2) Amount (1) % (2)

Originating Entity (% in millions)

CPS $ 1,213.¢ 98.6% $ 825.( 91.9%
Fireside 14.¢ 1.2% 60.¢ 6.8%
TFC - 0.0% 0.2 0.0%
Third Party Portfolio 2.8 0.2% 11.€ 1.3%
Total $ 1,231. 100.0 $ 897.€ 100.0%

(1) Contractual balances.
(2) Percentages may not add up to 100% due to riognd

Other income increased by $816,000, or 8.5%, to4dfllion in the year ended December 31, 2013 f&8® million during the prior
year. The increase is comprised of a net increb$415,000 in the fair value of the receivables dalt associated with the Fireside portfc
acquisition, an increase of $558,000 in fees aaatiwith direct mail and other related products services that we offer to our dealers, and
an increase of $58,000 in payments from third-pproywiders of convenience fees paid by our custerfierweb based and other electronic
payments. These increases were partially offset dgcrease of $215,000 in recoveries on receivédaesthe 2002 acquisition of MFN
Financial Corporation and a decrease in salessfaxds of $30,000.

Expenses Our operating expenses consist largely of promifor credit losses, interest expense, emplogsésand general and
administrative expenses. Provision for credit lesmed interest expense are significantly affectethb volume of automobile contracts we
purchased during the trailing 12-month period apdhie outstanding balance of finance receivabléd iye consolidated subsidiaries.
Employee costs and general and administrative esqzeare incurred as applications and automobileaxis are received, processed and
serviced. Factors that affect margins and net ircorolude changes in the automobile and automdéib#ece market environments, and
macroeconomic factors such as interest rates ambyels in the unemployment level.

Employee costs include base salaries, commissimh®anuses paid to employees, and certain expegisésd to the accounting
treatment of outstanding stock options, and areoboeir most significant operating expenses. Thests (other than those relating to stock
options) generally fluctuate with the level of dapations and automobile contracts processed anitedr

Other operating expenses consist largely of fasliexpenses, telephone and other communicatioitasy credit services, computer
services, marketing and advertising expenses, apcediation and amortization.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we rezedr$#7.8 million in contingent liability expenseseither record or increase the
amounts we believe we may incur related to varprrading litigation. The amount was allocated int paa long running case we refer to as
the Stanwich litigation, and also to more recenttena including two California class action suitsere we are the defendant, and a
governmental inquiry, in which the United Statesléral Trade Commission (“FTC”) has informally prepd that the we refrain from certain
allegedly unfair trade practices, and make regtibatry payments into a consumer relief fund.

The following comparison of our expenses for tharyended December 31, 2013 and 2012 excludes {acirof the $7.8 million
contingent liability expense incurred in the yeaded December 31, 2013.

Total operating expenses were $210.8 million ferybar ended December 31, 2013, compared to $iBidn for the prior year, an
increase of $32.7 million, or 18.4%. The increasprimarily due to the increase in the amount of nentracts we purchased, the resulting
increase in our consolidated portfolio and assediakrvicing costs, and the related increase ipmvision for credit losses. Increases in «
operating expenses and provision for credit logsae partially offset by decreases in interest agpe
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Employee costs increased by $7.4 million or 20.8%443.0 million during the year ended December2Bi3, representing 20.4% of
total operating expenses, from $35.6 million fax grior year, or 20.0% of total operating expenSasce 2010, we have added employees in
our Originations and Marketing departments to agooaate the increase in contract purchases. Moemtlgc we have also added Servicing
staff to accommodate the increase in the numbacodunts in our managed portfolio. The table bedammarizes our employees by categ
as well as contract purchases and units in our geghportfolio as of, and for the years ended, Ddxaer31, 2013 and 2012:

December 31 December 31
2013 2012
Amount Amount
(% in millions)
Contracts purchased (dolla $ 764.1 % 551.7
Contracts purchased (uni 48,99¢ 36,03(
Managed portfolio outstanding (dolla $ 1,231 $ 897.¢
Managed portfolio outstanding (uni 99,84: 91,54¢
Number of Originations sta 17z 14¢€
Number of Marketing sta 11¢ 89
Number of Servicing sta 34¢ 27¢
Number of other sta: 66 60
Total number of employees 70& 574

General and administrative expenses include cestcated with purchasing and servicing our pddfof finance receivables, including
expenses for facilities, credit services, and miemunications. General and administrative expewses $16.3 million, an increase of
$916,000, or 5.9%, compared to the previous yedrepresented 7.8% of total operating expenses.

Interest expense for the year ended December 3B, @€creased by $21.2 million to $58.2 million26r7%, compared to $79.4 million
in the previous year.

Interest expense on the Fireside portfolio creatitlity decreased by $12.0 million compared togher year as the Fireside portfolio and
the related debt have paid down to significantlydo levels over the last year.

Interest on securitization trust debt decreasefi3» million for the year ended December 31, 20dr8ared to the prior year. Although
the average balance of securitization trust detyeesed to $941.6 million at December 31, 2013 eoetpto $630.0 million at December 31,
2012, the blended interest rates on new term gemations since 2012 have been significantly lothen in previous years. As a result, during
2013, portions of our securitization debt that waunestanding at December 31, 2012 at higher blentdedest rates were repaid as we added
new securitization trust debt at significantly lovibended interest rates.

Interest expense on senior secured debt and snlatedidebt decreased by $4.7 million. This waspdinearily to the April 2013
repayment of $15.0 million in senior secured delat t the reduction in the interest rate on theaiamg senior secured debt from 16.0% to
13.0%. In addition, we reduced the balance of astanding subordinated renewable notes by $4lbmfrom $23.3 million at December
31, 2012 to $19.1 million at December 31, 2013. fidtiiction in interest expense was also a resutinflecreasing the blended interest rate
on our subordinated renewable notes from 14.4%eaeMber 31, 2012 to 12.5% at December 31, 2013.

Interest expense on residual interest financingeemed $701,000 in the year ended December 31,&20Bared to the prior year. The
increase is due to the establishment in April 26fl8 new $20 million residual interest financindnigwas partially offset by the September
2013 repayment of the $13.8 million of indebtedrmsstanding under the residual facility originadistablished in 2007.

Interest expense on warehouse debt decreased ®ynilion for the year ended December 31, 2013 caneq to the prior year. Although

we increased our contract purchases to $764.lomilbr the year ended December 31, 2013 compar$83b.7 million in the prior period,
recently we have relied less on warehouse crediiitfeas and more on unrestricted cash balancésrtd receivables prior to securitization.
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The following table presents the components of@geincome and interest expense and a net intgeddtanalysis for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Annualized Annualized
Average Average Average Average
Balance (1) Interest Yield/Rate Balance (1) Interest Yield/Rate

Interest Earning Assets
Finance receivables gross $ 1,01540. $ 225,26¢ 222%  $ 662,17 $ 152,97 23.1%
Finance receivables measurt

at fair value 31,29 6,062 19.4% 103,57: 22,33) 21.6%

$ 1,046,69 231,33( 221% $ 765,74« 175,31« 22.9%
Interest Bearing Liabilities

Warehouse lines of crec $ 40,28t 5,00: 124%  $ 36,55¢ 6,92¢ 19.0%
Residual interest financir 24,10° 3,33( 13.8% 15,71¢ 2,62¢ 16.7%
Debt secured by receivables

measured at fair valt 27,50¢ 3,871 14.1% 101,38: 15,87 15.7%
Securitization trust del 941,59 34,74« 3.7% 629,98 38,09t 6.0%
Senior secured debt, related

party 41,90¢ 8,06¢ 19.2% 53,65¢ 12,45¢ 23.2%
Subordinated renewable no 21,76 3,161 14.5% 21,56¢ 3,43¢ 15.9%

$ 1,097,15 58,17¢ 53% $ 858,86( 79,42 9.2%

Net interest income/sprei $ 173,15! $ 95,89:
Net interest margin (¢ 16.5% 12.5%
Ratio of average interest

earning assets to average

interest bearing liabilitie 95% 89%

(1) Average balances are based on month end balancept for warehouse lines of credit, which a@seldl on daily balances.
(2) Net of deferrred fees and direct costs.
(3) Annualized net interest income divided by ageraterest earning assets.

Year Ended December 31, 2013
Compared to December 31, 2012

Total Change Due Change Due
Change to Volume to Rate
Interest Earning Assets (In thousands)

Finance receivables gro $ 72,29 $ 81,60 $ (9,319
Finance receivables measured at fair value (16,27Y) (15,58%) (687

56,01¢ 66,01¢ (20,000

Interest Bearing Liabilities

Warehouse lines of crec (1,925 70€ (2,63))
Residual interest financir 701 1,40¢ (703
Debt secured by receivables measured at fair \ (12,000 (11,569 (431)
Securitization trust del (3,35)) 18,84: (22,199
Senior secured debt, related pe (4,390 (2,729 (1,669
Subordinated renewable notes (27¢) 32 (310

(21,249 6,68¢ (27,937
Net interest income/sprei $ 77,25¢  $ 59,327 $ 17,93:

42




Provision for credit losses was $76.9 million foe tyear ended December 31, 2013, an increase of $4dlion, or 129.5% compared to
the prior year and represented 36.5% of total dipgr@xpenses. The provision for credit losses taais the allowance for finance credit
losses at levels that we feel are adequate forgtebncurred credit losses that can be reasoresbinated. Our approach for establishing the
allowance requires greater amounts of provisiorcfedit losses early in the terms of our finana®iaables. Consequently, the increase in
provision expense is the result of the increasmirtract purchases during the last year and tigedauortfolio owned by our consolidated
subsidiaries compared to the prior year.

Marketing expenses consist primarily of commisdiased compensation paid to our employee marketimgesentatives. Our marketing
representatives earn a salary plus commissionsllmaseolume of contract purchases and sales oflarycproducts and services that we o
our dealers, such as training programs, interrget $ales, and direct mail products. Marketing egpsiincreased by $2.7 million, or 25.3%
$13.4 million during the year ended December 3132@ompared to $10.7 million in the prior yeard aepresented 6.3% of total operating
expenses. For the year ended December 31, 20 unelkased 48,995 contracts representing $764.1omih receivables compared to
36,030 contracts representing $551.7 million ireregbles in the prior year.

Occupancy expenses decreased by $286,000 or ©%2.6 million compared to $2.9 million in the pi@ys year and represented 1.2%
of total operating expenses.

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreas&d®y,000 or 19.5%, to $437,000 compared to $5430¢he previous year and
represented 0.2% of total operating expenses.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we recorednie tax expense of $16.2 million, representid8.8% income tax rate. In the
prior year, we recorded $2.6 million of net tax enpe and reduced our valuation allowance for ofarpil tax assets by $60.6 million, wh
resulted in a net tax benefit of $60.2 million.Pécember 31, 2012, we had reported five consecqtiagters of increasing profitability,
observed improvement in credit metrics, and produesable internal financial projections. Furthem®, we had demonstrated an ability to
increase our new contract purchases, grow our neahpgrtfolio and obtain cost effective short- amidlg-term financing for our finance
receivables. As a result of these and other factoesdetermined at December 31, 2013 that, bas¢ideoweight of the available objective
evidence, it was more likely than not that we woggdherate sufficient future taxable income to zailour deferred tax assets. Accordingly,
reversed the related valuation allowance. Howef/&urfure events change our expected realizatioousfdeferred tax assets, we may be
required to reestablish the related valuation alioge in the future.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

Our business requires substantial cash to suppoachpses of automobile contracts and other operatitivities. Our primary sources of
cash have been cash flow from operating activitreduding proceeds from term securitization trantiesms and other sales of automobile
contracts, amounts borrowed under warehouse deadlities, servicing fees on portfolios of autonilelzontracts previously sold in
securitization transactions or serviced for thiadtigs, customer payments of principal and intavadinance receivables, fees for origination
of automobile contracts, and releases of cash feenritized portfolios of automobile contracts inigh we have retained a residual
ownership interest and the related spread accoDmtsprimary uses of cash have been the purchdsegamobile contracts, repayment of
amounts borrowed under warehouse credit faciliéies$ otherwise, operating expenses such as emplioyesst, occupancy expenses and
other general and administrative expenses, thélestement of spread accounts and initial overcettaization, if any, and the increase of
credit enhancement to required levels in secutitinaransactions, and income taxes. There carolassurance that internally generated cash
will be sufficient to meet our cash demands. THé@ency of internally generated cash will depardthe performance of securitized pools
(which determines the level of releases from thpxs#folios and their related spread accounts)rdite of expansion or contraction in our
managed portfolio, and the terms upon which weahte to purchase, sell, and borrow against autdeobntracts.

Net cash provided by operating activities for teans ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $99idnnaihd $35.0 million,
respectively. Net cash from operating activitiegeserally provided by net income from operatiotigsisted for significant non-cash items
such as our provision for credit losses, provisarcontingent liabilities, accretion of deferrechaisition fees, the $10.9 million gain on
cancellation of debt in 2013 and, in 2012, theamatnge in our deferred tax assets of $62.8 million.
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Net cash used in investing activities for the yevadled December 31, 2013 was $409.6 million comp@areet cash used in investing
activities of $91.5 million in 2012. Cash providey investing activities primarily results from pecipal payments and other proceeds received
on finance receivables held for investment. Cagldl it investing activities generally relates toghases of finance receivables. Purchases of
finance receivables held for investment were $76dlllon and $551.7 million in 2013 and 2012, restpeely.

Net cash provided by financing activities for theay ended December 31, 2013 was $319.3 million eoedpwith net cash provided by
financing activities of $59.4 million in 2012. Casbed or provided by financing activities is prifhaattributable to the repayment or
issuance of debt, and in particular, securitizatiast debt and portfolio acquisition financing. Weued $778.0 million in new securitization
trust debt in 2013 compared to $558.5 million ofvreecuritization trust debt in 2012. Repaymentsagiuritization debt were $382.6 million
and $351.0 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

We purchase automobile contracts from dealers @@sh price approximating their principal amoudjuated for an acquisition fee
which may either increase or decrease the automobiltract purchase price. Those automobile castgemerate cash flow, however, over a
period of years. As a result, we have been depemaewarehouse credit facilities to purchase autnfaaontracts, and on the availability of
cash from outside sources in order to finance outicuing operations, as well as to fund the portdautomobile contract purchase prices
not financed under revolving warehouse credit féged.

The acquisition of automobile contracts for subsegdinancing in securitization transactions, dmeltneed to fund spread accounts and
initial overcollateralization, if any, and increasedit enhancement levels when those transadiadesplace, results in a continuing need for
capital. The amount of capital required is mostiigalependent on the rate of our automobile cantpairchases, the required level of initial
credit enhancement in securitizations, and thengxtewhich the previously established trusts dmdrtrelated spread accounts either release
cash to us or capture cash from collections onrigezad automobile contracts. Of those, the factoist subject to our control is the rate at
which we purchase automobile contracts.

We are and may in the future be limited in ourigbtb purchase automobile contracts due to limitour capital. As of December 31,
2013, we had unrestricted cash of $22.1 million. Vgd $90.5 million available under one warehouseitfacility and $100.0 million
available under our second warehouse credit fagaidvances from both facilities are subject tolatée eligible collateral). During 2013 we
completed four securitizations aggregating $778IBom of receivables, and we intend to continuengeting securitizations regularly duri
2014, although there can be no assurance that ieenable to do so. Our plans to manage our ligpidclude maintaining our rate of
automobile contract purchases at a level that neatolr available capital, and, as appropriate,miging our operating costs. If we are
unable to complete such securitizations, we mayriadle to increase our rate of automobile confranthases, in which case our interest
income and other portfolio related income couldrease.

Our liquidity will also be affected by releasescagh from the trusts established with our secatitns. While the specific terms and
mechanics of each spread account vary among tramssoour securitization agreements generally idethat we will receive excess cash
flows, if any, only if the amount of credit enhament has reached specified levels and the delirayyeiefaults or net losses related to the
automobile contracts in the pool are below cenpagdetermined levels. In the event delinquenciefaudts or net losses on the automobile
contracts exceed such levels, the terms of theriigation: (i) may require increased credit enhament to be accumulated for the particular
pool; or (ii) in certain circumstances, may perthi the transfer of servicing on some or all ofdbieomobile contracts to another servicer.
There can be no assurance that collections fromelaged trusts will continue to generate suffitiesmsh. Moreover, some of our spread
account balances are pledged as collateral toesigual interest financing and, under certain oirstances, releases from our spread account
balances could be diverted to repay such residtedast financing.

One of our securitization transactions, our warskarredit facilities, our residual interest finargcand our financing for the Fireside
portfolio contain various financial covenants remg certain minimum financial ratios and resuisich covenants include maintaining
minimum levels of liquidity and net worth and neteeding maximum leverage levels. In addition, sagreements contain cross-default
provisions that would allow certain creditors teldee a default if a default occurred under a déffe facility. As of December 31, 2013, we
were in compliance with all such covenants.
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We have and will continue to have a substantialiarhof indebtedness. At December 31, 2013, we pbadaimately $1,276.9 million
of debt outstanding. Such debt consisted primaifil$1,177.6 million of securitization trust debtdaalso included $13.1 million in debt for
the acquisition of the Fireside portfolio, $9.5 linih of warehouse lines of credit, $19.1 millionresidual interest financing, $38.6 million of
senior secured related party debt and $19.1 milliubordinated renewable notes. We are alsomlyreffering the subordinated notes to
the public on a continuous basis, and such notes imaturities that range from three months to ldrge

Our recent operating results include pre-tax egof $37.2 million and $9.2 million in 2013 andi2Qrespectively, preceded by pee-
losses of $14.5 million and $16.2 million in 2011de2010, respectively. We believe that our 2011 201D results were materially and
adversely affected by the disruption in the capiatkets that began in the fourth quarter of 2@ the recession that began in December
2007, and by related high levels of unemployment.

Although we believe we are able to service andyepa debt, there is no assurance that we willllde 8 do so. If our plans for future
operations do not generate sufficient cash flowsearnings, our ability to make required paymentsuar debt would be impaired. Failure to
pay our indebtedness when due could have a mateivalrse effect and may require us to issue additidebt or equity securities.
Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our material corttratobligations as of December 31, 2013 (dollahousands):

Payment Due by Period (1)

Less than 2t03 4t05 More than

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long Term Debt (2 $ 76,797 $ 56,29: $ 10,10¢ % 9,17¢ % 1,21¢
Operating Lease $ 13,100 % 3,24¢ % 6,237 $ 2,80t % 81C

(1) Securitization trust debt, in the aggregate amtof $1,177.6 million as of December 31, 201®nistted from this table because it
becomes due as and when the related receivablasdmis reduced by payments and charge-offs. BEegpgetyments, which will depend
on the performance of such receivables, as to wihiere can be no assurance, are $445.7 million0h4 $345.1 million in 2015, $21€
million in 2016, $117.0 million in 2017, $40.3 righ in 2018, and $12.9 million in 2019. Similartiie $13.1 million in debt associated
with the Fireside receivables acquisition measuaethir value is estimated to be repaid in 201

(2) Longterm debt includes residual interest debt, senemused debt and subordinated renewable n¢

For debt that is due in 2014, we anticipate regaitinvith a combination of cash flows from operascand the potential issuance of new
debt.

Warehouse Credit Facilities

The terms on which credit has been available tmupurchase of automobile contracts have variggdent years, as shown in the
following summary of our warehouse credit faciktie

Facility Established in December 2016.December 2010 we entered into a $100 million-jwar warehouse credit line with affiliates
Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Fortress Investment Grolu facility is structured to allow us to fund @rfoon of the purchase price of
automobile contracts by borrowing from a creditlfgcto our consolidated subsidiary Page Six FugdiLC. The facility provides for
advances up to 88% of eligible finance receivabtebthe loans under it accrue interest at a rabtmefmonth LIBOR plus 5.73% per annum,
with a minimum rate of 6.73% per annum. In March2this facility was amended to extend the reva@weriod to March 2015 and to
include an amortization period through March 20di7any receivables pledged to the facility at thed ef the revolving period. There was
$9.5 million outstanding under this facility at ecber 31, 2013.

Facility Established in May 2012n May 11, 2012, we entered into an additional $hillon one-year warehouse credit line with
Citibank, N.A. The facility is structured to allows to fund a portion of the purchase price of awatioite contracts by borrowing from a credit
facility to our consolidated subsidiary Page Eighhding, LLC. The facility provides for effectiveleances up to 88.4% of eligible finance
receivables. The loans under the facility accrierest at one-month LIBOR plus 6.00% per annunt) @itinimum rate of 6.75% per
annum. In June 2013, this facility was amendedktera the revolving period to June 2015 and touidelan amortization period through Ji
2016 for any receivables pledged to the facilitthatend of the revolving period. At December 311, 2there were no amounts outstanding
under this facility.
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Capital Resources

Securitization trust debt is repaid from collecian the related receivables, and becomes dueandance with its terms as the princi
amount of the related receivables is reduced. Aljhahe securitization trust debt also has alteredinal maturity dates, those dates are
significantly later than the dates at which repaghté the related receivables is anticipated, ambaime in our history have any of our
sponsored asset-backed securities reached theseadie final maturities.

The acquisition of automobile contracts for subseqtransfer in securitization transactions, amdribed to fund spread accounts and
initial overcollateralization, if any, when thosarnsactions take place, results in a continuing fieecapital. The amount of capital require
most heavily dependent on the rate of our autoraatmhtract purchases, the required level of indiatlit enhancement in securitizations, and
the extent to which the trusts and related spreadumts either release cash to us or capture oashcollections on securitized automobile
contracts. We plan to adjust our levels of autoreot@ntract purchases and the related capital repeints to match anticipated releases of
cash from the trusts and related spread accounts.

Capitalization

Over the period from January 1, 2012 through Deearh, 2013 we have managed our capitalizatiorsfyimg and refinancing debt as
summarized in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands

RESIDUAL INTEREST FINANCING:

Beginning balanc $ 13,77 $ 21,88
Issuance 20,00( -
Payments (14,67Y) (8,117

Ending balance $ 19,09¢ $ 13,77¢

SECURITIZATION TRUST DEBT:

Beginning balanc $ 792,490 % 583,06!
Issuance 778,00( 558,50(
Payment (382,59) (350,98)
Amortization of discour 60C 1,91
Cancellation of debt (10,949 -

Ending balance $ 1,177,55 $ 792,49

SENIOR SECURED DEBT, RELATED PARTY:

Beginning balanc $ 50,13t $ 58,34«
Issuance 5,28¢ -
Payment (18,857 (12,200
Debt discount net of amortization 1,99: 2,991

Ending balance $ 38,55¢ $ 50,13t

SUBORDINATED RENEWABLE NOTES:

Beginning balanc $ 23,28. % 20,75(
Issuance 1,27¢ 4,95
Payments (5,415) (2,42¢)

Ending balance $ 19,14: % 23,28!

DEBT SECURED BY RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE:

Beginning balanc $ 57,107 $ 166,82
Payment (45,969 (121,419
Accretion of premiun 2,72¢ 4,57¢
Mark to fair value (747) 7,118

Ending balance $ 13,117  $ 57,107
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Residual Interest Financing

In July 2007, we established a combination termrandlving residual credit facility and have usdidible residual interests in
securitizations as collateral for floating rateroarings. The amount that we were able to borrow emsputed using an agreed valuation
methodology of the residuals, subject to an ovenatkimum principal amount of $120 million, repretgehby (i) a $60 million Class A-1
variable funding note (the “revolving note”), ani & $60 million Class A-2 term note (the “termte. The term note was fully drawn in
July 2007 and was originally due in July 2009. Agwdy 2008, we had drawn $26.8 million on the dgirgy note. The facility’s revolving
feature expired in July 2008. On July 10, 2008 weaded the terms of the combination term and réwglkesidual credit facility, (i)
eliminating the revolving feature and increasing ithterest rate, (ii) consolidating the amountsitb@ing on the Class A-1 note with the
Class A-2 note, (iii) establishing an amortizatsmiedule for principal reductions on the Clasg Aete, and (iv) providing for an extension
our option if certain conditions were met, of thasd A2 note maturity from June 2009 to June 2010. Ire R609 we met all such conditic
and extended the maturity. In conjunction with simeendment, we reduced the principal amount outstgrid $70 million by delivering to
the lender (i) warrants valued as being equivaie2;500,000 common shares, or $4,071,429, anda@h of $12,765,244. The warrants
represent the right to purchase 2,500,000 CPS caonsimares at a nominal exercise price, at any tiee  July 10, 2018. In May 2010, we
extended the maturity date from June 2010 to Mayi2h May 2011, we extended the maturity datéeffacility from May 2011 to May
2012. In February 2012, we exchanged certain posiygledged residual interests with new, previpusipledged, residual interests and
extended the maturity date to February 2013. Ine®aper 2012, the maturity date was again extena&édptember 2013 and the requirement
for monthly principal repayments was eliminatedeaftain pool performance measures are met. Thigyagas repaid in full in September
2013.

In April 2013, we established a five-year $20 mifliterm residual facility. The facility is securey eligible residual interests in two
previously securitized pools of automobile receleabThe facility provides for effective advancesta 70.0% of the related borrowing base.
Notes issued under the facility accrue interesing-month LIBOR plus 11.75% per annum.

Securitization Trust Debt.From July 2003 through April 2008, we treated altwitizations of automobile contracts as secured
financings for financial accounting purposes, draldsset-backed securities issued in such seatiotiz remain on our balance sheet as
securitization trust debt. Our September 2008 hadé-securitization of the remaining receivabtesifsuch transaction in September 2010
were each structured as a sale for financial adeogpurposes and the asset-backed securitiesdissukose transactions have not been and
are not on our balance sheet. Since 2011 all blo$ecuritizations have been treated as securaddings and make up $1,168,1 million of
our securitization trust debt at December 31, 2@tBadditional $9.5 million of our December 31, 30decuritization trust debt is from a te
funding facility that we established in March 20%ich is also treated as a secured financing.

Senior Secured DebtFrom 1998 to 2005, we entered into a series offiimay transactions with Levine Leichtman Capitattiers I,
L.P. In July 2007 we repaid the final amounts doder these financing transactions. On June 30,,200&ntered into a series of agreements
pursuant to which an affiliate of Levine Leichtm@apital Partners purchased a $10 million five-yéged rate, senior secured note from us.
The indebtedness is secured by substantially allofassets, though not by the assets of our dgmaipose financing subsidiaries. In July
2008, in conjunction with the amendment of thedeal interest financing as discussed above, thaelepurchased an additional $15 million
note with substantially the same terms as the $ilmnote. Pursuant to the June 30, 2008 seesrpiurchase agreement, we issued to the
lender 1,225,000 shares of common stock. In additi@ issued the lender two warrants: (i) warrdmas we refer to as the FMV Warrants,
which are exercisable for 1,611,114 shares of ommaon stock, at an exercise price of $1.39818 lp@res and (ii) warrants that we refer
the N Warrants, which are exercisable for 285, #&fress of our common stock, at a nominal exercige pBoth the FMV Warrants and the N
Warrants are exercisable in whole or in part arghgttime up to and including June 30, 2018. Weeglthe warrants using the Black-
Scholes valuation model and recorded their value lability on our balance sheet because the tefrtise warrants also included a provision
whereby the lender could require us to purchasevtreants for cash. That provision was eliminatgdriutual agreement in September 2008.
The FMV Warrants were initially exercisable to phase 1,500,000 shares for $2.573 per share, wargtedlin connection with the July
2008 issuance of other warrants to become exeleisalpurchase 1,564,324 shares at $2.4672 pes,sradt were further adjusted in
connection with a July 2009 amendment of our opgilam to become exercisable at $1.44 per sharen igsoance in September 2009 of the
Fortress Warrant, the FMV Warrant was further agjgiso become exercisable to purchase 1,600,99&shaan exercise price of $1.407 per
share. Upon issuance in March 2010 of the PageWmeant, the FMV Warrant was further adjustede@odime exercisable to purchase
1,611,114 shares at an exercise price of $1.398d.8hare. All of the FMV Warrants and N Warrantsewexercised in November 2013 and
are no longer outstanding.
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In November 2009 we entered into an additional egent with this lender whereby they purchased ditiadal $5 million note. The
note accrued interest at 15.0% and was repaid aember 2010 at which time the lender purchasedvad2&.8 million note under
substantially the same terms as the $10 million&k&million notes already outstanding. The $27ilion note accrues interest at 16.0% i
matures in December 2013. Concurrent with the isseiaf the $27.8 million note, the term $10 and #ilion notes were amended to
change their maturity dates to December 2013. ijuotion with the issuance of the $27.8 milliorteyave issued to the lender 880,000
shares of common stock and 1,870 shares of Seres&rtible preferred stock. Each share of th&eSé& convertible preferred stock was
exchanged for 1,000 shares of our common stockioe 15, 2011, upon shareholder approval of suchasge. At the time of issuance, the
value of the common stock and Series B preferrecksivas $753,000 and $1.6 million, respectively.Narch 31, 2011, we sold an
additional $5 million note due February 29, 2012k&P. In April 2011 we purchased from LLCP a portiof an outstanding subordinated
note issued by our CPS Cayman Residual Trust 2QG8ié financed that purchase by issuing to LLCRwa $3 million note which was fully
repaid in June 2012. In November 2011, we solddalitianal $5 million note which was fully repaid @ctober 2012. In February 2012, we
extended the maturity of the $5 million note thatsveriginally due in February 2012 to March 2012wit was repaid in full. In April 2013
we repaid the $15 million note, reduced the inter@®s on the remaining notes from 14.0% to 13p@¥@nnum and extended the maturity of
the remaining notes to June 30, 2014. In Janualy 2@ repaid the $10 million note.

Subordinated Renewable Notes Deln. June 2005, we began issuing registered subdetdimeanewable notes in an ongoing offering to
the public. Upon maturity, the notes are autombyicanewed for the same term as the maturing noteless we repay the notes or the
investor notifies us within 15 days after the migudlate of his note that he wants it repaid. Rezgtwotes bear interest at the rate we are
offering at that time to other investors with sianihote maturities. Based on the terms of the iddad notes, interest payments may be
required monthly, quarterly, annually or upon migur

We must comply with certain affirmative and negatoovenants related to debt facilities, which regjuamong other things, that we
maintain certain financial ratios related to ligtydnet worth, capitalization, investments, acdigss, restricted payments and certain
dividend restrictions. In addition, certain sedmation and non-securitization related debt contagss-default provisions that would allow
certain creditors to declare default if a defagltwred under a different facility. As of DecemBér 2013, we were in compliance with all
such covenants.

Forward-looking Statements

This report on Form 10-K includes certain " forwdmdking statements ". Forward-looking statemenéy e identified by the use of
words such as " anticipates, " " expects, " " pldnestimates, " or words of like meaning. Aghie specifically identified forward-looking
statements, factors that could affect charge-aftsracovery rates include changes in the geneocalagnic climate, which could affect the
willingness or ability of obligors to pay pursudatthe terms of contracts, changes in laws respgctnsumer finance, which could affect
ability to enforce rights under contracts, and ¢feanin the market for used vehicles, which couldcafthe levels of recoveries upon sale of
repossessed vehicles. Factors that could affeate@enues in the current year include the levelsash releases from existing pools of
contracts, which would affect our ability to purskacontracts, the terms on which we are able &méia such purchases, the willingness of
dealers to sell contracts to us on the terms thudtdrs, and the terms on which we are able topdeta term securitizations once contracts are
acquired. Factors that could affect our expensésarturrent year include competitive conditionshie market for qualified personnel,
investor demand for asset-backed securities aadasitrates (which affect the rates that we pagsset-backed securities issued in our
securitizations). The statements concerning stringfisecuritization transactions as secured finageeand the effects of such structures on
financial items and on future profitability alsedprward-looking statements. Any change to thecstire of our securitization transaction
could cause such forwatdeking statements not to be accurate. Both theuatnaf the effect of the change in structure onpofitability anc
the duration of the period in which our profitatyilivould be affected by the change in securitizattyucture are estimates. The accuracy of
such estimates will be affected by the rate at twiie purchase and sell contracts, any changesindte, the credit performance of such
contracts, the financial terms of future securitas, any changes in such terms over time, aner déittors that generally affect our
profitability.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, whidjuiees a reporting entity to present an unrecoghiag benefit as a liability in the
financial statements separate from deferred taata#fsa net operating loss carryforward, a sintiéerloss, or a tax credit carryforward is not
available as of the reporting date to settle taliaswould result from the disallowance of the pasition or if a reporting entity does not
intend to use the deferred tax asset for such getpthe amendments in ASU 201B-are effective for fiscal years, and interim pds within
those years, beginning on or after December 153.20%e do not expect the adoption of ASU 2013-1fiaee a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

From July 2003 through April 2008 all of our setiaations were structured as secured financing§ifancial accounting purposes. In
September 2008, we securitized $198.7 million afautomobile contracts in a structure that is &dats a sale of the receivables for financial
accounting purposes. The terms of the Septembe 8€uritization provided for us (1) to continuevigng the sold portfolio, (2) to retain a
5.0% interest in the bonds issued by the trusthizhivwe sold the automobile contracts and (3) to edditional compensation contingent
upon (a) the return to the holders of the seniordisdssued by the trust reaching certain targefs)diifetime” cumulative net charge-offs on
the automobile contracts being below a pre-detezthlavel. In September 2010 we re-securitizedehgaining receivables from the
September 2008 transaction in a similar "off badasiceet" structure. The September 2010 transastioeated as a sale of the receivables for
financial accounting purposes. See "Critical AcamgPolicies" for a detailed discussion of ourwgézation structure.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

We are subject to interest rate risk during théopelnetween when contracts are purchased from ideahel when such contracts become
part of a term securitization. Specifically, théeirest rate due on our warehouse credit faciléresadjustable while the interest rates on the
contracts are fixed. Therefore, if interest ratesease, the interest we must pay to our lendaterumarehouse credit facilities is likely to
increase while the interest we receive from warsbduautomobile contracts remains the same. Aau#t,rescess spread cash flow would
likely decrease during the warehousing period. Addally, automobile contracts warehoused and #esritized during a rising interest rate
environment may result in less excess spread tawhd us. Historically, our securitization fadiéis have paid fixed rate interest to security
holders set at prevailing interest rates at the trfnthe closing of the securitization, which may take place until several months after we
purchased those contracts. Our customers, on liee band, pay fixed rates of interest on the autbl@@ontracts, set at the time they
purchase the underlying vehicles. A decrease iesxspread cash flow could adversely affect ouniregs and cash flow.

To mitigate, but not eliminate, the sheetrm risk relating to interest rates payable unidemnwarehouse facilities, we have historically t
automobile contracts in the warehouse credit tiedlifor less than four months. To mitigate, buteloninate, the long-term risk relating to
interest rates payable by us in securitizationshaxee structured our term securitization transastio include préunding structures, where
the amount of notes issued exceeds the amounntfaots initially sold to the trusts. We expecttmtinue to use pre-funding structures in
our securitizations. In pre-funding, the proceadsifthe prefunded portion are held in an escrow account weikell the additional contrac
to the trust. In pre-funded securitizations, weklotthe borrowing costs with respect to the cartsave subsequently deliver to the
securitization trust. However, we incur an expangare-funded securitizations equal to the diffeebetween the money market yields
earned on the proceeds held in escrow prior toesplEnt delivery of contracts and the interestpatd on the notes outstanding. The amount
of such expense may vary. Despite these mitigatiaiegies, an increase in prevailing interessrateuld cause us to receive less excess
spread cash flows on automobile contracts, andabukl adversely affect our earnings and cash flows

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
This report includes Consolidated Financial Stat@syenotes thereto and an Independent AuditorsbReat the pages indicated below,

in the " Index to Financial Statements. "
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountémon Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and ProceduredJnder the supervision and with the participatidthe Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, management of the Comphay evaluated the effectiveness of the design pachtion of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 18a)Hnd 15d-15(e) under the Securities ExchangefAt®34 (the " Exchange Act ") as of
December 31, 2013 (the " Evaluation Date " ). Bagsuh that evaluation, the Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer concluded
that, as of the Evaluation Date, the Company’sloésre controls and procedures are effective (@rtsure that information required to be
disclosed by us in reports that the Company fitesutbmits under the Exchange Act is recorded, msea summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the rules and foriithe Securities and Exchange Commission; ando(i@nsure that information required to be
disclosed in the reports that the Company filesutimits under the Exchange Act is accumulated anthwnicated to our management,
including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer alief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisionsgarding required disclosures. The
certifications of our chief executive officer anldief financial officer required under Section 3G2te Sarbanes-Oxley Act have been filed as
Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to this report.

Internal Control.Management’s Report on Internal Control over FigriReporting is included in this Annual Report niradiately
below. During the fiscal quarter ended Decembe2B13, there were no changes in our internal cbotrer financial reporting that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenglly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting. We are responsible for establishing and maiimtgiadequate
internal control over financial reporting as defirie Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchangeoh 1934. Our internal control over
financial reporting is designed to provide reasdmalssurance to our management and Board of Dieetgarding the preparation and fair
presentation of published financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or a¢tmisstatements. Therefore, even tr
systems determined to be effective can only proké@sonable assurance with respect to financiedratnt preparation and presentation.

Management, with the participation of the chief@xese and chief financial officers, assessed ffecveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20h3nbking this assessment, we used the criterimatby the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQhén1992 Internal Control — Integrated Frameworas&l on this assessment,
management, with the participation of the chiefeeiwe and chief financial officers, believes thead,of December 31, 2013, our internal
control over financial reporting is effective basedthose criteria.

Our internal control over financial reporting asiEcember 31, 2013, has been audited by Crowe HbuaP, an independent registe
public accounting firm, as stated in their repohiieh is included herein.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not Applicable.
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PART I

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

Information regarding directors of the registraniricorporated by reference to the registrant'sdefe proxy statement for its annual
meeting of shareholders to be held in 2014 (th@142Proxy Statement " ). The 2014 Proxy Statemdéhbe filed not later than April 30,
2014. Information regarding executive officersiué registrant appears in Part | of this report, iaridcorporated herein by reference.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference to the 2014 Proxy Statéme
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Incorporated by reference to the 2014 Proxy Stat¢éme
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

Incorporated by reference to the 2014 Proxy Statéme

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference to the 2014 Proxy Stat¢éme
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statements listed below under thdicap Index to Financial Statements " are filedagzart of this report. No financial
statement schedules are filed as the requirednv#tion is inapplicable or the information is presenin the Consolidated Financial
Statements or the related notes. Separate finastat@iments of the Company have been omitted a&Sdhwany is primarily an operating
company and its subsidiaries are wholly owned andat have minority equity interests held by angspa other than the Company in
amounts that together exceed 5% of the total catedeld assets as shown by the most recent yeaG@msblidated Balance Sheet.

The exhibits listed below are filed as part of tleport, whether filed herewith or incorporatedrbference to an exhibit filed with the
report identified in the parentheses following tlescription of such exhibit. Unless otherwise iatkd, each such identified report was filed
by or with respect to the registrant.

Exhibit

Number Description “**” indicates compensatory plan or agreeme

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Noverh®e2001, by and among the Registrant, CPS Merlgehsa. and MFN
Financial Corporation. (Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-Kefil on November 19, 2001 by MFN Financial Corporgtio

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation (Exhibit 3.1Rorm 10-K filed March 31, 2009)

3.1.1 Certificate of Designation re Series B Preferrexhifit 3.1.1 to Form 8-K filed by the registrant Becember 30, 2010)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (Exhibit 3.3 to Forkf8ed July 20, 2009)

4. Instruments defining the rights of holders of ldlegm debt of certain consolidated subsidiariehefregistrant are omitted

pursuant to the exclusion set forth in subdivisi@)$iv)(iii)(A) and (b)(v) of Item 601 of Regulath S-K (17 CFR 229.601).
The registrant agrees to provide copies of suduments to the United States Securities and Exgga@ommission upon

request.

4.1 Form of Indenture re Renewable Unsecured Subortindotes (“RUS Notes”). (Exhibit 4.1 to Form Sad, 333-121913)

421 Form of RUS Notes (Exhibit 4.2 to Form S-2, no3321913)

4.3 Form of Indenture re additional Renewable Unsec@dobrdinated Notes (“ARUS Notes”) (Exhibit 4.1Rorm S-1, no. 333-
168976)

431 Form of ARUS Notes (Exhibit 4.2 to Form S-1, no333%8976)

4.4 Supplement dated December 7, 2010 to IndenturdRiéRANotes (Exhibit 4.3 to Form S-1, no. 333-168976)

4.4 Supplement dated January 22, 2014 to IndenturdRidANotes (Exhibit 4.4 to Form S-1, no. 333-190766)

4.29 Revolving Credit Agreement dated December 23, Z&kDibit 4.29 to Form 10-K filed March 31, 2011)

4.37 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivaliest P012-A (exhibit 4.37 to Form 10-Q filed by tiegistrant on April 24,
2012)

4.38 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Marcl®12 2related to notes issued by CPS Auto Receisabigst 2012-A (exhibit
4.38 to Form 10-Q filed by the registrant on A2dl, 2012)

4.39 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivaliest 2012-B (exhibit 4.39 to Form 8-K filed by treggistrant on June 26,
2012)

4.40 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of JunelR,26lated to notes issued by CPS Auto Receivablest 2012-B (exhibit
4.40 to Form 8-K filed by the registrant on June 2®12)
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Exhibit

Number Description “**” indicates compensatory plan or agreeme

4.41 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Reckigdlrust 2012-C (exhibit 4.41 to Form 10-Q filedthe registrant on
November 6, 2012)

4.42 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Marcl®12 2related to notes issued by CPS Auto Receisdlast 2012-C (exhibit
4.42 to Form 10-Q filed by the registrant on Novemé, 2012)

4.43 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahigst 2012-D (to be filed by amendment)

4.44 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Decemi®201P, related to notes issued by CPS Auto Rebksalrust 2012-D (to
be filed by amendment)

4.45 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahigst P013-A (exhibit 4.43 to Form 10-Q/A filed Hyetregistrant on August
14, 2013)

4.46 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Marcl132related to notes issued by CPS Auto Receisabigst 2013-A (exhibit
4.44 to Form 10-Q/A filed by the registrant on Asgi4, 2013)

4.47 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahiast P013-B (exhibit 4.45 to Form 10-Q/A filed byetregistrant on August
14, 2013)

4.48 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of JunelB, 28lated to notes issued by CPS Auto Receivablest 2013-B (exhibit
4.46 to Form 10-Q/A filed by the registrant on Asgi4, 2013)

4.49 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahigst 2013-C (exhibit 4.47 to Form 8-K/A filed byethegistrant on October
30, 2013)

4.50 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Septeinl#13, related to notes issued by CPS Auto Rabksg Trust 2013-C
(exhibit 4.48 to Form 8-K/A filed by the registrasm October 30, 2013)

451 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahigst 2013-D (exhibit 4.49 Form 8-K/A filed by thegistrant on January
22, 2014)

4.52 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Decemi®291B, related to notes issued by CPS Auto Rebkgarust 2013-D
(exhibit 4.50 Form 8-K/A filed by the registrant danuary 22, 2014)

10.1 1991 Stock Option Plan & forms of Option Agreemehesreunder (Exhibit 10.19 to Form S-2, no. 323913) **

10.2 1997 Long-Term Incentive Stock Plan ("1997 Plai}Hibit 10.20 to Form S-2, no. 333-121913) **

10.2.1 Form of Option Agreement under 1997 Plan (Exhibi21l to Form 10-K filed March 13, 2006) **

10.14 2006 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan as amendedIAg; 2013 (Incorporated by reference to pagestAréugh A-10 of the
definitive proxy statement filed by the registrantMarch 20, 2013)**

10.14.1 Form of Option Agreement under the 2006 Long-Temify Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.14.1 to registrarform 10-K filed
March 9, 2007)**

10.14.2 Form of Option Agreement under the 2006 Long-Teuify Incentive Plan (Exhibit 99.(D)(2) to registis Schedule TO filed
November 12, 2009)**

10.14.2 Form of Option Agreement under the 2006 Long-Tewuity Incentive Plan (Exhibit 99.(D)(3) to registis Schedule TO filed
November 12, 2009)**

10.15 Securities Purchase Agreement between the redistnainl_evine Leichtman Capital Partners IV, L.'"RLCP"), relating to the
sale of an aggregate of $25 million of Notes. (hpcoated by reference to exhibit 99.2 to Sched@I@ filed by LLCP on July
10, 2008)

10.15.1 Amendment dated July 10, 2008 to Securities Puechaseement dated June 30, 2008 between the @gisind
LLCP. (Exhibit 10.15.1 to registrant's Form 10i@d August 11, 2008)

10.15.2 Amendment dated December 23, 2010 to SecuritieshBse Agreement dated June 30, 2008 between tistraetjand

LLCP. (incorporated by reference to Schedule 1gDévine Leichtman Capital Partners 1V, L.P. onukny 3, 2011.
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Exhibit

Number Description “**” indicates compensatory plan or agreeme

10.16 Registration Rights Agreement between thistragnit and LLCP. (Incorporated by reference toilek89.6 to Schedule 13D
filed by LLCP on July 10, 2008)

10.17 Investor Rights Agreement between the registradtldrCP. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 9&.Bchedule 13D filed by
LLCP on July 10, 2008)

10.18 FMV Warrant dated June 30, 2008, issued to LLORdporated by reference to the FMV warrant appgeaais pages A-1
through A-13 of the preliminary proxy statemenedilby the registrant on July 28, 2008.)

10.18.1 Amendment dated March 30, 2012 to FMV Warrant ddtete 30, 2008, issued to LLCP. (Incorporated Bsreace to Exhibit
10.1 to the current report on Form 8-K dated M&@h2012, as amended and filed on Form 8-K/A byréiggstrant on May 30,
2012.)

10.19 N Warrant dated June 30, 2008, issued to LLCPofjarated by reference to the FMV warrant appeaasmpgages B-1 through
B-13 of the preliminary proxy statement filed by tlegistrant on July 28, 2008.)

10.19.1 Amendment dated March 30, 2012 to N Warrant datee¢ 30, 2008, issued to LLCP. (Incorporated byrezfee to Exhibit 10.2
to the current report on Form 8-K dated March 3,2 as amended and filed on Form 8-K/A by thestegnt on May 30,
2012.)

10.20 Amended and Restated Note Purchase Agreement #ldtetl0, 2008 among the registrant, its subsiditjo Funding Il, LLC,
and Citigroup Financial Products Inc. (Exhibit2@1o registrant's Form 10-Q filed August 11, 2008)

10.21 Amended and Restated Indenture dated July 10, 20@#g Folio Funding I, LLC, Citigroup Financiald®ucts Inc. and Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.21 to registrant'sidl0-Q filed August 11, 2008)

10.22 Performance Guaranty dated July 10, 2008 issugledgegistrant in favor of Citigroup Financial Puatk Inc. (Exhibit 10.22 to
registrant's Form 10-Q filed August 11, 2008)

10.23 Warrant dated July 10, 2008, issued to Citigroupb@l Markets Inc. (Exhibit 10.23 to registrant'sfdL0-Q filed August 11,
2008)

10.24 Purchase and Sale Agreement re Motor Vehicle Cotstdated as of September 26, 2008 (Exhibit 1@Zbtm 8-K/A filed by
the registrant on November 7, 2008)

10.25 Transfer and Servicing Agreement dated as of Sdpe@6, 2008 (Exhibit 10.25 to Form 8-K/A filed the registrant on
November 7, 2008)

10.26 Revolving Credit Agreement dated September 25, 2008ng the registrant, its subsidiary Page Foudign LLC, and
Fortress Credit Corp. ("Fortress") (Exhibit 10.Irégistrant's Form 8-K filed October 1, 2009)

10.27 Warrant dated September 25, 2009, issued to diatdfof Fortress. (Exhibit 10.2 to registrant'siA@-K filed October 1, 2009)

10.27.1  Amendment dated March 30, 2012 to Warrant datedeSdger 25, 2009, issued to an affiliate of Fortréegorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the current reporFonm 8-K dated March 30, 2012, as amended and diteBorm 8-K/A by the
registrant on May 30, 2012.)

14 Registrant’s Code of Ethics for Senior Financidii€gfrs (Exhibit 14 to Form 10-K filed March 13, 28)0

21 List of subsidiaries of the registrant (filed hertay

23.1 Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP (filed herewith)

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) certification by chief executivei@df (filed herewith)

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) certification by chief financial io#r (filed herewith)

32 Section 1350 certification (filed herewith)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duth@nzed.

CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. (registrant)

March 10, 2014 By: /sl CHARLES E. BRADLEY, JR
Charles E. Bradley, JiPresident

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

March 10, 2014 /s/ CHARLES E. BRADLEY, JR
Charles E. Bradley, JDirector,
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

March 10, 2014 /s/ CHRIS A. ADAMS
Chris A. AdamsDirector

March 10, 2014 /s/ BRIAN J. RAYHILL
Brian J. Rayhill Director

March 10, 2014 /s/ WILLIAM B. ROBERTS
William B. RobertsDirector

March 10, 2014 /sl GREGORY S. WASHEI
Gregory S. WasheBirector

March 10, 2014 /s/ DANIEL S. WOOD
Daniel S. WoodDirector

March 10, 2014 /s JEFFREY P. FRIT.
Jeffrey P. FritzSr. Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. santsidiaries (the Company) as
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related cdiaset! statements of operations, comprehensive iecehareholders' equity, and c
flows for the years then ended. We also have adidite Company internal control over financial reporting as cfd@mber 31, 2013, ba:s
on criteria established in the 1992 Internal Cdntrdntegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of t
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Companyianagement is responsible for these financigérsents, for maintaining effective inter
control over financial reporting, and for its assaent of the effectiveness of internal control ofiaancial reporting, included in t
accompanying ManagemestReport on Internal Control over Financial RepaytiOur responsibility is to express an opinion thast
financial statements and an opinion on the Comgantérnal control over financial reporting basedooir audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thetaitmliobtain reasonable assurance about whethdén#recial statements are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal cordx@r financial reporting was maintained in all eval respects. Our audits of the finan
statements included examining, on a test basisleaee supporting the amounts and disclosures itfitaacial statements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant estimatede by management, and evaluating the ovenalhfial statement presentation.

audit of internal control over financial reportimgluded obtaining an understanding of internaltadrover financial reporting, assessing
risk that a material weakness exists, and testimjevaluating the design and operating effectiveieésnternal control based on the asse
risk. Our audits also included performing such oihicedures as we considered necessary in thentstences. We believe that our at
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableasssuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsidar external purposes in accordance with gelyeeaicepted accounting principles
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (dthimeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet tfansactions and dispositions of the assetseo€dmpany; (2) provide reasonable assul
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgemparation of financial statements in accoréamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshefdompany are being made only in accordance withosizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsurance regarding prevention or timely deteaifounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtyver financial reporting may not prevent or deétaisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods argject to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaaeferred to above present fairly, in all matergpects, the financial position of Consu
Portfolio Services, Inc. and subsidiaries as ofddgloer 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of tiparations and their cash flows for the yi
then ended in conformity with accounting principlgsnerally accepted in the United States of Ameridao in our opinion, Consum
Portfolio Services, Inc. maintained, in all materespects, effective internal control over finaaeporting as of December 31, 2013, b.
on the criteria established in the 1992 Internaht@o — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee offSpong Organizations of t
Treadway Commission.

/sl CROWE HORWATH LLP

Costa Mesa, California
March 10, 2014
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cash and equivale

Finance receivable
Less: Allowance for finance credit losses

Finance receivables, n

Finance receivables measured at fair vi
Residual interest in securitizatio
Furniture and equipment, n

Deferred financing cos

Deferred tax assets, r

Accrued interest receivab

Other assets

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expei
Warehouse lines of crec

Residual interest financir

Debt secured by receivables measured at fair \

Securitization trust del
Senior secured debt, related pe
Subordinated renewable notes

Commitments and contingenci
Shareholders' Equity

Preferred stock, $1 par value; authorized 4,998sI0es; none issu

Series A preferred stock, $1 par value; author&,680,000 shares; none isst
Series B preferred stock, $1 par value; authoriz8@0 shares; none issu
Common stock, no par value; authorized 75,000,000es; 24,015,585 and 19,838,913 st

issued and outstanding at December 31, 2013 ar] 2€dpectivel

Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

December 31,

December 31,

2013 2012
$ 22,11 $ 12,96¢
132,28« 104,441

1,155,06: 764,34

(39,620) (19,599

1,115,43 744,744

14,47¢ 59,66¢

854 4,82¢

76€ 72€

11,07 9,14(

59,21¢ 75,64(

18,67( 10,41

21,48: 15,05

$ 1,396,361  $ 1,037,62!
$ 24,83¢ $ 17,78
9,45 21,73

19,00¢ 13,77:

13,11 57,107

1,177,55! 792,49

38,55¢ 50,13¢

19,14 23,28:

1,301,76. 976,30

73,42: 65,67¢

22,27¢ 1,27C

(1,099) (5,637)

94.,60: 61,31

$ 1,396,361 $ 1,037,62!

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancééBtents.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
Revenues:
Interest incom: $ 231,33( 175,31
Servicing fee: 3,09z 2,30t
Other income 10,40¢ 9,58¢
Gain on cancellation of debt 10,947 —
255,77! 187,20¢
Expenses:
Employee cost 42,96( 35,57:
General and administrati 16,34 15,42¢
Interest 58,17¢ 79,42:
Provision for credit losse 76,86¢ 33,49t
Provision for contingent liabilitie 7,841 -
Marketing 13,36: 10,66"
Occupancy 2,60¢ 2,89
Depreciation and amortization 437 543
218,60: 178,02:

Income before income tax exper 37,17: 9,18
Income tax expense (benefit) 16,16¢ (60,227
Net income $ 21,00¢ 69,40¢
Earnings per shan

Basic $ 0.9¢ 3.5¢€

Diluted 0.67 2.7z
Number of shares used in computing earnings pees

Basic 21,53¢ 19,47

Diluted 31,57« 25,47¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financéé®tents.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
Net income $ 21,008 % 69,40¢
Other comprehensive income; change in funde
status of pension plan, net of $3,044 and ($1
in tax for 2013 and 2012, respectively 4,54 2,89¢
Comprehensive income $ 25547 % 72,30¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financéé®tents.




CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands)

Retainec Accumulatec
Earnings; Other
Common Stocl (Accumulatec Comprehensivi
Shares Amount Deficit) Loss Total

Balance at January 1, 20 19,527 % 62,46¢ $ (68,139 $ (8,535 % (14,207
Common stock issued upon

exercise of options and warral 632 1,20¢ - - 1,20¢
Purchase of common sto (320) (43%) - - (43%)
Pension benefit obligatic - - - 2,89¢ 2,89¢
Stoclk-based compensatic - 1,13¢ - - 1,13¢
Reclassification of warrants from

debt - 1,307 - - 1,307
Net income — — 69,40¢ — 69,40¢
Balance at December 31, 20 19,83¢ % 65,67¢ $ 1,27C  $ (5,63) $ 61,31
Common stock issued upon

exercise of options and warral 4,171 3,29i - - 3,29i
Pension benefit obligatic - - - 4,54 4,54:
Stoclk-based compensatic - 3,86¢ - - 3,86¢
Reclassification of warrants from

debt - 583 - - 583
Net income — — 21,00¢ — 21,00¢
Balance at December 31, 20 24,01( $ 73,42: $ 22,275 $ (1,095) $ 94,60:

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancééBtents.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 21,008 % 69,40¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Accretion of deferred acquisition fe (20,56%) (15,957
Accretion of purchase discount on receivables mreasat fair value (1,427 (4,149
Amortization of discount on securitization trusbd 60C 1,91t
Amortization of discount on senior secured debgteel party 1,992 2,29¢
Accretion of premium on debt secured by receivabieasured at fair valt 2,72¢ 4,57¢
Mark to fair value on debt secured by receivabtdaiavalue (747) 7,11z
Mark to fair value of receivables at fair val 59t (6,639
Depreciation and amortizatic 437 543
Amortization of deferred financing cos 6,80: 5,95¢
Provision for credit losse 76,86¢ 33,49
Provision for contingent liabilitie 7,841 -
Stocl-based compensation expel 3,86¢ 1,13¢
Interest income on residual ass - (410
Gain on cancellation of de (10,949 -
Change in fair value of warrar - 69t
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accrued interest receivab (8,259 (3,979
Other asset (2,189 5,62¢
Deferred tax asse 16,42¢ (60,640
Accounts payable and accrued expel 4,33 (6,002)
Net cash provided by operating activit 99,37: 34,98¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of finance receivables held for invest: (764,08 (551,74
Payments received on finance receivables helchf@stmen 337,09! 295,73:
Payments on receivables portfolio at fair ve 46,01¢ 111,36:
Proceeds received on residual interest in secatitias 3,97( -
Change in repossessions held in inven (4,246 (1,239
Decreases (increases) in restricted cash and gashatents, ne (27,839 54,78
Purchase of furniture and equipm (477) (394)
Net cash used in investing activiti (409,560 (91,499
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of securitization trust 778,00( 558,50(
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated renewalys 1,27¢ 4,957
Proceeds from issuance of senior secured debtedaberty 5,28¢ -
Payments on subordinated renewable n (5,415 (2,426
Net repayments of warehouse lines of cr (12,279 (3,662
Net proceeds from (repayments of) residual intefieahcing deb 5,32: (8,117
Repayment of securitization trust di (382,59) (350,98)
Repayment of debt secured by receivables measufenl walue (45,969 (121,419
Repayment of senior secured debt, related | (18,857 (12,200
Payment of financing cos (8,739 (7,059
Purchase of common sto - (43%)
Exercise of options and warrai 3,291 1,20¢
Net cash provided by financing activiti 319,34( 59,37¢t
Increase in cash and cash equival 9,14¢ 2,87
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 12,96¢ 10,09/
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 22,11:  $ 12,96¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financéé®tents.






CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
(continued)

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the period ft
Interest $ 50,66 $ 75,65¢
Income taxe: 2,271 1,13¢
Non-cash financing activities
Pension benefit obligation, n (4,54: (2,899
Derivative warrants reclassified from liabilities ¢common stock upon amendm: 582 1,307

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancaéBtents .
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Busines

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. (" CPS ") wasorporated in California on March 8, 1991. CPS imdubsidiaries (collectively, the
Company ") specialize in purchasing and servicetgil automobile installment sale contracts (fitcacts ") originated by licensed motor
vehicle dealers (" Dealers ") located throughbatUnited States. Dealers located in Californexds, Pennsylvania, lllinois, Georgia and
New Jersey represented 10.6%, 10.0%, 6.0%, 5.2 &nd 5.1%, respectively, of contracts purchaseithg 2013 compared with 13.5¢
9.5%, 9.2%, 4.3%, 5.0% and 4.1%, respectively itl22Mo other state had a concentration in exce5086 in 2013. We specialize in
contracts with borrowers who generally would noelpected to qualify for traditional financing prded by commercial banks or automol
manufacturers’ captive finance companies.

We are subject to various regulations and lawsieg ftelate to the extension of credit in consunedit transactions. Failure to comply
with such laws and regulations could have a mdtadeaerse effect on the Company.

Principles of Consolidatio

The Consolidated Financial Statements include tceunts of Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. asavitolly-owned subsidiaries,
certain of which are special purpose subsidiarleSRS "), formed to accommodate the structures under whizlpurchase and securitize «
contracts. The Consolidated Financial Statemestsiatlude the accounts of CPS Leasing, Inc., & 8@ned subsidiary. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, wsider all highly liquid debt instruments with drigl maturities of three months or le
to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consisishf on hand and due from banks and money marketiats. Substantially all of our cash
is deposited at three financial institutions. Wentan cash due from banks in excess of the bangsted deposit limits. We do not believe
we are exposed to any significant credit risk asehdeposits. As part of certain financial covehagiated to debt facilities, we are require
maintain a minimum unrestricted cash balance. ABaafember 31, 2013, our unrestricted cash balamaseb@2.1 million, which exceeded |
minimum amounts required by our financial covenants

Finance Receivable

Finance receivables, which we have the intent &ilidyato hold for the foreseeable future or umtihturity or payoff, are presented at
cost. All finance receivable contracts are heldifioeestment. Interest income is accrued on the idrgréncipal balance. Origination fees, net
of certain direct origination costs, are deferrad eecognized in interest income using the interesthod without anticipating prepayments.
Generally, payments received on finance receivadresestricted to certain securitized pools, &edrélated contracts cannot be resold.
Finance receivables are charged off pursuant tadgh#olling documents of certain securitized pogenerally as described below under
Charge Off Policy. Management may authorize anresxea of payment terms if collection appears likédlying the next calendar month.

Our portfolio of finance receivables consists of#irbalance homogeneous contracts that are colldgtevaluated for impairment on a
portfolio basis. We report delinquency on a corntratbasis. Once a Contract becomes greater thday¥delinquent, we do not recognize
additional interest income until the obligor untlee Contract makes sufficient payments to be less 90 days delinquent. Any payments
received on a Contract that is greater than 90 daelsquent are first applied to accrued interest #hen to principal reduction.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Allowance for Finance Credit Loss

In order to estimate an appropriate allowancedssés likely incurred on finance receivables, weaikss allowance methodology
commonly referred to as " static poolingyhich stratifies the finance receivable portfoliba separately identified pools based on theirqak
of origination, then uses historical performanceedsoned pools to estimate future losses on ¢yroeis. Historical loss experience is
adjusted as necessary for current economic conditM/e consider our portfolio of finance receivalile be relatively homogenous and
consequently we analyze credit performance primarithe aggregate rather than stratification by particular credit quality indicator. Usi
analytical and formula driven techniques, we estiinzen allowance for finance credit losses, whichbeieve is adequate for probable
incurred credit losses that can be reasonably atiiin our portfolio of finance receivable contsaé-or each monthly pool of contracts that
we purchase, we begin establishing the allowantieemonth of acquisition and increase it overdhiesequent 11 months, through a
provision for credit losses charged to our consiéd statement of operations. Net losses incumeihance receivables are charged to the
allowance. We evaluate the adequacy of the alloevdycexamining current delinquencies, the charisties of the portfolio, the value of the
underlying collateral and historical loss trends.o®nditions change, our level of provisioning an@dllowance may change.

Finance Receivables and Related Debt Measured iatviadue

In September 2011, we acquired $217.8 million mdfice receivables from Fireside Bank for a purchase of $201.3 million. The
receivables were acquired by our wholly-owned sgqmirpose subsidiary, CPS Fender Receivables, lhih issued a note for $197.3
million, with a fair value of $196.5 million.

The receivables we acquired are pledged as cdldtardebt that was structured specifically fog icquisition of this portfolio. Since t
Fireside receivables were originated by anothdtyewith its own underwriting guidelines and proceeds, we elected to account for the
Fireside receivables and the related debt secwyrélidse receivables at their estimated fair vatigethat changes in fair value will be reflec
in our results of operations as they occur. Weauseown assumptions about the factors that we \xliearket participants would use in
pricing similar receivables and debt, and are basetthe best information available in the circumsts. The valuation method used to
estimate fair value may produce a fair value mesamant that may not be indicative of ultimate resliz value. Furthermore, while we
believe our valuation methods are appropriate amdistent with those used by other market partidgehe use of different methods or
assumptions to estimate the fair value of certaiaricial instruments could result in different esttes of fair value. Those estimated values
may differ significantly from the values that wouldve been used had a readily available markefufcin receivables or debt existed, or had
such receivables or debt been liquidated, and tHiffezences could be material to the financiatestzents. Interest income from the
receivables and interest expense on the debt @rwedad in interest income and interest expenseemively. Changes to the fair value of the
receivables and debt are also to be included @rést income and interest expense, respectively.

Charge Off Policy

Delinquent contracts for which the related finaneeticle has been repossessed are generally chaffgegidhe earliest of (1) the month
in which the proceeds from the sale of the finangshicle are received, (2) the month in which 99sdaave passed from the date of
repossession or (3) the month in which the Contvacbmes seven scheduled payments past due (sessReped and Other Assets below).
The amount charged off is the remaining princidabce of the Contract, after the application efrlet proceeds from the liquidation of the
financed vehicle. With respect to delinquent castdor which the related financed vehicle hashesn repossessed, the remaining principal
balance is generally charged off no later tharetia: of the month that the Contract becomes fivedualed payments past due.

Contract Acquisition Fees and Origination Costs

Upon purchase of a Contract from a Dealer, we gdliyegither charge or advance the Dealer an adgpridiee. Dealer acquisition fees
and deferred origination costs are applied to Hreying value of finance receivables and are aedretto earnings as an adjustment to the
yield over the estimated life of the Contract usting interest methou

Repossessed and Other As:

If a Contract obligor fails to make or keep promiger payments, or if the obligor is uncooperativeattempts to evade contact or hide
the vehicle, a supervisor will review the colleatiactivity relating to the account to determinesibossession of the vehicle is warranted.
Generally, such a decision is made between the&@ld0th day past the obligor's payment due daiecould occur sooner or later,
depending on the specific circumstances. At the tine vehicle is repossessed we stop accruingBsiten the Contract, and reclassify the
remaining Contract balance to the line item "Oth&sets" on our Consolidated Balance Sheet attitsagsd fair value less costs to sell.
Included in other assets in the accompanying balaheets are repossessed vehicles pending sdl6.6fr&illion and $5.7 million at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Treatment of Securitizations
Our term securitization structure has generallynkeefollows:

We sell contracts we acquire to a wholly-owned sderirpose subsidiary (" SPS "), which has bestablished for the limited purpose
of buying and reselling our contracts. The SPS thamsfers the same contracts to another entycajly a statutory trust (" Trust" ). The
Trust issues interest-bearing asset-backed sexaufitiNotes " ), in a principal amount equal tdems than the aggregate principal balance of
the contracts. We typically sell these contracthéoTrust at face value and without recourse, gxapresentations and warranties that we
make to the Trust that are similar to those praditeus by the Dealer. One or more investors pehiae Notes issued by the Trust (the "
Noteholders" ); the proceeds from the sale of the Notes aga tised to purchase the contracts from us. We atainror sell subordinated
Notes issued by the Trust. In addition, we havevided" Credit Enhancement " for the benefit of the Naidlers in three forms: (1) an initial
cash deposit to a bank account (a " Spread Accouneld by the Trust, (2) overcollateralizationtbé Notes, where the principal balance of
the Notes issued is less than the principal balahtiee contracts, and (3) in the form of subortidaNotes. The agreements governing the
securitization transactions (collectively refertedas the " Securitization Agreements ") requia the initial level of Credit Enhancement be
supplemented by a portion of collections from thatracts until the level of Credit Enhancement heacspecified levels, which are then
maintained. The specified levels are generally ateghas a percentage of the principal amount rangaimpaid under the related contracts.
The specified levels at which the Credit Enhancerseto be maintained will vary depending on thef@enance of the portfolios of contracts
held by the Trusts and on other conditions. Suehléchave increased and decreased from time toltamed on performance of the various
portfolios, and have also varied by from one Ttastnother.

Our warehouse securitization structures are sirtoléine above, except that (i) the SPS that pusshdse contracts pledges the contracts
to secure promissory notes or loans that it issars (ii) no increase in the required amount ofd@riénhancement is contemplated. Upon
each sale of contracts in a securitization strect@s a secured financing, we retain as assetsrdbomsolidated Balance Sheet the securi
contracts and record as indebtedness the Notesisisuhe transaction.

For all of the securitizations that we have congaegince July 2003 (other than the September 200&aptember 2010 securitizations),
we have the power to direct the most significativéies of the SPS. In addition, we have the odiign to absorb losses and the rights to
receive benefits from the SPS, both of which cdoddotentially significant to the SPS. These tygfesecuritization structures are treated as
secured financings, in which the receivables rernaiour consolidated balance sheet, and the daltdsby the SPS is shown as a
securitization trust debt on our consolidated bedasheet

Under the September 2008 and September 2010 seativits and other term securitizations completéat po July 2003 (which were
structured as sales for financial accounting pueppsve removed from our Consolidated Balance Sheatontracts sold and added to our
Consolidated Balance Sheet (i) the cash receivedyi and (ii) the estimated fair value of the @nship interest that we retained in contracts
sold in the securitization. That retained or realdnterest (the " Residual ") consists of (a) ¢hsh held in the Spread Account, if any, (b)
overcollateralization, if any, (c) Notes retaingdny, and (d) receivables from the Trust, whicblude the net interest receivables (" NIRs
"). NIRs represent the estimated discounted das¥sfto be received from the Trust in the futuret, of principal and interest payable with
respect to the Notes, any premiums paid to theos®ote insurer (a “Note Insurer”), if any, andteém other expenses.

We recognize gains or losses attributable to ampgés in the estimated fair value of the Resid@déns in fair value are recognized as
Other Income and losses are recorded as an imp#itoss in the Consolidated Statement of Operatidfesare not aware of an active mau
for the purchase or sale of interests such as és&dRals; accordingly, we determine the estimaa@d/alue of the Residuals by discounting
the amount of anticipated cash flows that we edémall be released to us in the future (the casthneethod), using a discount rate that we
believe is appropriate for the risks involved. Hmticipated cash flows may include collections friooth current and charged off receivables.
We have used an effective pre-tax discount ra0éé per annum.

We receive periodic base servicing fees for theisieg and collection of the contracts. In additiere are entitled to the cash flows from
the Trusts that represent collections on the cotgtlia excess of the amounts required to pay gral@nd interest on the Notes, the base
servicing fees, and the premium paid to the Noseier, if any, and certain other fees (such aseeusnd custodial fees). Required principal
payments on the Notes are generally defined agahments sufficient to keep the principal balanicéhe Notes equal to the aggregate
principal balance of the related contracts (exelgdhose contracts that have been charged off) poe-determined percentage of such
balance. Where that percentage is less than 10@elated Securitization Agreements require acatdd payment of principal until the
principal balance of the Notes is reduced to threxified percentage. Such accelerated principal payims said to createdvercollateralizatio
" of the Notes.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

If the amount of cash required for payment of fégrest and principal on the senior Notes excéeglamount collected during the
collection period, the shortfall is generally withdn from the Spread Account, if any. If the castected during the period exceeds the
amount necessary for the above allocations plusined) principal payments on the subordinated Natesyy, and there is no shortfall in the
related Spread Account or other form of Credit Erdement, the excess is released to us. If the@v&lit Enhancement amount is not at the
required level, then the excess cash collecteetasmed in the Trust until the specified leveléhiaved. Cash in the Spread Accounts is
restricted from our use. Cash held in the varique&d Accounts is invested in high quality, ligindestment securities, as specified in the
Securitization Agreements. In determining the valfithe Residuals, we have estimated the futuesrat prepayments, delinquencies,
defaults, default loss severity, and recovery raesll of these factors affect the amount anchgnof the estimated cash flows. Our estim
are based on historical performance of comparaiigracts.

Following a securitization that is structured asbe for financial accounting purposes, we recaginierest income on the balance of the
Residuals. In addition, we will recognize additibrevenue in other income if the actual performaoicthe contracts related to the Residuals
is better than our estimate of the value of theid®ed. If the actual performance of the contrast&orse than our estimate, then a reduction to
the carrying value of the Residuals and a relatgzhirment charge would be required. In a secutitinsstructured as a secured financing for
financial accounting purposes, interest incomed®gnized when accrued under the terms of thestblaintracts and, therefore, presents less
potential for fluctuations in performance when camgal to the approach used in a transaction steattas a sale for financial accounting
purposes.

In all of our term securitizations, whether treaésdsecured financings or as sales, we have treegfine receivables (through a
subsidiary) to the securitization Trust. The diéfiece between the two structures is that in seeatitins that are treated as secured financings
we report the assets and liabilities of the seizatipn Trust on our Consolidated Balance Sheetlddiboth structures the Noteholders’ and
the related securitization Trusts’ recourse agaisdor failure of the contract obligors to makgmpants on a timely basis is limited, in
general, to our Finance receivables, Spread Acsaamd Residuals.

Servicing

We consider the contractual servicing fee recetvedur managed portfolio held by non-consolidatdasaliaries to be equal to adequate
compensation. Additionally, we consider that thiess would fairly compensate a substitute servateould one be required. As a result, no
servicing asset or liability has been recognizestviging fees received on the managed portfoliad byl non-consolidated subsidiaries are
reported as income when earned. Servicing feesvexten the managed portfolio held by consolidatgisidiaries are included in interest
income when earned. Servicing costs are chargegpense as incurred. Servicing fees receivableshwdmie included in Other Assets in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, repriEssearned but not yet remitted to us by theeeus

Furniture and Equipmer

Furniture and equipment are stated at cost net@fraulated depreciation. We calculate depreciaiging the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, whicgedrom three to five years. Assets held undertablgiases and leasehold improvements are
amortized over the lesser of the estimated usizies lof the assets or the related lease terms. #ization expense on assets acquired under
capital lease is included with depreciation exparsewned assets.

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be DispO$ed

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intategtare reviewed for impairment whenever eventshanges in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not baverable. Recoverability of assets to be held aedi is measured by a comparison of the
carrying amount of an asset to future net cashdlexpected to be generated by the asset. If sseltsaare considered to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognized is measured by the atmuwhich the carrying amount of the assets ededlee fair value of the assets. Assets
to be disposed of are reported at the lower ofygagramount or fair value less costs to sell.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other Income
The following table presents the primary componehSther Income:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Direct mail revenue $ 7,00¢ $ 5,94¢
Convenience fees charged to oblig 2,96¢ 2,907
Recoveries on previously char¢-off contracts 177 392
Sales tax refund 197 227
Other 62 114
$ 10,40t $ 9,58¢

Earnings Per Shar
The following table illustrates the computationbafsic and diluted earnings per share:

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012
(In thousands,
except per share data

Numerator:
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per s $ 21,008 $ 69,40¢

Denominator
Denominator for basic earnings per share - weighteslage number of common

shares outstanding during the y $ 21,53t % 19,47
Incremental common shares attributable to exedfiseitstanding options and

warrants 10,03¢ 6,00¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per share $ 31,57 $ 25,47¢
Basic earnings per share $ 0.9¢ $ 3.5€
Diluted earnings per share $ 067 $ 2.7z

Incremental shares of 2.1 million and 979,000 esldb stock options and warrants have been exclirdedthe diluted earnings per sh
calculation for the years ended December 31, 208132812, respectively, because the effect is dhitiree.

Deferral and Amortization of Debt Issuance Cc

Costs related to the issuance of debt are defamddamortized using the interest method over théractual or expected term of the
related debt.

Income Taxe

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolalééeeral income tax return and combined or stdadeastate franchise tax returns for
certain states. We utilize the asset and liahifigthod of accounting for income taxes, under whlieterred income taxes are recognized for
the future tax consequences attributable to tHerdifices between the financial statement valuegisfing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets antitiesbare measured using enacted tax rates exparegpply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expectece teebovered or settled. The effect on deferredstaka change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the period that includes the enactmetd. d&e estimate a valuation allowance againstgbeton of the deferred tax asset whose
utilization in future periods is not more than like

Purchases of Company Stc

We record purchases of our own common stock atasabtreat the shares as retired.
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Stock Option Plan

We recognize compensation costs in the financ@éstents for all share-based payments granted qudasieto January 1, 2006 based on
the grant date fair value estimated in accordarittetive provisions of ASC 718 “Stock Compensatidddmpensation cost is recognized ¢
the required service period, generally definechassesting period.

Recently Issued Accounting Stande

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, whidjuiees a reporting entity to present an unrecoghiag benefit as a liability in the
financial statements separate from deferred taata#fsa net operating loss carryforward, a sintidéerloss, or a tax credit carryforward is not
available as of the reporting date to settle taliaswould result from the disallowance of the pasition or if a reporting entity does not
intend to use the deferred tax asset for such getpthe amendments in ASU 201B-are effective for fiscal years, and interim pds within
those years, beginning on or after December 153.20%e do not expect the adoption of ASU 2013-1faee a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires us to make estimates and assumptionaffeat the reported amounts of assets and liaslitis of the date of the financial statem:
as well as the reported amounts of income and egseduring the reported periods. Specifically, mlper of estimates were made in
connection with determining an appropriate alloweafor finance credit losses, determining appropriaserves for contingent liabilities,
valuing finance receivables measured at fair vahetthe related debt, accreting net acquisitios, femortizing deferred costs, and recording
deferred tax assets and reserves for uncertaipasiions. These are material estimates that doeilslisceptible to changes in the near term
and, accordingly, actual results could differ frdtose estimates.

Reclassificatior

Certain amounts for the prior year have been reiflad to conform to the current year’s presentatioth no effect on previously
reported earnings or shareholders’ equity.

Derivative Financial Instrument

We do not use derivative financial instrumentsedde exposures to cash flow or market risks. Howédram 2008 to 2010, we issued
warrants to purchase our common stock in conjunctiith various debt financing transactions. At tinee of issuance, five of these warrants
issued contained "down round," or price resetuiestthat are subject to classification as lidabsifor financial statement purposes. These
liabilities were measured at fair value, with theueges in fair value at the end of each perio@cefd as current period income or loss.
Accordingly, changes to the market price per sba@r common stock underlying these warrants Wdtthwn round" features directly
affected the fair value computations for thesewdive financial instruments. The effect was that ancrease in the market price per share of
our common stock would also increase the relatdalify, which in turn would result in a currentrjma loss. Conversely, any decrease in the
market price per share of our common stock wowdd decrease the related liability, which in turnidoresult in a current period gain. We
used a binomial pricing model to compute the failue of the liabilities associated with the outdiag warrants. In computing the fair value
of the warrant liabilities at the end of each périwe used significant judgments with respect tortbk free interest rate, the volatility of our
stock price, and the estimated life of the warrafite warrant liabilities were included in Accouptsyable and accrued expenses on our
consolidated balance sheets. On March 29, 2012ves=d with the holders to amend three of the fiaerants that contained the “down
round” features, removing those specific price résens. On the date of the amendment, we valuell eBthe three warrants using a
binomial pricing model as described above. The eggafe value of the three amended warrants of $illibmmwas then reclassified from
Accounts payable to Common stock. On June 25, 2@l agreed with the holder to amend one other watha contained the “down round”
features, removing those specific price reset teiithe $250,000 aggregate value of this amendedwiawas reclassified from Accounts
payable to Common stock on the date of the amendmba fifth warrant with the “down round” featuneas exercised on February 22, 2013.
The $583,000 intrinsic value of this warrant wadassified from Accounts payable to Common stockhendate of the exercise. As of
December 31, 2013 all five of the warrants issined previously contained price reset features leither been amended or exercised and are
no longer subject to quarterly valuations.
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Financial Covenant

Certain of our securitization transactions, ourdeal interest financing and our warehouse creditlities contain various financial
covenants requiring certain minimum financial ratémd results. Such covenants include maintainimgnmm levels of liquidity and net
worth and not exceeding maximum leverage levelgsduiition, certain securitization and non-secuatiom related debt contain cross-default
provisions that would allow certain creditors teldee a default if a default occurred under a déife facility. As of December 31, 2013 we
were in compliance with all such financial coversant

Gain on Cancellation of Debt

In April 2013, we repurchased the outstanding Clasmtes from our first 2008 securitization forasb payment of $6.1 million and a
new 5% note for $5.3 million due in June 2014. Thass D notes were held by the same related gaatyhblds our senior secured debt. On
the date we repurchased the Class D notes, the Dlaste holder owned 10.5% of our outstanding comstock and warrants to purchas
additional 1.9 million shares of common stock. Wbsequently exercised our “clean-up call” optiod apurchased the remaining collateral
from the related securitization trust. The aggregatue of our consideration for the Class D natas $10.9 million less than our carrying
value of the Class D notes at the time of the remase. As a result of the repurchase of the Classt& and the termination of the
securitization trust, we realized a gain of $10iBion.

Provision for Contingent Liabilitie

During 2013, we recognized $7.8 million in contingBability expenses to either record or adjugt #imounts we believe we may incur
related to various pending litigation. The amouaswallocated in part to a long running case we tefas the Stanwich litigation, and also to
more recent matters including two California classon suits where we are the defendant, and argmantal inquiry, in which the United
States Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) has infdiyn@oposed that the we refrain from certain adlély unfair trade practices, and make
restitutionary payments into a consumer relief fyiSke Note 13)

(2) Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash and cash equivadeaunts relating to our outstanding securitmatiusts and credit facilities. The
amount of restricted cash on our consolidated lsalaheets was $132.3 million and $104.4 millioofd@ecember 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Our securitization transactions and one of our hvause credit facilities require that we establiabhcreserves, or spread accounts, as
additional credit enhancement. These cash resemnsh are included in restricted cash, were $23ilBon and $25.6 million as of Decemt
31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

(3) Finance Receivables
Our portfolio of finance receivables consists of#ifbalance homogeneous contracts comprising desgagment and class that is
collectively evaluated for impairment on a portfotiasis according to delinquency status. Our conprarchase guidelines are designed to
produce a homogenous portfolio. We report delingyem a contractual basis. Once a contract becgneader than 90 days delinquent, we
do not recognize additional interest income uhg obligor under the contract makes sufficient pawyts to be less than 90 days delinquent.
Any payments received on a contract that is grehter 90 days delinquent are first applied to aetrinterest and then to principal reduction.
The following table presents the components of iiieaeceivables, net of unearned interest:

December 31

2013 2012
Finance receivable (In thousands)
Automobile finance receivables, net of unearneerest $ 1,182,951 $ 795,78t
Less: Unearned acquisition fees and discounts (27,887) (31,449
Finance receivables $ 1,155,06. $ 764,34.
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We consider an automobile contract delinquent wdrenbligor fails to make at least 90% of a contralty due payment by the followil
due date, which date may have been extended Wiithits specified in the servicing agreements. Thaqa of delinquency is based on the
number of days payments are contractually pastafiextended where applicable. Automobile contiaststhan 31 days delinquent are not
included. In certain circumstances we will granligiirs one-month payment extensions to assist tvémtemporary cash flow problems.
The only modification of terms is to advance thégay’'s next due date by one month and extend taturity date of the receivable by one
month. In certain limited cases, a two-month extanmay be granted. There are no other concessimisas a reduction in interest rate,
forgiveness of principal or of accrued interestcéwlingly, we consider such extensions to be in@mt delays in payments rather than
troubled debt restructurings. The following tahlensnarizes the delinquency status of finance rebégaas of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

December 31,
2013 2012
(In thousands)

Delinquency Statu

Current $ 1,125,921 % 764,74:
BT e JSiot:
- ays y E y -
91 + days 10,94( 5,101
$ 1,182,95I $ 795,78t

Finance receivables totaling $10.9 million and $8illion at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respegctjJgve been placed on nanerua
status as a result of their delinquency status.

The following table presents a summary of the @gtfor the allowance for finance credit losses, thee years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012:

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of ye $ 19,59 §$ 10,35:
Provision for credit losse 76,86¢ 33,49¢
Chargeoffs (69,455 (37,63%)
Recoveries 12,61¢ 13,38¢
Balance at end of year $ 39,62¢ $ 19,59¢

Excluded from finance receivables are contractswieae previously classified as finance receivableiswere reclassified as other assets
because we have repossessed the vehicle secwei@pttiract. The following table presents a summésuch repossessed inventory toge
with the allowance for losses on repossessed iowent

December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Gross balance of repossessions in inver $ 24,74:  $ 12,10:
Allowance for losses on repossessed inventory (14,779 (6,389
Net repossessed inventory included in other a $ 9,96/ $ 5,71¢
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(4) Finance Receivables Measured at Fair Value

In September 2011 we purchased approximately $2mili8n of finance receivables from Fireside Baiikese receivables are recorded
on our balance sheet at fair value.

The following table presents the components of fiGeaeceivables measured at fair value and incl§d28,000 and $703,000 in
repossessed inventory at December 31, 2013 andhibere31, 2012, respectively:

December 31

2013 2012
Finance receivables measured at fair vi (In thousands)
Finance receivables and accrued interest, netedmed interes $ 14,78¢ $ 60,80
Less: Fair value adjustment (310 (1,136
Finance receivables measured at fair value $ 14,47¢  $ 59,66¢

The following table summarizes the delinquencyustalf finance receivables measured at fair value &ecember 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012:

December 31
2013 2012
(In thousands)

Delinquency Statu

Current $ 13,42: $ 57,55¢
31- 60 days 87¢ 2,20¢
61- 90 days 253 71C
91 + days 234 332

$ 14,78¢ $ 60,80

(5) Residual Interest in Securitizations

In September 2008 we completed a structured lol@nirsavhich we retained a residual interest. Theaiming receivables from such
transaction were re-securitized in September 20t6.residual interest from this transaction wasA3880 and $4.8 million as of December
31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and was determisgd) a discounted cash flow model that includgdretes for prepayments and losses.
The discount rate utilized was 20%. The assumptititized were based on our historical performaadgisted for current market conditions.
(6) Furniture and Equipment

The following table presents the components ofifura and equipment:

December 31

2013 2012

(In thousands)
Furniture and fixture $ 1,141  $ 1,13¢
Computer and telephone equipm 4,09¢ 3,61¢
Leasehold improvements 633 633
5,86¢ 5,391
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (5,107 (4,665)
$ 766 3 72€

Depreciation expense totaled $437,000 and $543@00e years ended December 31, 2013 and 20l cteely.

F-17




CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(7) Securitization Trust Debt
We have completed numerous term securitizatiors#retions that are structured as secured borroviimgsmancial accounting purposes.

The debt issued in these transactions is shownupnansolidated balance sheets as “Securitizatiest tebt,” and the components of such
debt are summarized in the following table:

Weighted
Average
Receivables Outstanding Outstanding Interest Rate
Final Scheduled Pledged at Principal at Principal at at
Payment December 31, Initial Decembef 3 December 31, December 31,
Series Date (1) 2013 (2) Principal 2013 2012 2013
(Dollars in thousands)

CPS 200-A October 201  $ - $ 310,35¢ $ - $ 40,71 -
Page Five Fundin January 201 11,03¢ 46,05¢ 9,35¢ 21,25!; 9.37%
CPS 201-A April 2018 28,27¢ 100,36 24,52¢ 48,36¢ 3.42%
CPS 201-B September 20: 44,70« 109,93¢ 44,43 70,86: 4.67%
CPS 201-C March 201! 56,23: 119,40( 56,27 88,26¢ 5.01%
CPS 201-A June 201 65,557 155,00( 65,05 105,48! 3.56%
CPS 201-B September 20: 86,55¢ 141,50( 86,25¢ 122,32¢ 3.24%
CPS 201-C December 201 93,09¢ 147,00( 93,00¢ 135,21¢ 2.59%
CPS 201-D March 202! 111,63 160,00( 108,81! 160,00( 2.17%
CPS 201-A June 202 152,57! 185,00( 142,84 - 1.90%
CPS 201-B September 20: 179,95: 205,00( 172,49¢ - 2.32%
CPS 201-C December 20z 194,81( 205,00( 191,50: - 2.41%
CPS 201-D (3) March 202 117,80: 183,00( 183,00( 2.19%

$ 114223 $ 206761 $ 117755 $ 792,49

(1) The Final Scheduled Payment Date represents fagalimaturity of the securitization trust debt. @@zation trust debt is expected
to become due and to be paid prior to those dédt@sed on amortization of the finance receivablesigéd to the Trusts. Expected
payments, which will depend on the performanceict seceivables, as to which there can be no asmaraare $445.7 million i
2014, $345.1 million in 2015, $216.6 million in Z0$117.0 million in 2017, $40.3 million in 201&a$12.9 million in 201¢

(2) Includes repossessed assets that are includedhar@tssets on our Consolidated Balance St

(3) An additional $63.4 million of receivables weredged to CPS 20:-D in January 2014

All of the securitization trust debt was issuegbiivate placement transactions to qualified intithal investors. The debt was issued by
our wholly-owned, bankruptcy remote subsidiaried snsecured by the assets of such subsidiariesdbiy any of our other assets.

The terms of the various securitization agreemesitded to the issuance of the securitization et require that certain delinquency
and credit loss criteria be met with respect todbléateral pool, and require that we maintain minin levels of liquidity and net worth and
not exceed maximum leverage levels. We were in ¢iamge with all such covenants as of December 8132

We are responsible for the administration and ctibe of the contracts. The securitization agreematso require certain funds be held
in restricted cash accounts to provide additionadlit enhancement for the Notes or to be applieddke payments on the securitization trust
debt. As of December 31, 2013, restricted cashuheevarious agreements totaled approximately $18#llion. This amount includes $6:
million in pre-funding proceeds related to CPS 20l 3nterest expense on the securitization trubt decomposed of the stated rate of
interest plus amortization of additional costs ofrbwing. Additional costs of borrowing include fity fees, insurance premiums,
amortization of transaction costs, and amortizatibdiscounts required on the notes at the timissafance. Deferred financing costs relate
the securitization trust debt are amortized udheginterest method. Accordingly, the effective aafdborrowing of the securitization trust d
is greater than the stated rate of interest.
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Our wholly-owned, bankruptcy remote subsidiarieserfermed to facilitate the above asset-backedfiimgy transactions. Similar

bankruptcy remote subsidiaries issue the debtandstg under our warehouse line of credit. Banlaypemote refers to a legal structure in

which it is expected that the applicable entity Wdowot be included in any bankruptcy filing by jtarent or affiliates. All of the assets of th
subsidiaries have been pledged as collateral @ordfated debt. All such transactions, treatedeasred financings for accounting and tax
purposes, are treated as sales for all other pespogluding legal and bankruptcy purposes. Ndribeassets of these subsidiaries are

available to pay any of our other creditors.

(8) Debt

The terms of our debt outstanding at December @13 2nd 2012 are summarized below:

Description

Interest Ratt

Maturity

Warehouse lines of credi

Residual interest financir

Debt secured by
receivables measured at
fair value

Senior secured debt,
related party

Subordinated renewable
notes

5.73% over one montt
Libor (Minimum 6.73%)

6.00% over one montt
Libor (Minimum 6.75%)

12.875% over one mon
Libor

11.75% over one mont
Libor

n/a

13.0% and 16.0% at
December 31, 2013 ar
2012, respectivel

5.00%

Weighted average rate
12.5% and 14.4% at

December 31, 2013 ar
2012, respectively

March 2017

June 2016

September 2013

April 2018

Repayment is based «
payments from
underlying
receivables. Final
payment of the 8.00%

loan was made in
September 2013, witl

residual payments
extending through 201

June 2014

June 201

Weighted average
maturity of July 2015

and June 2015 at
December 31, 2013 al

2012, respectively
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Amount Outstanding at

December 31

December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands)
9,45: 4,35¢
- 17,37:
- 13,77:
19,09¢ -
13,117 57,107
37,12¢ 50,13t
1,431 -
19,14 23,28
99,36¢ 166,02
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In March 2013 we renewed our $100 million warehaeredit line with affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & .Gmd Fortress Investment
Group. The facility is structured to allow us taéla portion of the purchase price of automobiletaxts by borrowing from a credit facility
to our consolidated subsidiary Page Six Funding LT facility provides for advances up to 88% lajible finance receivables and the
loans under it accrue interest at a rate of onetmbiBOR plus 5.73% per annum, with a minimum raté.73% per annum. There was $9.5
million outstanding under this facility at Deceml8dr, 2013. This facility has a revolving periodahgh March 2015 and an amortization
period through March 2017 for any receivables péetip the facility at the end of the revolving peli

In June 2013, we renewed our $100 million warehausdit line with Citibank, N.A. The facility isstctured to allow us to fund a
portion of the purchase price of automobile conréy borrowing from a credit facility to our cotisated subsidiary Page Eight Funding,
LLC. The facility provides for effective advances to 88.4% of eligible finance receivables. Thenkander the facility accrue interest at
one-month LIBOR plus 6.00% per annum, with a minmmate of 6.75% per annum. At December 31, 201&thes no amount outstanding
under this facility, which has a revolving peritadugh June 2015 and an amortization period thrdugie 2016 for any receivables pledged
at the end of the revolving period.

The total outstanding debt on our warehouse lifiesadlit was $9.5 million as of December 31, 20d@npared to $21.7 million
outstanding as of December 31, 2012.

The costs incurred in conjunction with the abovetdee recorded as deferred financing costs oa¢hempanying consolidated balance
sheets and are more fully described in Note 1.

We must comply with certain affirmative and negatoovenants related to debt facilities, which regjutamong other things, that we
maintain certain financial ratios related to ligtydnet worth and capitalization. Further covemsantiude matters relating to investments,
acquisitions, restricted payments and certain divitirestrictions. See the discussion of finan@akoants in Note 1.

The following table summarizes the contractual exylected maturity amounts of long term debt asexfdinber 31, 2013:

Residual Senior Subordinated
interest secured renewable
Contractual maturity date financing (1) debt (2) notes Total
(In thousands)

2014 $ 6,33: % 3855¢ $ 11,40 $ 56,29:
2015 3,20z - 2,48( 5,68
2016 1,15¢ - 3,267 4,42¢
2017 4,30( - 212 4,51z
2018 4,10z - 56& 4,667
Thereafter - - 1,21¢ 1,21¢
Total $ 19,09¢ $ 3855¢ $ 19,14 $ 76,797

(1) The residual interest financing debt has a contrattaturity date in April 2018. This debt is exjgelcto become due and payable
prior to that date, based on the decreasing vatratf the underlying collatera

(2) The senior secured debt is shown net of unamortiebtidiscounts of $623,000. On a gross basischeduled maturity of this debt
$39.2 million in June 2014. On January 31, 2014 prepaid $10.0 million of our senior secured defidpto its contractual maturity
in June 2014

(3) Debt secured by receivables measured at fair vafune amount of $13.1 million as of DecemberZ3, is omitted from this tab
because it becomes due as and when the relatetyabtes balance is reduced by payments and cl-offs.
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(9) Shareholders’ Equity
Common Stock

Holders of common stock are entitled to such dindteas our Board of Directors, in its discretiomyrdeclare out of funds available,
subject to the terms of any outstanding shareseaféped stock and other restrictions. In the ewétijuidation of the Company, holders of
common stock are entitled to receipey rata, all of the assets of the Company available fetritiution, after payment of any liquidation
preference to the holders of outstanding shargsedérred stock. Holders of the shares of commockshave no conversion or preemptive or
other subscription rights and there are no redempir sinking fund provisions applicable to the coom stock.

We are required to comply with various operatind &inancial covenants defined in the agreementegong the warehouse lines of
credit, senior debt, residual interest financind anbordinated debt. The covenants for the semiot, desidual interest financing and
subordinated debt restrict the payment of certatridutions, including dividends (See Note 8).

Stock Purchases

At five different times between 2000 and 2011, Baard of Directors has authorized the repurchasgdb $34.5 million of our
securities. As of December 31, 2013, we had puszh&5.0 million principal amount of debt securitiasd $28.4 million of our common
stock, representing 9,800,720 shares. There ioappately $1.0 million remaining under such plawkjch have no expiration date.

Options and Warrants

In 2006, the Company adopted and its shareholggnoaed the CPS 2006 Long-Term Equity IncentivenFtae “2006 Plan”) pursuant
to which our Board of Directors, or a duly-authedzcommittee thereof, may grant stock optionsricéstl stock, restricted stock units and
stock appreciation rights to our employees or eggds of our subsidiaries, to directors of the Camgpand to individuals acting as
consultants to the Company or its subsidiariegulme 2008, May 2012 and again in April 2013, theratiolders of the Company approved an
amendment to the 2006 Plan to increase the maximnumber of shares that may be subject to awards uhe 006 Plan to 5,000,000,
7,200,000 and 12,200,000, respectively, in each phs shares authorized under prior plans anéssoéd. Options that have been granted
under the 2006 Plan and a previous plan approv&89@ have been granted at an exercise price &gal greater than) the stock’s fair
market value at the date of the grant, with terersegally of 10 years and vesting generally oves fiears.

The per share weighted-average fair value of stptions granted during the years ended Decembe&t(@B and 2012 was $4.79 and
$1.15, respectively. That fair value was estimatgidg the Black-Scholes option pricing model usimgweighted average assumptions noted
in the following table. We use historical data stimate the expected term of each option. The Nitfadstimate is based on the historical
volatility of our stock over the period that equtile expected life of the option. Volatility assuiops ranged from 50% to 85% for 2013 and
54% to 82% for 2012. The risk-free interest ratedsed on the yield on a U.S. Treasury bond wittaturity comparable to the expected life
of the option. The dividend yield is estimated &Zero based on our intention not to issue dividdodthe foreseeable future.

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
Expected life (years 5.41 5.6:
Risk-free interest rat 0.73% 1.32%
Volatility 80% 79%

Expected dividend yiel - -
For the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 eeeded stock-based compensation costs in the arab#8.9 million and $1.1

million, respectively. As of December 31, 2013, tilrecognized stock-based compensation costsrechgnized over future periods was
equal to $12.5 million. This amount will be recargd as expense over a weighted-average period gears.
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At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the options outstgrathd exercisable had intrinsic values of $61ildan and $41.7 million,
respectively. The total intrinsic value of optieercised was $8.1 million and $1.2 million for thear ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. New shares were issued for all ogtExercised during the year ended December 2018asidof $2.1 million was received. A
tax benefit of $1.2 million was recorded for theiops exercised in 2013. At December 31, 2013 etheare a total of 4.0 million additional
shares available for grant under the 2006 Plan.

Stock option activity for the year ended Decemldgr2®13 for stock options under the 2006 and 198@sais as follows:

Weighted
Number of Weighted Average
Shares Average Remaining
(in thousands) Exercise Price Contractual Term

Options outstanding at the beginning of pel 8,65: $ 1.5¢ N/A
Grantec 3,04( 7.4 N/A
Exercisec (1,419 1.5C N/A
Forfeited/Expired (157) 4.64 N/A

Options outstanding at the end of period 10,12¢ % 3.3C 6.40 year:

Options exercisable at the end of period 5777  $ 2.17 4.96 year:

The per share weighted average exercise price@ok siptions granted whose exercise price was @qube market price of the stock on
the grant date during the years ended Decemb&@03B, and 2012, was $7.43 and $1.72, respectivedydM/not issue any stock options w
an exercise price above or below the market priteeostock on the grant date for the years endezkbBiber 31, 2013 and 2012.

On June 30, 2008, we entered into a series of agnes pursuant to which a lender purchased a $lli@mrive-year, fixed rate, senior
secured note from us. In July 2008, in conjunctidgth the amendment of the residual interest finag@s discussed above, the lender
purchased an additional $15 million note with sabsally the same terms as the $10 million notes&ant to the June 30, 2008 securities
purchase agreement, we issued to the lender 1(#2Slares of common stock. In addition, we isshedender two warrants: (i) warrants
that we refer to as the FMV Warrants, which werereisable for 1,611,114 shares of our common statcén exercise price of $1.39818 per
share, and (ii) warrants that we refer to as th&&rants, which were exercisable for 285,781 shafesir common stock, at a nominal
exercise price. Both the FMV Warrants and the Nnafats were exercised in November 2013.

In connection with the amendment to and partiaayapent of our residual interest financing in JUDP2, we issued warrants excercis:
for 2,500,000 common shares for $4,071,429. Theamss represent the right to purchase 2,500,000d@R®non shares at a nominal
exercise price, at any time prior to July 10, 20h8iarch 2010 we repurchased warrants for 500¢¥dBese shares for $1.0 million.
Warrants to purchase 2,000,000 shares remain ndistaas of December 31, 2013.

A warrant to purchase 1,162,270 shares of our camshares at an exercise price of $0.876 per swhieh was issued in connection
with our $50 million revolving credit facility edtished in September 2009, was exercised by traekein April 2013.

Warrants to purchase 500,000 of our common shamas exercise price of $1.41 per share were isguedrtain note purchasers in our
March 2010 $50 million term funding facility. Wanis to purchase 409,390 shares remain outstandiof@ecember 31, 2013.
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(10) Interest Income
The following table presents the components ofr@sincome:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Interest on finance receivabl $ 231,32( $ 174,01¢
Residual interest incormr - 45¢
Other interest income 1C 837
Interest income $ 231,33C % 175,31«

(11) Income Taxes
Income taxes consist of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Current federal tax expen $ 977  $ 36¢
Current state tax expen 36¢ 49
Deferred federal tax expen 13,30¢ 2,82¢
Deferred state tax expense (bene 1,52( (6549)
Change in valuation allowance - (62,817
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 16,16¢ $ (60,22)

Income tax expense/(benefit) for the years endezé®ber 31, 2013 and 2012 differs from the amoutgrdened by applying the
statutory federal rate of 35% to income before inedaxes as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands)

Expense at federal tax re $ 13,01 $ 3,21¢
State taxes, net of federal income tax ef 2,07¢ 1,19(
Other adjustments to tax rese (419) (1,159
Effect of change in state tax re (239 (1,105
Change in valuation allowan - (62,81))
Stoclk-based compensatic 911 321
Non-deductible expenst¢ 61¢ 63
Other 20€ 58

$ 16,16¢ $ (60,22
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The tax effected cumulative temporary differend¢es give rise to deferred tax assets and liaksliie of December 31, 2013 and 201z
as follows:

December 31
2013 2012
(In thousands)

Deferred Tax Assets:

Finance receivable $ 17,25¢  $ 10,84(
Accrued liabilities 5,07¢ 1,60¢
Furniture and equipme 19¢ 213
NOL carryforwards 23,81: 48,14(
Built in losses 13,07 14,40¢
Pension accrus - 2,08(
AMT credit carryforwarc 1,99: 69t
Other 83¢ 712
Total deferred tax assets 62,25( 78,69’
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
FAS 91 deferred cos (1,555 (1,119
Pension accruz (1,136 -
Investment residual (344) (1,939
Total deferred tax liabilities (3,039 (3,059
Net deferred tax asset $ 59,21t $ 75,64(

We acquired certain net operating losses and uitiss assets as part of our acquisitions of Mkhkcial Corp. (“MFN”) in 2002 and
TFC Enterprises, Inc. (“TFC”) in 2003. Moreover tlhd1FN and TFC have undergone an ownership chamgeufrposes of Internal Revenue
Code (“IRC") Section 382. In general, IRC Secti@23mposes an annual limitation on the ability dss corporation (that is, a corporation
with a net operating loss (“NOL") carryforward, diecarryforward, or certain built-in losses (“BI)$to utilize its pre-change NOL
carryforwards or BILs to offset taxable income iagsafter an ownership change.

In determining the possible future realization efedred tax assets, we have considered future lmkatbme from the following sources:
(a) reversal of taxable temporary differences; @dax planning strategies that, if necessary,ld/be implemented to accelerate taxable
income into years in which net operating losseshtnigherwise expire.

Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to neamagt’s judgment that realization is more likelgrimot. A valuation allowance is
recognized for a deferred tax asset if, based enviight of the available evidence, it is morelijikban not that some portion of the deferred
tax asset will not be realized. In making such prdgnts, significant weight is given to evidence ttzm be objectively verified. As a result of
the unprecedented adverse changes in the markstdaritizations, the recession and the resultigh kevels of unemployment that occurred
in 2008 and 2009, we incurred substantial operdtisges from 2009 through 2011 which led us tobdistaa valuation allowance against a
substantial portion of our deferred tax assets.détermined at December 31, 2012 that, based ondfght of the available objective
evidence, it was more likely than not that we woggdherate sufficient future taxable income to zailour net deferred tax assets. Accordir
we reversed the related valuation allowance of&#6illion in the fourth quarter of 2012.

Although realization is not assured, we believé tha realization of the recognized net deferrecasset of $59.2 million as of Decem!
31, 2013 is more likely than not based on forechBiture net earnings. Our net deferred tax afs®5@.2 million consists of approximately
$47.8 million of net U.S. federal deferred tax assed $11.4 million of net state deferred tax @sdéhe major components of the deferrec
asset are $36.9 million in net operating loss d¢arwards and built in losses and $22.3 million &t deductions which have not yet been te
on a tax return.
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As of December 31, 2013, we had net operatingdasyforwards for federal and state income tax psies of $48.4 million and $129.8
million, respectively. The federal net operatingdes begin to expire in 2022. The state net opegriisses begin to expire in 2014.

The following is a tabular reconciliation of theégbamounts of unrecognized tax benefits includirigrest and penalties for the year:

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Unrecognized tax bene- opening balanc $ 1331 % 2,40t
Gross increase- tax positions in prior perio - -
Gross decreast- tax positions in current peric - -
Gross increase- tax positions in current peric - 25C
Settlement: (68¢€) (159
Lapse of statute of limitations (64F) (1,179
Unrecognized tax benefit - ending balance $ - $ 1,331

We recognize a tax position as a benefit onlyig itmore likely than not” that the tax position wld be sustained in a tax examination,
with a tax examination being presumed to occur. dteunt recognized is the largest amount of tavefiethat is greater than 50% likely of
being realized on examination. For tax positionsmeeting the “more likely than not” test, no taenkfit is recorded. We recognize potential
interest and penalties related to unrecognizethémefits as income tax expense. At December 313,204 had no unrecognized tax benefits
for uncertain tax positions.

We are subject to taxation in the US and varioategurisdictions. With few exceptions, we are ogder subject to U.S. federal, state, or
local examinations by tax authorities for yearobef2010.

(12) Related Party Transactions

In December 2007, one of our directors purchasigl@ million subordinated renewable note pursuauoir ongoing program of issuing
such notes to the public. The note was purchaseddh the registered agent and under the same tarchsonditions, including the interest
rate, that were offered to other purchasers atitte the note was issued. As of December 31, 2848, million remains outstanding on this
note.
(13) Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Company leases its facilities and certain cdempeguipment under non-cancelable operating leaggsh expire through 2018.
Future minimum lease payments at December 31, 20id&r these leases are due during the years &wtmanber 31 as follows:

Amount
(In thousands)
2014 $ 3,24¢
2015 3,33¢
2016 2,89¢
2017 1,58(
2018 1,22¢
Thereafter 81C
Total minimum lease payments $ 13,10¢
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Rent expense for the years ended December 31,2®12012, was $2.6 million and $2.9 million, regjvedy.

Our facility leases contain certain rental conaassiand escalating rental payments, which are reéped as adjustments to rental expe
and are amortized on a straight-line basis oveteiras of the leases.

Litigation

Stanwich LitigationWe were for some time a defendant in a class atien“Stanwich Case”) brought in the Californigp8tior Court,
Los Angeles County. The original plaintiffs in thatse were persons entitled to receive regular patsr(the “Settlement Payments”)
pursuant to earlier settlements of claims, genepdrsonal injury claims, against unrelated defet&léStanwich Financial Services Corp.
(“Stanwich”), an affiliate of the former chairmahaur board of directors, is the entity that watigdied to pay the Settlement Payments.
Stanwich defaulted on its payment obligations tphaintiffs and in June 2001 filed for reorganiaatunder the Bankruptcy Code, in the
federal bankruptcy court in Connecticut. By Febyu2005, we had settled all claims brought agaisshihe Stanwich Case.

In November 2001, one of the defendants in thevd@mCase, Jonathan Pardee, asserted claims feminity against us in a separate
action, which is now pending in federal districuctoin Rhode Island. We have filed counterclaimshim Rhode Island federal court against
Mr. Pardee, and have filed a separate action agélingardee's Rhode Island attorneys, in the ssoud. The litigation between Mr. Pardee
and us was stayed for several years through Septe2®i 1, awaiting resolution of an adversary adbmught against Mr. Pardee in the
bankruptcy court, which is hearing the bankrupttgtanwich.

Pursuant to an agreement with the representatieesditors in the Stanwich bankruptcy, that aduwgraation has been dismissed. Under
that agreement, we paid the bankruptcy estate 80&nd abandoned our claims against the estatle, thh estate has abandoned its
adversary action against Mr. Pardee. With the disaliof the adversary action, all known claims dsdeagainst Mr. Pardee have been
resolved without his incurring any liability. Acatingly, we believe that this resolution of the athagy action will result in limitation of our
exposure to Mr. Pardee to no more than some poofitis attorneys fees incurred. The stay in th®ma@gainst us in Rhode Island has been
lifted, and both we and Mr. Pardee filed motionsdommary judgment. The court ruled on those metiarFebruary 2013, denying our
motion, and granting Mr. Pardeaotion as to liability. The issues remainingtfial are the extent of our obligation to indemniify. Pardee
There is no trial date set, but our expectatiahas the court may, not earlier than May 2014 tlsetmatter for trial in the latter half of 2014.

Consumer LitigationWe are routinely involved in various legal procewi resulting from our consumer finance activiiad practices,
both continuing and discontinued. Consumers cardanditiate lawsuits against us alleging violasasf law applicable to collection of
receivables, and such lawsuits sometimes allegadbalution as a class action is appropriate. YWecarrently defending two such purported
class actions, one of which has been settled eagent with the plaintiffs (such settlement remainisject to approval by the court). For the
most part, we have legal and factual defensesdo slaims, which we routinely contest or settle (fomaterial amounts) depending on the
particular circumstances of each case. We havededa liability as of December 31, 2013 with retpge such matters, in the aggregate.

FTC Action. On July 17, 2013, the staff of the Federal Tr@denmission (“FTC”) advised us that they are prepaoerecommend that
the FTC initiate a lawsuit against us relating ltegedly unfair trade practices, and simultaneoaslyised that settlement of such issues by
consent decree may be possible. Based on our r@fidve FTCS allegations, of past practices of the FTC, ofregords of our collection a
servicing activities, and of other companies’ settbnts with the FTC, we expect that we will reasthsa settlement, and that such a
settlement will require that we make restitutionpayments and that we implement procedural chamgesr a consent decree. There can be
no assurance, however, that we will reach agreemgarding any such settlement, and we may chaoseritest the allegations of the FTC.
Whether we reach such an agreement or not, theaastof contesting or settling the matter mayrtagerial. We have recorded a liability as
of December 31, 2013 with respect to this matter.
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In General. There can be no assurance as to the outcomey of ¢he matters referenced above. We have redadebility as of
December 31, 2013, which represents our best dstinfigrobable incurred losses for legal contingegidncluding all of the matters
described or referenced above. The amount of Idksésnay ultimately be incurred cannot be estichatih certainty. However, based on
such information as is available to us, we beligat the range of reasonably possible losses &lethal proceedings and contingencies
described or referenced above, as of December03B, 2nd in excess of the liability we have recdrde from $0 to $1.6 million.

Accordingly, we believe that the ultimate resoluataf such legal proceedings and contingencies:, tfkéing into account our current
litigation reserves, should not have a materiakask effect on our consolidated financial conditMe note, however, that in light of the
uncertainties inherent in contested proceedingsetban be no assurance that the ultimate resolatithese matters will not significantly
exceed the reserves we have accrued; as a résuttutcome of a particular matter may be matesialr operating results for a particular
period, depending on, among other factors, thedfitiee loss or liability imposed and the leveloofr income for that period.

(14) Employee Benefits

We sponsor a pretax savings and profit sharing fren“401(k) Plan”) qualified under Section 401@)the Internal Revenue Code.
Under the 401(k) Plan, eligible employees are &blmntribute up to 15% of their compensation (sabjfo stricter limitation in the case of
highly compensated employees). We may, at oureliscr, match 100% of employees’ contributions uftgb00 per employee per calendar
year. Our contributions to the 401(k) Plan were1$@@0 for the year ended December 31, 2013. Wadldnake any matching contributic
in 2012.

We also sponsor a defined benefit plan, the MFNénal Corporation Pension Plan (the “Plan”). Thenfbenefits were frozen on June
30, 2001.

The following tables represents a reconciliatioh@f change in the plan’s benefit obligations, Yailue of plan assets, and funded status
at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

December 31
2013 2012
(In thousands)

Change in Projected Benefit Obligatior

Projected benefit obligation, beginning of y: $ 21,79: % 19,44
Service cos - -
Interest cos 822 87t
Assumption change (2,420 2,33
Actuarial (gain) los: (119 2
Settlement: - -
Benefits paid (1,247 (860)
Projected benefit obligation, end of y¢ $ 18,84: $ 21,79:
Change in Plan Asset:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of y $ 16,61: $ 10,61
Return on asse 6,00¢ 5,43¢
Employer contributior 38¢ 1,47:
Expense:! (105) (59)
Settlement: - -
Benefits paid (1,247 (860)
Fair value of plan assets, end of y $ 2166: % 16,61:
Funded Status at end of yea $ 2,82: $ (5,180)
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Additional Information
Weighted average assumptions used to determinditeliégations and cost at December 31, 2013 &iP2vere as follows:

December, 31

2013 2012
Weighted average assumptions used to determine bédih@bligations
Discount rate 4.75% 3.91%
Weighted average assumptions used to determine n@triodic benefit cost
Discount rate 3.91¥% 4.60%
Expected return on plan ass 8.25% 8.50%

Our overall expected long-term rate of return agessis 8.25% per annum as of December 31, 20E3eXhected long-term rate of
return is based on the weighted average of histbréturns on individual asset categories, whiehdascribed in more detail below.

December 31
2013 2012
(In thousands)

Amounts recognized on Consolidated Balance Sheet

Other asset $ 2,82: % -
Other liabilities - (5,180
Net amount recognized $ 282: % (5,180
Amounts recognized in accumulated other compreheng income consist
of:
Net gain $ 1,367 $ 8,95:
Unrecognized transition asset - -
Net amount recognized $ 1,367 $ 8,95
Components of net periodic benefit cos
Interest cos $ 82: % 87t
Expected return on asst (1,339 (928¢)
Amortization of transition ass - -
Amortization of net loss 484 68C
Net periodic benefit cot (28 627
Settlement (gain)/loss - -
Total $ 28) $ 627

Benefit Obligation Recognized in Other Comprehensig Income

Net gain $ (7,586 $ (2,749

Prior service cost (credi - -

Amortization of prior service cost - -
Net amount recognized in other comprehensive income $ (7,580 $ (2,749

Accumulated Pension Benefit Obligation $ (1,09 % (5,637)

There is no estimated net loss that will be amedizom accumulated other comprehensive incomernietgeriodic benefit cost in 2014.
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The weighted average asset allocation of our parsmefits at December 31, 2013 and 2012 werellasvio

December 31

2013 2012
Weighted Average Asset Allocation at YeeEnd
Asset Category
Equity securitie: 87% 83%
Debt securitie: 13% 16%
Cash and cash equivalents 0% 1%
Total 100% 100%

Our investment policies and strategies for the jpensenefits plan utilize a target allocation of#®quity securities and 25% fixed
income securities (excluding Company stock). Ouestment goals are to maximize returns subjegbégific risk management policies. We
address risk management and diversification byifeeof a professional investment advisor and sesebaadvisors which invest in domestic
and international equity securities and domestiediincome securities. Each satlvisor focuses its investments within a spec#ictar of the
equity or fixed income market. For the sub-advigocsised on the equity markets, the sectors aferdiftiated by the market capitalization,
the relative valuation and the location of the utyileg issuer. For the sub-advisors focused orfittezl income markets, the sectors are
differentiated by the credit quality and the matudf the underlying fixed income investment. Thedstments made by the sub-advisors are
readily marketable and can be sold to fund bepeaffment obligations as they become payable.

Cash Flows

Estimated Future Benefit Payments (In thousands

2014 $ 72z
2015 81€
2016 82¢
2017 862
2018 894
Years 201¢- 2023 5,07¢
Anticipated Contributions in 201 $ 562
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The fair value of plan assets at December 31, 2032012, by asset category, is as follows:

December 31, 2013
Level 1 (1) Level 2 (2) Level 3 (3) Total
(in thousands)

Investment Name:

Company Common Stoc $ 8,31¢ % - 8,31¢
Fundamental Valu - 2,38¢ 2,38¢
Mid Cap Growth - 70¢ 70¢
Focus Value - 692 692
Small Co. Value - 69¢< 69¢<
Growth - 3,237 3,237
International Growtt - 2,85k 2,85k
Core Bonc - 1,87( 1,87(
High Yield - 387 387
Inflation Protected Bon - 487 487
Money Market - 31 31

Total $ 8,31¢ $ 13,34 % 21,66

December 31, 201;
Level 1 (1) Level 2 (2) Level 3 (3) Total

Investment Name: (in thousands)
Company Common Stoc $ 4,791 % - 4,791
Fundamental Valu - 2,04¢ 2,04¢
Mid Cap Growth - 59¢€ 59¢€
Focus Value - 607 607
Small Co. Value - 604 604
Growth - 2,681 2,681
International Growtt - 2,431 2,431
Core Bonc - 1,78( 1,78(
Income - 363 363
Inflation Protected Bon - 472 472
Money Market - 23€ 23€

Total $ 4791 $ 11,82 % 16,61:

(1) Company common stock is classified as level 1 ahdeed using quoted prices in active markets fontial assets

(2) All other plan assets in stock, bond and money atdtlnds are classified as level 2 and valued usiggificant observable input
(3) There are no plan assets classified as level Rarfair value hierarchy as a result of having sfgr@int unobservable input

(15) Fair Value Measurements

ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements"” clarifies thagple that fair value should be based on themgsions market participants would
use when pricing an asset or liability and estakbsa fair value hierarchy that prioritizes theinfation used to develop those assumptions.
Under the standard, fair value measurements waaikkparately disclosed by level within the faiueshierarchy.
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ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a frameViarkneasuring fair value, establishes a tHesel valuation hierarchy for disclosure
fair value measurement and enhances disclosur@reetgnts for fair value measurements. The threel$eare defined as follows: level 1 -
inputs to the valuation methodology are quotedagrizinadjusted) for identical assets or liabilitreactive markets; level 2 — inputs to the
valuation methodology include quoted prices foriimassets and liabilities in active markets, amplits that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, for subetially the full term of the financial instrumeratnd level 3 — inputs to the valuation
methodology are unobservable and significant tddiresalue measurement.

At the time of issuance, five warrants issued betw2008 and 2010 in conjunction with various detaricing transactions contained
features that make them subject to derivative autogl We valued these warrants using a binomiklateon model using a weighted aver:
volatility assumption of 41%, weighted average tefB8 years and a risk free rate of 3.3%. On M&eh2012 we agreed with the holders to
amend three of the five warrants to remove the ‘[dosund,” or price reset, features that resulteddrivative accounting. On the date of the
amendment, we valued each of the three warrantg asbinomial pricing model as described above. adgregate value of the three
amended warrants of $1.1 million was then reclassfrom Accounts Payable to Common Stock. On A;e012 we agreed with the holi
to amend one other warrant that contained the “d@und” features to remove those specific pricetreerms. The $251,000 aggregate value
of this amended warrant was reclassified from Aate®Payable to Common Stock on the date of the dment. The fifth warrant with the
“down round” feature was exercised on February2P43. The $583,000 intrinsic value of this warnaas reclassified from Accounts
Payable to Common Stock on the date of the exerdsef December 31, 2013 all five of the warrastaied that previously contained price
reset features have either been amended or exganigkare no longer subject to quarterly valuations

In September 2008 we sold automobile contractssecaritization that was structured as a saleifi@ntial accounting purposes. In that
sale, we retained both securities and a residtsddst in the transaction that are measured avdie. In September 2010 we took advantage
of improvement in the market for asset-backed seesiby re-securitizing the underlying receivaliiesn our unrated September 2008
securitization. We also sold the securities rethiinem the September 2008 transaction. No gaings Was recorded as a result of the re-
securitization transaction described above. Werdmsbelow the valuation methodologies we uselierdecurities retained and the residual
interest in the cash flows of the transaction, al as the general classification of such instrutag@uirsuant to the valuation hierarchy. The
residual interest in such securitization is $858,88 of December 31, 2013 and $4.8 million as afdbeber 31, 2012 and is classified as level
3 in the fair value hierarchy. We determine theseadf that residual interest using a discountetl asv model that includes estimates for
prepayments and losses. We used a discount ra@6fper annum and a cumulative net loss rate of &6BPecember 31, 2013 and 14% at
December 31, 2012. The assumptions we used ard badgstorical performance of automobile contrastshave originated and serviced in
the past, adjusted for current market conditions.

In September 2011, we acquired $217.8 million eéfice receivables from Fireside Bank for a purchase of $199.6 million. The
receivables were acquired by our wholly-owned sgqmirpose subsidiary, CPS Fender Receivables, lhih issued a note for $197.3
million, with a fair value of $196.5 million. Sindbe Fireside receivables were originated by anathéty with its own underwriting
guidelines and procedures, we have elected to atéouthe Fireside receivables and the related setured by those receivables at their
estimated fair values so that changes in fair valiliebe reflected in our results of operationglaesy occur. Interest income from the
receivables and interest expense on the note eltgid in interest income and interest expenseevely. Changes to the fair value of the
receivables and debt are included in other incade.level 3, unobservable inputs reflect our owsuasptions about the factors that market
participants use in pricing similar receivables detit, and are based on the best information dlaila the circumstances. They include s
inputs as estimated net charge-offs and timingnefamortization of the portfolio of finance recdiles. Our estimate of the fair value of the
Fireside receivables is performed on a pool baaiker than separately on each individual receevalihe table below presents a reconcilic
of the acquired finance receivables and related melsured at fair value on a recurring basis usigugficant unobservable inputs:
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December 31
2013 2012
(in thousands)

Finance Receivables Measured at Fair Value:

Balance at beginning of ye $ 59,66¢ $ 160,25:
Payments on finance receivables at fair vi (43,127 (104,68
Chargeoffs on finance receivables at fair va (2,89¢) (6,687)
Discount accretiol 1,421 4,144
Mark to fair value (595) 6,63/
Balance at end of year $ 14,47¢  $ 59,66¢

Debt Secured by Finance Receivables Measured at Faalue:

Balance at beginning of ye $ 57,107 $ 166,82¢
Principal payments on debt at fair va (45,969 (121,419
Premium accretio 2,72¢ 4,57¢
Mark to fair value (747) 7,11¢
Balance at end of ye: 13,117 57,10%
Reduction for payments collected and payable (1,659 (5,54
Adjusted balance at end of year $ 11,46 $ 51,55¢

The table below compares the fair values of thediidle receivables and the related secured delbeitocontractual balances for the
periods shown:

December 31, 201. December 31, 201;
Contractual Fair Contractual Fair
Balance Value Balance Value

(In thousands)
Fireside receivables portfol $ 14,78¢  $ 14,47¢  $ 60,80 $ 59,66¢

Debt secured by Fireside receivables
portfolio - 13,11% 41,36 57,107

The fair value of the debt secured by the Firestdeivables portfolio represents the discountedevaf future cash flows that we
estimate will become due to the lender in accordarith the terms of our financing for the Firesp@tfolio. The terms of the debt provide

for the lenders to receive a share of residual @asls from the underlying receivables after thatcactual balance of the debt is repaid and

the Company’s investment in the Fireside portf@dioeturned.

Repossessed vehicle inventory, which is include@timer assets on our balance sheet, is measufaid wlue using level 2 assumptions
based on our actual loss experience on sale o§segeed vehicles. At December 31, 2013, the finguegvables related to the repossessed

vehicles in inventory totaled $24.7 million. We kaapplied a valuation adjustment, or loss allowanot814.8 million, which is based on a
recovery rate of approximately 40%, resulting irestimated fair value and carrying amount of $10illon. The fair value and carrying
amount of the repossessed inventory at Decemb&@03P, was $5.7 million after applying a valuatiajustment of $6.4 million.
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There were no transfers in or out of level 1 oeleé¥assets and liabilities for 2013 and 2012. \Akemo level 3 assets that are measured
at fair value on a non-recurring basis. The taklew presents a reconciliation for level 3 assedasared at fair value on a recurring basis
using significant unobservable inputs:

December 31
2013 2012
(in thousands)

Residual Interest in Securitizations:

Balance at beginning of ye $ 482¢  $ 4,414
Cash received during ye (3,970 (48)
Included in earnings — 45¢
Balance at end of year $ 854 $ 4,82¢

Warrant Derivative Liability:

Balance at beginning of ye $ 358 $ 967
Included in earning 22¢ 69t
Reclassification to equity (58%) (1,307)
Balance at end of year $ - $ 358

The following table provides certain qualitativédrmation about our level 3 fair value measuremémtsissets and liabilities carried at
fair value:

Financial Instrument Fair Values as of Inputs as of
December 31 December 31
Valuation Unobservable
2013 2012 Techniques Inputs 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Assets:
Finance receivables measurt
at fair value Discount rate 15.4% 20.4%
Discounted cas Cumulative net
$ 14,47¢ $ 59,66¢ flows losses 5.0% 5.5%
Monthly averag
prepayment 0.5% 0.5%
Residual interest in
securitization: Discount rate 20.0% 20.0%
Discounted cas Cumulative net
854 4,82¢ flows losses 15.0% 13.7%
Monthly averag
prepayment 0.5% 0.5%
Liabilities:
Stock price n/a $5.36/st
Warrant derivative liability $ - $ 35E Binomial Volatility n/a 40.0%
Risk free rate n/a 1.26%
Debt secured by receivables Discounted cas
measured at fair valt $ 13,117 57,107 flows Discount rate 12.2% 16.2%
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The estimated fair values of financial assets afillities at December 31, 2013 and 2012, wer®ksvis:

As of December 31, 201

Financial Instrument

(In thousands)

Carrying Fair Value Measurements Using:
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 22,11: % 22,11: % - $ - $ 22,11:
Restricted cash and equivale 132,28« 132,28« - - 132,28«
Finance receivables, n 1,115,43 - - 1,100,15: 1,100,15:
Finance receivables measured a

fair value 14,47¢ - - 14,47¢ 14,47¢
Residual interest in securitizatio 854 - - 854 854
Accrued interest receivab 18,67( - - 18,67( 18,67(
Liabilities:
Warehouse lines of crec $ 945 $ - 3 - % 945z $ 9,452
Accrued interest payab 2,90¢ - - 2,90¢ 2,90¢
Residual interest financir 19,09¢ - - 19,09¢ 19,09¢
Debt secured by receivables

measured at fair valt 13,117 - - 13,117 13,117
Securitization trust del 1,177,55! - - 1,189,08! 1,189,08!
Senior secured de 38,55¢ - - 38,55¢ 38,55¢
Subordinated renewable no 19,14: - - 19,14: 19,14:

As of December 31, 2012
Financial Instrument (In thousands)
Carrying Fair Value Measurements Using:
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivale! $ 12,96¢ $ 12,96¢ $ - 8 - 8 12,96¢
Restricted cash and equivale 104,44! 104,44! - - 104,44!
Finance receivables, n 744,74¢ - - 740,51 740,51
Finance receivables measured a

fair value 59,66¢ - - 59,66¢ 59,66¢
Residual interest in securitizatio 4,82¢ - - 4,82¢ 4,82¢
Accrued interest receivab 10,41 - - 10,41 10,41
Liabilities:
Warrant derivative liability $ 358 % - 8 - 8 358 % 35E
Warehouse lines of crec 21,73 - - 21,73 21,73:
Accrued interest payab 2,79¢ - - 2,79¢ 2,79¢
Residual interest financir 13,77: - - 13,77: 13,77:
Debt secured by receivables

measured at fair valt 57,10% - - 57,10% 57,10%
Securitization trust del 792,49° - - 803,29( 803,29(
Senior secured de 50,13¢ - - 50,13¢ 50,13¢
Subordinated renewable no 23,28: - - 23,28: 23,28:
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The following summary presents a description ofrtteghodologies and assumptions used to estimafaithelue of our financial
instruments. Much of the information used to detaenfair value is highly subjective. When appliahieadily available market information
has been utilized. However, for a significant pmrtof our financial instruments, active marketsdb exist. Therefore, significant element:
judgment were required in estimating fair valuedertain items. The subjective factors include, agmother things, the estimated timing ¢
amount of cash flows, risk characteristics, crgdlity and interest rates, all of which are subjechange. Since the fair value is estimated
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the amountsvitha@ctually be realized or paid at settlementraturity of the instruments could be
significantly different.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash andviabpurits

The carrying value equals fair value.

Finance Receivables, n

The fair value of finance receivables is estimdtediscounting future cash flows expected to béectdd using current rates at which
similar receivables could be originated.

Finance Receivables Measured at Fair Value and 3eatured by Receivables Measured at Fair V
The carrying value equals fair value.
Residual Interest in Securitizatio

The fair value is estimated by discounting futuastcflows using credit and discount rates that @liebe reflect the estimated credit,
interest rate and prepayment risks associatedsivithar types of instruments.

Accrued Interest Receivable and Paye

The carrying value approximates fair value becdluiseelated interest rates are estimated to reflecent market conditions for similar
types of instruments.

Warrant Derivative Liability
The method used to estimate fair value is descréibede.
Warehouse Lines of Credit, Residual Interest FifrancSenior Secured Debt and Subordinated Renevixidities

The carrying value approximates fair value becdluiseelated interest rates are estimated to reflecent market conditions for similar
types of secured instruments.

Securitization Trust Debt

The fair value is estimated by discounting futuamsicflows using interest rates that we believeeotdlthe current market rates.
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Exhibit 21 - Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

The following corporations and limited liability ogpanies are direct or indirect subsidiaries ofrégistrant. None does business other
under its own name. Certain subsidiaries are othttiat would not constitute, if aggregated togethesignificant subsidiary of the registr:
however, no implication should be drawn that eadis&liary named below is a significant subsidiary.

State or other jurisdiction of

Name incorporation or organizatic
CPS Leasing, Inc DE
CPS Marketing, Inc CA
CPS Receivables Four LL DE
CPS Receivables Five LL DE
CPS Fender Receivables LI DE
CPS Residual Corj DE
Page Five Funding LLt¢ DE
Page Six Funding LL( DE
Page Eight Funding LL¢ DE
Page Nine Funding LL! DE
TFC Enterprises LL( DE

Mercury Finance Company LL DE



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statements No. 333-190766 and 333-16&8i76orm S-1, No. 33352969 o
Form S-3 and Nos. 333-58199, 333-35758, 333-75383;115622, 333-135907, 333-161448, 333-166892,383d193926 on Form 8-of

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. of our reportedaMarch 10, 2014, relating to the consolidatedrfoial statements and effectivenes
internal control over financial reporting of ConsemfPortfolio Services, Inc. appearing in this AnrRaport on Form 10-K.

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP

Costa Mesa, California
March 10, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OF THE SERITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANEBXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Charles E. Bradley, Jr., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 of Gures Portfolio Services,
Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notagoriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentec
this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

@) Designed such disclosure controls and procegorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitee designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiairmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@ase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttulsi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesggnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorslahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardiodctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions

€)) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes#gethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 10, 2014

/sl Charles E. Bradley, .
Charles E. Bradley, J
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OF THE SERITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANEBXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey P. Fritz, Jr., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 of Gures Portfolio Services,
Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notagoriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentec
this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

@) Designed such disclosure controls and procegorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitee designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiairmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@ase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttulsi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesggnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorslahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardiodctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions

€)) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes#gethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 10, 2014

/sl Jeffrey P. Frit
Jeffrey P. Fritz
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANEBXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Consumertf®tio Services, Inc. (“Registrant”) on Form 10f&r the fiscal year ended December
31, 2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchabgemission on March 10, 2014 (the “ReporCharles E. Bradley, Jr., chairman, presi
and chief executive officer, and Jeffrey P. Frithief financial officer and senior vice presidezdch hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to his krealgk:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations as
December 31, 201

March 10, 2014

/sl Charles E. Bradley, .
Charles E. Bradley, J
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off

March 10, 2014

/sl Jeffrey P. Frit.
Jeffrey P. Fritz
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presid




